TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE CAMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors of Trilogy Funds Mgnagement Limited, the Manager of Tritogy Invesior Cholce Melbourne Cempus Office
Syndicate (the Trust) present thelr report logether with the financial report for the syndicate for the financlal year ended

30 June 2006.

Directors

The persons held office as directors of Trilogy Funds Management Limited during or since the and of {he Tinangial year
are:

Mr Philip Ryan

Mr Rodger Bacon

Mr Michael Curley

Mr Jonathan MoCarthy

Mr John Barry

Mr David Hogan {appeinted 24 January 2008)

Mr Trevor Gibsen {appointed 14 Augusi 2006)

Directors have been In office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report uniess ofherwise stated.

Operating Results

The profit from operalions of the trust for the financial year was $485,367 (2006: $10,243), The properly was revaiuad to
$14,808,000 end after inciuding the revaluation increment the profit for the year before distributlons to unitholders was

$006,442.

Distributions
Distribulions of $568,083 (2005: $30,088) were paid to unitholders during the period.

Review of Operations
The Trust commenced operations In March 2006 and has operated substanlizlly in accordarce with the infermation
provided Iny the Product Disclosure Statement (PDS),

Significant Changes in State of Affairs

Since formation in March 2008 the Trust has investad In the property known as $0 Marlbyrnong Streef. Foolscray,
Victor {Lonely Planet Haadquarters), Mezzanine funding provided by an International nvestment bank fo assist i the
acguisition of the propery was repaid in full in Septernber 20035 from subscriptions to the Trust. In the opinion of the
Manager there are no other significant changes In the stata of affairs of the Trust which occurred In the firancial vear,

Principal Actlvity

The principal activity of the Trust during the financial year was investment in (he property known as Trilogy Investor
Choice Melbourne Campus Office Syndicate which owns and leases & commerclal progerly,

Thera was no significani change in the nature of these activities during the year,

Aftor Balance Date Events

The Menager has not become aware of any significant matters or clroumstances which have arfsen since the end of the
financial year which significantly affected or may signiticantly affect the operations of the Trust, the rasulls of those
operations, of the siate of affalrs of the Trust in fulure financial years.

Likely Developments

The Hkely devalopments in the aperation of the Trust and the expacted results of these operalions I financial years
subsequent o the year ended 30 Jung 2008 are Included In the Review of Operations.

Environmenial [ssues
The Trust's eperallons are not regulated by any significant snvironmenta! regulation under 3 law of the Commonwealth or
of a Slate or Terrilory,
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TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE CAMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE :
DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued) Es

Indemnification and Insurance of Offlcers and Auditors

No indernitles have been glven or Insurance premiums pald, during or since the end of the financlal year, for eny person
who fs or has been an officer or auditor of the trust, Sc fong as the officers of Triiogy Funds Management Limited aci In
aocordance with the Trust Constitution and the Law the officers remain indemnifled out of the assets of the Trust against
tosses incurred whilst acting on behalf of the Trust, The auditer of the Trust iz in no way Indemnifisd out of the assets of

fhe Trusl.

Feeas Pald and Interests held In the Trust by the Manager or lits Associates

The fees paid or payable to the Manager and its associales out of the Trust during the financial period are shown in note
11.

The Manager of ils associates held no units in the Trust as at 30 June 2008,

Proceedings on Behalf of the Company

No person has applis¢ for leave of Court 1o bring proceedings on behalf of the company ot Intervens In any procesdings
io which the company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behaif of the company for all or any pad of

those praceedings,
The company was nol a parl to any such proceedings during the year.

Auditor's Independence Declaration
A copy of the audilors independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Acl 2801 Is sel oul
on page 3.

Supplemental Deed Amanding The Constitution
international Financial Reporting Standards

A Supplemental Deed smending the Constitution of the Trust has been prepared and lodged with the Ausiralian
Securities & Investment Commission (ASIC), The Supplemental Deed effeciively preserves operation of the previous
Accounting Standards (applicable prior to 1 January 20058) in carrying out any calcutation or making any dstermination In
retation o the Trust,

ASIC has advised that all Austrafian enfities preparing financial repotts under the Corpuorations Act 2001 must comply
with the Australian equivalents of the International Financial Reporling Standards (A-IFRS) for financial years beginning
on or after 1 January 2005. _

The major impact of the new Standards requires unlt helder funds to be cfassified in the statement of financial position as
a liability and not as equity, due o the righfs of unit holders on conelusion of the Trust,

ASIC has recogrised that this impacts on most funds, the investors and managets partlcularly In refation to calculation of
feos and unit pricing. ASIC has lssued a claes order lo enable fund managars {o change the Constifufion of each fund to
{he effect that accounting standards presently existing contihus to apply and are nol affectsd by the transition for financial
reporting purposes o A-FRS.

Trilogy Funds Management Lid believes that the modification of the Constitution as contemplatad by the Supplemental
Deed wili not adversely affect the rights of members of the Trust.

é:ard of Direafors of the frustes compariy:

' _a:f;”*"k/

Signed in sccordance with a resolution of

Director y e b
i R, Bacon

Dated this 5TV day of October 2006
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BUSINESS < FINANCIAL ADVISORS

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 307C
OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001 TO THE DIRECTORS OF
TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE CAMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE

1 declare that, to lhe best of my knowledge and balisf, during the year ended 30 June 2008-there have been:

0] ne conlraventions of the auditor independence requirements as sot out in the Corperalions Act 2601 In
relation (o the audil; and

{in no cantraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct In relation to the audit,

Gl

MG White Hancook
CharleredLAccountants

C M Douglas
Pariner

Brishane

& October 2008

MG White Hangock Chartgred Actountams A
MG White Heocock Piy Ltd A3i 68 295 962 658

Level §, 200 Mary Street, GPO Box 1087, Brishane Qid 4007 Austrsila

#0617 3002 4800 f: +67 7 3228 5603 e whimghwhicom.au  wwwanghwh.om.au

MGLE & wirddwita essacdstion of independual suditing, stcpunting ang cansuiting hirpa,
Tach member Hen undesakel no redponsibility for the activitfes weatk, apiniont 8r sorvire pf the giher membar o,
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TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE CANMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE
INCOME STATEMENT OF FINANGIAL PERFORMANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

Notes 2008 2008
$ $

Revenus 3 1,300,968 a52,007
Intereat & borrowing costs 4 (708,487} (310,154)
Other expenses 4 {110,102} (31,700
Profit from operating activily 485,367 10,243
Gther income / expense

Investment proparly — increase in valuation 8 438,060 -

invesiment property — acquisiion costs expensed 5 3.078 883,887
Profiti(loss) for the year before finance costs 8 986,442  (853,844)
Financihg costs atiributable fo unitholders

Distribution o unitholders )8  {BEB.0BD (30,988

Change in net assets attributable to unithoiders

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

i

4184359 . (BB4.6ID)
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TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE CAMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JUNE 2008
Notes 2006 2006
$ $
ABSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash assets - Bank 68,518 422 467
Recelvables - 740
Prepaymenis - Inlerest 29,084 32882
TOTAL CURRENT ASBETS 97.580 456,059
NON-GURRENT ASSETS
Invesiment property 5 14,898,000 14,400,000
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 14,898,000 14,400,000
TOTAL ASSETS 14,955,580 14,856,059
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables 8 47,937 1,457,307
Interest-hbearlng labilities 7 - 2,847,216
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 47,937 4,304,523
NON-CURRENT UABILITIES
Interest-bearing liablliffes 7 B 775,440 5,341,140
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,775,140 9,341,140
TOTAL LTABILITIES {(exciuding net assels afiributable fo unitholders) 8,823,077 13645663
Net Assets attributable to unitholders 8 6,172,503 1,210,308
TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,985,580 14,856,064

The accompanying noles forn part of these financial statements.

v -
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TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE CAMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE

CASH FL.LOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008

Notes 2008 2005
§ $

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Rent Receipis 1,280,822 344 254
Fayments to suppliers (i17,438) .
interest received 20,344 7.843
Borrowing costs paid (B97.709) {332,003)
Net cash provided by/lused in) operating aclivities 10{b) 4865822 20,084
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for investment property - (156,263,887}
Net cash provided by/{used in) hvesting activities - (15,263,887}
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from unit issus 4,543,748 2,902,702
Proceads fromirepayment) of borrowings (3,417,216} 12,882,224
Equity raising and formalion costs paid (1,398,222} {87,874)
Distributions paid {5688.083) {30,98%)
Net gash provided by finanging aclivities {839,773) 15,666,260
Mt increase/{dacrease) in cash heid {385,951) 422,467
Cash &t beginning of nancial year 4722 48T -
Cash at end of financial year 106(a) 58,5168 492 487

The accompanying notes form parf of these financial statements,
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TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE CAKMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008

NOTE 13 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial raport is & general purpose fnancial report that has been prepared In actordance with Australian
Aecounting Standards, Urgenl issues Group Consensus Views and other authorifative pronouncements of the Ausirallan

Accounting Slandards Board,

The financial report covers tha Unit Trust as an individual enlily. The Trust is a unit trust, eslablished and domiciled in
Australla.  The finantial report complies with all Australian equivalents to idernational Flnandia!l Repording Standerds

{AIFRS) In their sntlrety,

The foliowing is a summary of the material accounting policies adopled by the trust in the praparation of the financial
report, The sccounting policles have been consislently appiied, unless otherwise staled.

Basis of Preparation
First-tirme Adoption of Australian Equivalents fo Intemalional Financial Reporting Standards

The Trust has prepared financlal statements in accordance with the Ausfralian equivalents fo Infernational Financial
Reporting Standardds (AIFRS) from 1 July 2005,

I acuordance with the requirements of AASBE 1; First-ime Adoption of Ausiratian Equivalents to Internationa! Financlal
Reporting Standards, adjustments fo the accounts resylting from the Introduction of AIFRS have been appiied
refrospactively to 2005 comparatlve figuras excluding cases where optlonal exemptions available under AASE 1 have
been applied. These accounts are the first financlal statements of the Trust to be prepared In acoordance with AIFRS,

The accounting policies set out below have been censistenily applied to all years presented,

Recongillations of the transition from previous Australlan GAAP to AIFRS havs been included in Note 2 to this repor,

Reporting Basis and Conventions

The financial report has been preparad on an accruals basis and is based on hislorical costs modified by the revaluation
of selected non-current assets, and financial assets and financial liabillies for which the falr vaiue basis of sccounting has

heen applad.

{a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cesh equivalents include cash on hand, deposiis held at call with banks, other shortderm highly fiquid
investments with orlginal maturities of thres maonths or less, and bank overdrafts, Bank overdrafis. are shown within shori-

term borrowings it current iabilities on the balance sheet,

{b} Revenue

Revenue from the rental properly fs recognised when the Trust has a right to recelve the rent In accordance with the
lease agreement. Inferest revenus is recognised on a proportional basis taking Into account the inlerest rates appilcable
to the financial assets. All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and sarvices fax (GST).

{¢) Investment Property

The Investment property is comprised of land and a building, Including integral plant and equipment such as fixed air
conditfoning, held for the purpose of producing fong term rental income. The properly has been brought to account & falr
value, determined snnually, Changes {o falr value are recorded in the Income statement as ofher income. Independent
valuations of the propeily will be performed where the Responsible Entity bielieves that there has been & significant
change in the value of the property. The Manager must ensure that the Property Is independently revalued at ieast avery
3 years. Depreclation Is nol applicable in applying the falr value accounting model, The properly was ariginally
agcounted for at purchase cost plus the cosls of acquisition in accordance with previous GAAP. The effects of this

change in policy are shown at Note 6 In this report.
{d} Unitholders funds

Under previous Austraiian Accounting Standards ordinary units issued by the Trust were classifled as equlty Instruments
in the balance sheet, Due fo the Trust having a finite life, AIFRS requires that the unils on issue be classified as. debt
instruments rather than equity instruments, In addition, the Trust has an obligation under its conslitution to deliver afi net
iaxable income 1o the unit holders at the end of each period, consequently the trustees consider that the unlis on issue
will be appropriately classified as a financial lability of the frast under AIFRS. As & result, distributions paid 1o unit holders
are reclassified as fingnce costs in the income statement,

N
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TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE CAMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT AQCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

(e} Issue Gosts
All costs in relation fo the raising of equity funds for the Trusi were offset against Investors' funds as a redustion of
proceeds from the Issue of Units.

{f} Deferred Borrowing Costs

Deferred borrowlng cosls comprise all costs in relafion lo the establishment, arranging and dosumeniation of the debt
facility, Such costs are offset against the balance of the debt facility and expensed over 5 years, belng the period of the

faciity.

{g) Income Tax

Undet currenl law, the Trust is not flable for income lax provided Investors are enlilled to alt the distributable ingome of:

the Trust each year. Investors will be iable for tax onh the taxable distribulion af rates applicable o eath individual
investor's parsonal tax circumstances,

{h) Distributions

The Trust constitution provides for the distributable income fo Incfude both income and capital. Distributions per Unit-will
be determined by dividing the lofal distributions (l.e. income and capltal components) for the period by the number of
Units on issue onh the last day of the distribufion period.

{i) Goods and Services Tax {GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, Recelvables and payables in the Balance
Sheet are shown Inclusive of GST.

(i} Comparative Figures
When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusled to conform to changes in presenlation
for the current financlal year,
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TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE CAMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008

Nota 2006 2005

NOTE 2; FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TG INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Note  Frevious GAAP Effact of AIFRS at
AL 30 Juns 2006 Transitlon fo 30 June 2005
AlIFRS
$ § ¢

Reconcitiation of Equity at 1 July 2005
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivatents 422 467 - 422,487
Trade and other receivables 740 - 740
Prepayments 32,882 - 32,852
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 456,068 - 456,050
NON-CURRENT ASSETS :
Investment Property 2a 15,263,887 (863,887} 14,400,000 s
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ABSETS 15,268,887 (863,887) 14,400,000 i
TOTAL ABSETS 18,716,046 (863,887) 14,856,059
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and olher payables 1,467,307 - 1,457,307
Shori-tarm borrowings 2,847,216 - 2,847,216
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,304 523 - 4,304,523
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term horrowings 8,341,140 - 9,341,140
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,341,140 - 8,341,140
TOTAL LIABILITIES (exciuding net assets altributable to 13,645,663 - 13,648,663
unit holders)
Net assets aliributable to unit hoiders 2b - 1,210,386 1,210,396
TOTAL LIABILITIES 13,645,663 1,210,386 14,686,069
TOTAL EQUITY 2¢ 2.074.283 {2,074,283) - _

!

|

-G
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TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE CAMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

Mote

2008 2005

NOTE 2; FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (CONT'D)

Reconciliation of Profit or Loss for 2005

Revenue

Invesiment property — decrease from cosl to valuation
fwrite-off of acquisition costs)

Finance cosls
Other gxpenses

Financing costs
Distributions to unif hoiders

Net profit{loss)

Notes to the resonciliations of equity and profit and
loss at 30 June 2008

a. Decrement In invesiment properiy ¢ valuation at
30 June 2005, This adjustment in-effect was a
write-off of the properly acquisition cosls (stamp
duty & legals) capitalised upon acquisition in
accordance with previous GAAP, The valuation at
30 June 2008 Is in accordance with the
independsnt valuation shewn In the Product
Disciosure Statement,

b. The adjustment fo net assels atiribufable {o unit
holders is made up as follows:

Cecrament in investiment property
Equity reciassification
Total

. Under previous Australian Accounting Standards
crdinary units issued by the Trust were classified
as equity instruments In the balance sheet. Due to
the Trust having & finlts life, AIFRS requires that
the unils on issue be classified es debt instruments
rather than equity instruments. in addition, the
Trust has an obligation under s constitulion to
dellver all net taxabie income fo the unit holders at
the end of gach period, conseguently the frusiees
consider that the unils on issue will be
appropriately classified as & finansial liability of the
trust undsr AIFRS. As a result, disiibutions paid to
unit holders are raclassifigd as finance cosls in the
income statement.

Note Previous GAAP Effect of AIERS at.
At 30 June 2008  Transition to 30 June 2008
AIFRS

$ $ $
352,097 . 352,097
- {683,887} (863,887}
{310,154) - {310,154)
{31,700) . (31,700)
10,243 (863,887) (853,844}
2¢ - {30 088} {30,988)
10,243 (30,988) (884 ,632)
{B63,887)
{863,887}
2 2,074,283
1,213,396

10 -
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TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE CAMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDRED 30 JUNE 2008

Note 2008 2005
$ $

HOTE 3: REVENUE
COperating activities
~ rend incorne 1,280,622 344,454
- interest income 3(a} 20,344 7.843

1,300,466 362 097
{a} Interast from:
- Cash &t Bank 20,328 7,843
- financia] institulions 16 .

20,344 7,843

NOTE 4: PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
Profit (losses) from ardinary aclivities has beer delermined afer:
{a} Expenses
Borrowing cosis:
- other persons 705,497 310,154
Remuneration of the auditors for
- audht or raview services 14,400 8,000
- taxallon services 860 -
Guslodian Fees 12,000 3,460
NOTE 6: INVESTMENT IN PROPERTY
PROPERTY
investment properly (at fair value) e EGR.000 (4,400,000
20086 — af Direclors valuation.
2005 — at independoant valuation by LardMark Whlte as stated i the Product Disclosure Statement.
(a) 80 Maribyrnong Streef Footseray (Victorla)
Purchase Cost 14,400,000 14,400,000
Cosls of Acquisition (Ineluding stamp duty and legal costs) R60.812 883,887
Total Cost ‘ e dB260,812 15283887

Contact Date; 24 Dacember 2004 Settfiement Date: 18 March 2005

This property is subject o a reglstered first mortgage lo St. George Bank securing the loan facilify disclosed at Note 7,

- i1
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TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURKNE CAMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008

Notes 2006 2005

(b) Movements In Carrylng Amounts

Movement In the carrying amounts for each class of properly betwsan the baginning and the end of the current financial
year
Investment Property

Balance at tha beginning of the year 14,400,000 -

Initiat purchase at cost “ 15,263,887

Less write-off acquisition cosls - (863,887}

Revaluafion Increase 488 000 .

Carrying amount at end of year e A4B88,000 14400000

NOTE 6: PAYABLES

CURRENT

Unsecured labilitles

Trilogy Funds Management Lid 10,229 20,876

Accruals - Othsr 7,834 17,5680

GST Payable 29,77 20,549

Trilogy Capital Services Pty Lid {Recoverable Expenses) 875,006

Trilogy Caplial Services Pty Lid {Term Deposit interest) 3,217

Accruals — Eslablishment Fee 720,000

47.937 1,457,307

NOTE 7: INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES

CURRENT

Secured Yiabilities

Investac Bank (Australia) Lid - 2,077,216

St George Bank Lid . 170,000
= 2.847 216

NON-CURRENT

Segoured llabitities

Bank loan

St George Bank Lid 8,780,000 9,360,000

Deferrad Borrowing expenses ~ Note 1 (f) {14,860} {18,860)

—L 08040 ____0.3439,140

This loan is secured by registered first morlgage over the 80 Maribyrnong Street Footsoray, Victora properdy fogether
with & reglstared fixed and ficating charge over the assets and underfakings of the frust.

-42-
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TRILOGY MVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE CAMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

NOTE 8: NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNIT HOLDERS

Balance at 1 July 2004

Capital issyed during the year
Establishment and equity rafsing costs
2005 Profit/{Loss} attributable o trust
Sub-iofal

Financing tosts

e Distribitions paid (Note 9)
Balance at 30 June 2005

Capital issued during the year
2006 Profit attributable fo trust
Sub-lotal

Financing cosls

— Distributions paid (Note 93
Balance at 30 June 2008

NOTE 9: DISTRIBUTIONS PAID

Under the Trust Constitution "Distributable Income” may include Income and capilal components defermined In

Number of Units  Confributed Unit Retalned Total
on lssug Capital Earnings
§ $ $
2,902,702 2,902,702 2,902,762
(807,674) {807,574)
(853,644) (853,644)
2,902,702 2,095,028 (863,544) 1,241,384
{30,988) (30,968)
2,802,702 2,005,028 (884,632) 1,210,386
4,543,748 4,543,748 4,543,748
986,442 986,442
98,734 8,740,586 .
|
(668,083) (568,083) f
7,448,450 5,638,776 (460,349) 8,172,508 |

accordance with & defined formula. Income distributions are based on accounting profit determined under-generally ;

accepted accouniing principles. Capital distributions represent any amount distributed to Unit Holders above accounting
profit and are in relation 1o amorlisation of deferred borowing cosls, logethier with equity returns to lhvestors,

Distributions paid by the Trust are calculated as follows:-

Accounting profit/{loss)

Add amortisafion sxpense
AIFRS adjustment

Less non-cash income - revaization increment

Income distribulion
Capital distribution

Distribution lo unitholders for the year

-13-

Notes

2006 2008
$ 5

986,442 (853,644)
4,000 1,140
863,887

498,000 .
482,442 11,140
75,641 19,848
568,083 30,988

313



TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE CAMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

NOTE 10: CASH FLOW INFORMATION

{a} Reconetlliation of cash

Cash &t lhe end of the financial year as shown In the stalement of Cash Flows
Is reconciled to the related ltams In lhe statement of financial posillon as
follows:

Cash at bank 68,516 422 487
{b} Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with profit from ordinary
activifles sfier income tax
Profititioss) from ordinary activities after income tax 966,442 (853,844)
Revaiuation of property {493,000}
Acaquisitfon costs {ncluded as Investing activity) 863,887
Changes in assets and liabilifies
Increase in receivables 746 {740)
Inorease In other assels 3,788 (32,852)
increase/(decrease) in payables {11,148} 62,303
Borrowing costs - amortised 4,000 4,140
Borrowing cosls - paid - {20.000)
Cash flows from operations oo ABE822 20094
() Credil stand-by arrangemant and loan facilities
Loan facilily — St George Bank 9,380,000 10,13G,000
L.ess drawn down as at 30 June 8,780,000 10,130,000
Undrawn facility B70.000 0
The major facilities are summarised as follows:
The Syndicate had a loan with Investec Bank (Australia) Limited which was fully repaid in September 2005.
The Syndicate has a partly drawn loan facility of $3,360,000 {2005 $710,130,000) with 8t. George Bank Limited
which explres on the 15 March 2010,
The interest rales are fixed.
The loan is secured by a first registerad mortgage avet the property,
NCOTE 11; FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
{2} Financial Rate Risk
The trust's financial instruments conslst malnly of bank funds and foans from banks,
s The Trust does not have any derlvative instruments at 30 June 2006,
& The main risks the entily is exposed to through ils financial Instruments ere interes? rale risk.
& Interest rate risk is managed with fixed rate debt. At June 2006 100% of the frust's debt is fixed to March, 2010.
w The trust Is nof exposed to fluctuations in forelgn cutrencies,
vl .
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TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE CAMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 306 JUNE 2006

{b} Interest Rate Risk

The trust's exposire fo interest rate Ask, which is the risk that a financial instrument's value will flucluate as a result of
changes In market interest rales and the effeclive welghted average interest rales on classes of financial assels and

financial isbilities, is as follows:

Welghted
Average Non
Effective  Fixed Interest  Floating Intarest
Interast Rate Rate Intarasi Rate  Bearing Total
2046 2006 2008 2008 2008
Finencial Assals: % $ $ $ $
Cash 5 z 63,516 - £6.518
Total Financlal Assois = FRE1E . BAE1E,
Financial Liabifilles:
Bank loans and overdrafls “ - - - .
BiBs of exchange and
promissory notes 7 8,780,600 - - 8,795,600
Trade and sundry cradilors - - . 47,937 47,837
Lease abiftles - - - - -
Total Fingnclal Liabifitles e $3, 7510, OO0 = 47,53y . B.BAT 037
Walghted
Average Non
Effective  Fixed Interest  Flosking Interest !
Imterest Rate Rate Interest Rate  Baaring Totat i
2008 2008 2008 2008 2005
L
Financial Assels: & d $ § $
Cash 5 - 422 467 - 422,487
Total Financial Assels - 422 4087 - 422457
Financial Liablities:
Bank loans and overdrafis 11 2,877,216 ~ 2,077,218
Biffs of exchangs snd
profmissory noles 7 10,130,000 - - 18,130,060
Trade and sundry crediors - = - 1,487,307 1.457.307
Total Financial Liabilitles 12,207 2146 x e ABTADT 13 664 523

NOTE 12: FEES PAID OR PAYABLE TO RESPONSIBLE ENTITY AND ITS ASSOCIATES

Managemeni Fees 78;282 22,101

Establishment fae accrued as per the PDS {Incorporated in establishment 720,000

cosis) -

Logai fees - MDRN Solichors {incorporated in establishment costs) - 17,182 1
78,282 759,283

The establishment fee of $720,000 due and payable o the manager was accrued at 30 June 2008 and paid during
2005/G8. |

The managemsnt fee payable to the Manager Is in accordance with the provisions of the Produet Disclosure Statement ‘
dated 21 Fabruary 2006, The fee is calculated at 0,6% pa of the gross value of the assets of the Trust. !

w15 -
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TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE CAMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 34 JUNE 2006

NOTE 13: GUSTODIAN

The Scheme's Custodian is Trust Company of Australla Limited, The Custodian holds
fitle 1o the assels of the Scheme, in ifs name on behalf of the Scheme. The lolal vaiue of
assets held by the Custodian at 30 June 2008 |s $14,068,516 (invesiment property
$14,898,000 and Bank funds $68,518).

The Custodian is enfitied to an annual administration fee of $12,000,

The relationship between the Cuslodian and Responsible enlity is sat out In the Custedial
Agreement.

NOTE 14; SEGMENT REPORTING
The Trust operates in one business and geographicaf segment which is the rental of
commercial property in Victoria, Australia,

NOTE 18: SYNDICATE DETAILS

The principal place of business of the syndicale Is:

Trilagy investor Choice Melbourne Campus Office Syndicate
Trilogy Funds Managameni Limited

Level 10, 241 Adelaide Sheel

BRISBANE QLD 4000

The princlpal activity of the syndicate during the financial year was investment,

The Syndlcate Is a unit lrust astablished by constitulion dated 13 December 2604,

- 16 -
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TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE GAMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE
DIRECTORS' DECLARATION OF TRUSTEE COMPANY

The directors of Triiogy Funds Management Limited ("The Respensible Enlity) declare that:

1. the financial slalements and nofes, as sei oul on pages 4 (o.18 present faily the syndicates nancial posifien ss
st 30 June 2008 and the performance for the financlal year ended on that date In accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirsments;

2. in the directors’ opinion thers are reasonabie grounds to befleve that the syndicate will be able to pay ils debls as
and when they bacome dus and payabla,

This declaration is made in eccordance with aresojution of lhe Board of Directors of the Responsible Enlity.
//

f /f #
%//; \Zﬁf {’ﬂr/

Mr R, Bacon

e

o

Director

Dated this S5 F ™ day of October 2006

17 -
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A WEALTY

BUSINESS & FINANCIAL ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPQORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
TRILOGY INVESTOR CHOICE MELBOURNE CAMPUS OFFICE SYNDICATE

Matters Relating to the Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financlal Report

The auditor's report relates to the financial report of Trifogy iwastor Choige Melboume Campus Offics Syndicate
for the period ended 30 June 2008 included an the Trilogy Capital Group web site. The fund's directors are
responsible for the integrily of the Trilogy Capital Group web site. We have not been engaged to raport on the
integrity of this web site. The auditor's report refers only to the statements named below. It does not provide an
opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these statements, if users of this report
are concernad with the inhersnt riske arising from elecirenic data communications they are advised to refer to the
hard copy of the audited financial report to confirm the information included in the audited financlal report
presented on this web sits,

These malters also relate to the prasentation of the audited financiat report in other electronic media inciuding GD
Rom.

Scope

We have audited the financial report of Trillogy lnvestor Choice Melboumne Campus Office Syndicate for the
financial year ended 30 June 2008 comprising of the Statement of Financtal Performance, Statament of Financlal
Position, Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financlal stalements, The trustes is responsible for the
financial report. We have canducted an independent audit of this financial report In order to express an opinion on
it to ihe members of the syndicats,

Our audit has been conducted In acoordance with Austrafian Auditing Standards 1o provide reasonable assurance
whether the financial report is free of materlal misstaterment. Our procedures included examination, on a test basls,
of evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures In the financlal report, and the evaluation of accounting
policles and significant accounting estimates, These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion
whether, In all material reapects, the financlal report is presented fairly in accordance with Accounting Standards
and other mandatory professional reporting requiraments in Australia and the trust deed so as o present a view
which Is consistent with our understanding of the syndicate's financial position, the results of its operations and its

cash flows.

The audit opinion expressed In thls report has been formed on the above basis,

Audit Opinlon

in our opinion, the finahcial repott of Trllegy Investor Cholce Melbourne Campus Office Syndicate prasants fairly In
accordance with appficable Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements and
statutory requirements In Auslralia, the financlal position of Trilogy Investor Choics Melbourme Campus Office
Syndicate as at 30 June 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the financial year then ended.

Gt fewa i

MGl Wihite Hancock

G

¢ M Douglas
Partner

Brishane

8 Ccolober 2006
“ 18-
MG White Hancock Chattered Arcountants
MG White Hancoek Pty LTd 40K ce 295 269 ¢93
Level 1, 200 Mary Strest; GPG Box 1087, Brisbane Qld 4001 Australia
@517 3002 4800 £ +61 7 3229 5603 & wh@mgiwh.com.au wnwmgleh com.su

MOE i & woddwicde sssadation of meependent audring, sReurtng end consttiag e,
Each memdies firm pndeniskes no rexponsibillty for the stthiltes wotl, epinlen or setvlee of the ather mumber Fime.
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ZINEWES

Blectronic Statement

Testpac
Business Cheque Plus Account :,

Branch Nams and Address
Brisbane

260 Gueen Street
Brishane QLD 400G I

BSB Account Number

Agcount name
TRILOGY FUNDS MANAGEMENT LIMITED (FORMERLY MDRN INVESTMENTS

LTD)

Customer Number
64864880 TRILOGY FUNDS MANAGEMENT LIM..

|

Acsount enguiries 7% [
Calt Westpac Telephone Baniing |
132 032 within Austraiia ;
+61 2 9293 9270 if calling from overseas i
I

: |
Details of your account From Last Stetement Deted 20 Dec 2012 lo 18 Jan 2013 i
Date  Description of transaction Debit Credit Batance !
2072 STATEMENT OPENING BALANCE “( ' 714,676,972 ‘
I

H

i

Statement No, 104 Page 1 of 4

Westipne Hanking Denraton AEH I3 U07 457 141 AFEL Mo, 233714
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Llectronic Sratement
Clifesipac

Business Cheque Plus Account

Accolnl naime
TRILOGY FUNDS MANAGEMENT LIMITED {(FORMERLY MDRN iINVESTMENTS

Details of your account From Last Statement Dated 20 Dec 2012 to 18 Jan 2013

Date  Description of transaction Debit Credlt Baiance

28 Dec Direct £ntry Drawing De Draw 1d407077 Tim

Cheque Account -~ e 845,65567‘ N ) 176,211.54

Statement No. 104 Page 2 of 4

Westpae Hankong Corporadon ARN 83007 4507 141 AFSL Mo, 234714

320



Electronic Staltement

%wmma&c

Business Cheque Plus Account

Account name
TRILOGY FUNDS MANAGEMENT LIMITED {FORMERLY MDRN INVESTMERNTS -

Details of your account From Last Statement Dated 20 Dac 2012 to 18 Jan 2013

Debit Credit Balance

Date  Descriptlon of transaction

Including details of produst bensiils and appilcabie fees and charges, is
onlalned in the Product Disclosure Statement (PDS) or other disclosure
¥ you have any other enquitiss, you can caill Telephone
overseas.

Further Information in relation to your account,
avallable on reques!, That information is also ¢
document for your account. For a copy of that document, or
Banking on 132 032 from Australia or +61 2 9293 9270 from

The above Closing Balance smount may not be the same as the balance payable lo you en closure of your aceount
(ihe "termination value'). Detalls of the termination value can be oblained by calling Telephione Banking on the numbers
quoted above. Further information on how to close accounts, inchiding calcuiation of the terminalion vaie, Is coniatnag
in the Product Disclosure Statament (PDS) booklset or clher disclosure dosumsni for your account,

with, or complainls relating 1o, your

We have an intermnal process for handiing and resolving any problem you may have
Disciasure Staternant (PDS) or

account of this product. nformation about lhis process can be found In the Produat
othar disclosure document for vour account, or you can contact us on 1300 130 457,

Convenience af your fingertips!
Pay your bills, transfer funds or jusl enduire on your accoun! balancas,
i's as simple as caliing Telephone Banking

Statement No, 104 Page 3 of 4

Weslpnc Zanking Gooralion ABN 33 U7 457 141; AFSL Ne, FRRIAP]
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Pw-26

balmainTrRILOGY

12 June 2013

Dear Unitholder

Following our Fund Update in April, Balmain Trilogy, as the Investment Manager of the Pacific First Mortgage
Fund {the Fund), is pleased to provide you with a detailed update in respect to litigation and the remaining
assets in the Fund. A fult Asset Review schedute is provided as part of this update,

CBA finance facility
As outlined in our letter of 11 Aprdl 2013, the six-month extension of the Fund's finance Tacility {Facility) with

the Commonwealth Bank of Australia (CBA) has been finzlised. This will enable the orderly realisation of the

Fund's residual assets and the gradual reduction of the Fadility to continue. Further extension of the Facility
was necessary for the continuation of the Fund as a going concern and the orderly realisation of assets in the
ordinary course of business (as detailed in the December 2012 Half-Year Financial Report). g

The extended Facility contains the following pertinent terms: i

¢ expiry date of 28 Avgust 2013;
e 75% of net settlement proceeds banked by the Fund to be remitted to CBA within five business days and

applied to the principal debt;
¢ no further capital repayments, distributions and redemptions without CBA's prior written consent; and

¢ mandatory reduction of the Facility to $6 million by 29 March 2013.

Subsequent to 31 December 2012, in accordance with the above terms, we have repaid an additional

$7.10 million to CBA, thereby reducing the debt under the Facility to $2.90 million and adhering to the
abovementioned 29 March 2013 mandatary amaortisation covenant. Since Trilegy Funds Management Limited's
(Trilogy) appointment as Responsible Entity and Balmain Trilogy's appointment as Investment Manager, we have
reduced the debt owing under the Facility by approximately $88 million ($0.10 per unit).

The continuous allocation of cash resources towards debt reduction is required under the terms of the extended
agreement. The original Facility was provided to City Pacific Limited (Receivers and Managers Appointed) {In
Liquidation} {City Pacific), the former responsible entity of the Fund, in March 2005. In order to secure repayment
of the Facility, CBA took a first-ranking security over all existing and future assets of the Fund. Upen replacing
City Pacific as the responsible entity of the Fund in July 2009, Trifogy inherited the Fund's contractual obligations
under the Facility. We remain committed to strict compliance with these obligations, which comprise an integral

aspect of the responsible management of the Fund,

Balmain Trilogy lnvestment Management Ply Limited ABN 58 36 832 94§
Inwestment Manager of the Pacific First Morigage Fund

Level 10, Brishane Club Tower, 247 Adelaide Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
GPO Boy 548, Brishane QLD 4001

Tak 07 3503 6100 Fax: 07 3503 4116 www balmaintiiogy.com.au
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Litigation

Federal Court proceedings against former City Pacific directors and officers

The Fund's claim against former directors and officers of City Pacific in the Federal Court is progressing, The
clairm asserts breaches of statutory duties under the Corporations Act 2601 {Cih) by Messrs Sullivan, McCormick,
Donaldson and Swan in their capacity as former credit committee members, officers and/or directors of City
Pacific. At the centre of the original claim were foans provided by City Pacific to borrowing companies Bullish
Bear Holdings Pty Ltd (Receiver and Manager Appointed) (Bulfish Bear) and Atkinson Gore Agricuttural Pty Lid
{Receiver and Manager Appointed) {In Liquidation) (AGA) between 2006 and 2009, which caused substantial
losses to the Fund.

Trilogy filed and served an Amended Statement of Claim ony 8 March 2013, incorporating additional claims
relating to, among others, alleged backdating of documentation and failure to prevent additional improper

advances granted by City Pacific in relation to the AGA facility,

A directions hearing was held on 14 March 2013 betore Justice Jacobson in place of Justice Emmett, who was
appointed to the NSW Court of Appeal effective 7 March 2013. Messrs Sullivan, Swan and Donaldson were
required to file their defence to Trilogy's Amended Statement of Claim by 5 Aprit 2013 and filed this with the
courton 17 April 2013, Trilogy filed its evidence in reply, as well as its supplementary evidence and render

bundie, on 13 May 2073,

Defendants’ application to transfer proceeding

in February 2013 the defendants advised that they would apply for a transfer of the action to the Supreme
Court of Queensland, where a separate recovery action against guarantors, Messrs Hartnett and Perry, is being
conducted arising out of loan advances to Bullish Bear, The Court directed that any such application be lodged
by 8 March 2013, On 6 March 2013 Trilogy’s solicitors sent a letter to the defendants’ solicitors detalling why
such transfer application would fail. Iif the proceeding was tansferred 10 the Supreme Court of Queensland this
would likely have resulted in a significant delay in obtaining & trial date and substantial increase in costs, The
defendants chose not to ledge their application by B March 2013, They subsequently delayed maore than two
months before ultimately lodging their application on 15 May 2013, & few days before the matter was listed for a
pre-trial directions hearing at which Trilogy had indicated it would be seeking a trial date.

In narrowing the focus of Trilogy's claim to the AGA advances, the defendants’ application to transfer the case

10 the Supreme Court of Queensland was made redundant. On 21 May 2013, during the pre-trial directions
hearing, Justice Griffiths dismissed the transfer application. Trilogy has always maintained the transfer
application would fail. However, the hearing of that application itself would have caused delay end additional
costs. This has now been avoided, The recovery action against Messrs Hartnett and Perry in relation to the Bullish

Bear loan facility separately continues in the Supreme Court of Queensland,

Article in the Gold Coast Bulletin
On 24 May 2013 an article was published in the Geld Coast Builetin regarding some of the everis referred 1o

above, There were a number of inaccuracies reponted in that article, as detailed below:
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1. The title of the article, “City Pacific in King Tide win”, is misleading. Trilogy's claim in respect of advances
made to Bullish Bear has been withdrawn so as to reduce the number of issues in dispute and focus on the
claims against the defendants regarding loan advances made 1o AGA over lands known as “Saddleback”
(situated in Canungra, in the Gold Coast hinterland). The court has not considered (let alene determined) the

Bullish Bear claims, This is not a "win” for the defendants.

2. The reference to the $25 million claim regarding Buliish Bear is inaccurate. The claim refating to Bullish Bear

was for $16.9 million plus interest, as was set out in the claim.

3. Similarly, the reference to the $35 million claim stilf being pursued is inaccurate. The claim relating to the
loan advances ta AGA s for $37.2 million plus interest, as detated in the Further Amended Statement of
Claim filed by Trilogy on 22 May 2013, It follows that the Bullish Bear claim did not constitute "half” of the
current action,

4, Thereis ne “second case” regarding Bullish Bear brought against the defendants. The AGA and Bullish
Bear claims formed pait of a single action commenced by Trilogy against the defendants in April 2012,
Trilogy's recovery action against the Bullish Bear guarantors, which is proceeding in the Supreme Court of

Queensland as indicated above, is a separate and distinct claim.

IMF funding of the action against former City Pacific directors and officers and related claims

Far reasons of its cwn IMF has elected notto continue funding the Fund's action against former City Pacific
directors and officers and related claims. The Fund has incurred no costs in relation to the examinations,
investigations anc other activities undertaken by IMF in pursuing these matters to date. However, as detailed
above, the Fund continuas to pursue its action against previous directors and officers of City Pacific with the
benefit of the invastigations and discoveries achieved whilst IMF were funding this claim. We will continue to
vigorously pursue this action.

Action against Kosho and City Co in the Supreme Court of Queensland

in May 2010 Kosho Pty Ltd (Receiver and Manager Appointad) (Kasho), a borrower of the Fund, and City Co Pty
Ltd (Receiver and Manager Appointed) (City Co}, a third party morigagor of the Fund, commenced an action
against Trilogy (as Responsible Entity of the Fund} in the Supreme Court of Queensland (Kosho Proceedings).
Kosho alleged that Trilogy had breached the 2009 Finance Facility granted by the Fund to it. Koshe claimed
damages of $80 million {later reduced to a claim for damages of approximately $40 mitlion). Consequently, in
September 2010 Trilogy commenced a recovery action against the guarantor of the 2009 Kosho Finance Facility,

also in the Supreme Court of Queensland {Guarantee Proceedings).

Judgment in both proceedings was handed down by Justice Applegarth on Wednesday, 29 May 2013, who

determined the following:

e Trilogy was successful in the Kosho Proceedings, with all of the clalms made by Kosho and City Co
dismissed, save cne discrete claim (see below); and

»  Trilogy was wholly successful in its claim in the Guarantee Proceedings.
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The Court found that:

¢ Trilogy:

- had not breached the 2009 Finance Facility in failing to advarice 1o Kosho funds under the Finance Facility;

- did not engage in misleading and deceptive conduct;

- did not engage in unconscionable conduct; and

e Koshe and City Co failed to priove their case and failed 1o establish the basis upon which their cidimed oss
was calculated, Consequently, the Court dismissed Kosho's and City Co's claim for damages.

The Court otherwise awarded Kosho and City Co nominal damages of $10 on a discrete part of thelr claim.

in the Guarantes Procsedings, the Court awarded judgment in favour of Trilogy in the order of $14.5 million.
Although costs have yet to be ordered by the Court, in its reasons for judgment, the Court expressed its
prefiminary view that Trilogy should be awarded full costs on an indemnity basis in the Guarantee Proceedings
and 85% of its costs on a standard basis in the Kosho Proceedings. The mattar is next in Court in mid-June 2013

for the formalisation of orders.

Asset update

The management and realisation of the Fund’s remalining mortgage assets continues amid uncertain market

conditions. The following assets were sold by the Fund between 1 July 2012 and 30 May 2013:

Assey No, Locatmn Asset type Securities sold Grass recovery Status
1 Surfers Pdradlse Cormmercial Unit 1 $1,250,000 Sold
QLD _

3 Clagiraba QLD Rural Residential Development 16 $5135000 PanlySold
4 Hervey Bay QLD Vacant Residential Development Site 2 $134,000 Seold
18 Wakerley OLD Comp!eted Residential Dwellings 4 $5,355,000 Sold
20 Braeside VIC Vacant Industrial Lots | 2 $1.866,880  Partly Sold
24 Hope Island QLD Completed Residential Units 5 $1 ,?’3@,-000 Sold

26 Broadhedch Q' Rewden@ad’ Um?s 11 $2,782,00D Sold

28 HeweyBayQLD  Vacant Resldentml Land 1 WO 000 Sold"
30 Southport QLD independent Living Urits 1 §1,860000  ParlySeld

37 Martha Cove VIC wVacant Lendand Marma Be["th T2 $ ? 0 GGO“WPartly uold<
39 Martha Cove VIC Compieied ReSidentsal Dwellings 4 $2,320, O(‘O Soig
39 Maﬁul;;m(?wo.\;;‘:/‘iwc Precinet 1 - Subdtvndod Residential Lots 12 $2,364 Oée Pantly Sui:{
Fund's Property Broadbeach Qib Resxdenhal Unlts 1 ‘5225 OOO. So!;j'
Total i 64 $27, 081 946

As previously indicated, 75% of net asset disposal proceeds recetved by the Fund are required to be remitted 1o

CBA to reduce the debt owing under the extended Facility.
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As at 31 March 2013, the impaired value of the remaining mertgage assets of the Fund was $110.11 million.
As shown in Figure 4 (below), 67% of the Fund's remaining assets (by number) comprise vacant land (primarily
residential) located on the Gold Coast and in Victoria, As we've previously advised Unitholders, demand for
unimproved development properties remains soft in the aftermath of the Global Financial Crisis due to a
shortage in development and construction finance and an oversupply of properties of a similar nature to the

Fund's in the above markets.

Figure 1 shows the aggregate net value of assets per location as a proportion of the total net asset value of the
Fund as at 31 March 2013. Figure 2 shows the aggregate number of assets per location as 2 proportion of the
total number of Fund assets as at 31 March 2013, As these Figures show, the majority of the Fund's remaining
assets by number are concentrated in Martha Cove and are more evenly distributed by value between Martha

Cove, South Fast Melbourmne and the Gold Coast.
PFMF Assets by Location {Value) PFMF Assets by Location (Number)
(Figure 1} (Figure 2)

Qb Rels]

VIC - Martha Cove VIC - Martha Cove

VIC - Other VIC - Other

Towt

$110,105.24

Figure 3 shows the aggregate net value of assets per sector as a proportion of the total net asset value of the
Fund as at 31 March 2013. Figure 4 shows the sggregate number of assets per sector as a proportion of the
total number of Fund assets as at 31 March 2013, As these Figures show, the remaining assets of the Fund

chiefly comprise unimproved, vacent development land by both value and numbier,

PFMF Loans by Sector {(Value) PFMF Loans by Sector (Number}
(Figure 3) {Figure 4}

= Commercial Cammercial

s
Resiclential g‘g/&" Residential
Vacant Land Vacarit Land
Total Totat
$110,105.24 12

Our realisation strategy centres on maximising the value of assets and is underpinned by comprehensive, well-
funded national or regional marketing campaigns {depending on the nature and value of assets} in multiple

media outlets in order to achieve fair market value,

t
i
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The remaining assets of the Fund as at 30 May 2013 hava been dassified according to the following categaries,
which indicate the timeframe in which recoveries are expected to be achieved. Detailed information on sach of

the remaining assets is provided in the full Asset Review, on page 9 of this Update.

% of % of
% of Qverall  Rémaining  Remaining
Assets Portfolic Portfolio

Category Description No. of Loans {by Na.) (byNo) (byValue)
Short Term Recoveries expected in the next 6 months 3 7 3% 30 O% 14 7%
Medium Term . Reé;;;ri-es anticipated inthe coming 6-12 months 0 o O%h o 0% O%w
Long Term Recoveries exp@cted in 1 year or longer 2 4.9% 20.0%

Sold or Refinanced  Previously sold or refinanced (debt sale; 31 7‘* &% ) .(l)%

Marths Cove o Assets refating to Martha Cove 5 12 2% 50 O% o 40 2%
Total A '“"*;1"""““% 100% o 190% o 'EG(}%l

Sale of Assets 1 and 34
Assets 1 and 34 comprise two unimproved develepment sites located on the Gold Coast. Asset 1, known as

the "Hill Precinct” is 4.44 hectares and is located in Carrara; Asset 34, known as the "River Precinct” is 40.46
hectares and islocated in Nerang. The properties were taken Lo market separately by their respective receivers
and managers in Aprit 2013 as paft of a comprehensive, nationwide "expressions of interest’ (EO! campaign

managed by Savills Gold Coast, which closed on 30 Apfit 2013,

The properties are now under unconditional contracts, which are scheduled to complete in the coming weeks.
While the sales have been the subject of print and internet media coverage, we are unable to comment on
contract terms due to confidentiatity. We are pleased to inform Unithalders, however, that the sales were above

market value and thig réspective valuations obtained by the receivers and managers in relation to these properties,

Martha Cove

Sale of Precincts 1, 2,8 and 9
As indicated in previous Fund updates, following the adoption of the Martha Cove individual precinct sale

strategy tn late 2012, we commenced negotiations with partiesthat had expressed interest in particular Precincts

in the portfolio. We are p feased to announce that the (ollowmg Precincts are now under contract;

o wDesmpm” .._....‘......,..‘.....‘..Demlk e e o i
#‘IVAU ) Co 'e?ed Land Lots 80 subm\;ad;alc‘} réé?déntx;% Iéé}m;;o*t; | 218
2 Apanment Sttes 5 vacam super- fot‘, cormmmq Masier Plan ag:x;::rf:wa= for 138 apartment’ S!te 3?1
SStage 5 Marina !nland harbour rmarina with Naster Pian approval for 308 berths 378
(104 hawng been wmpleted)
. T

? ~ Retirement Village Site Master PEan approval for 409 mdependem living units:

The above sales are {in part) the product of an intensive 18-month negetiation process, which commenced
after the close of the Octaber 2011 EO! campaigr. The sale of these Precincts will produce an aggregate gross
recovery of approximately $30.46 million, which will be incrementally received by the Fund overa 12-month

period. Settlement of residential fand lots comprising Precinct 1 has commenced.
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While the terms of these sales remain confidential, we are firmly of the view that their corresponding recoveries
represent the fair market value of the constituent Precincts. The outcome is particularly favourable when
considered in light of the $58 miflion 'in one line’ offer we received for the entire Martha Cove portolio, as:

1. the $30.46 million aggregate gross recovery attaches to four of the nine Martha Cove Pracinets, which
reprasents 6% {by area) of the overall portfolio (approximately 15 out of 256 hectares);

2. the Precincts under contract are considered peripheral and lower in value than the remaining Precincts,
mainly due to their physical location and current Master Plan approvals; and

3. inlight of the unification of Precinct 4 (as detafled below), the Fund's remaining Martha Cove exposures will
include the only Master Plan-approved commercial precinct in the estate, which is expected to bolster the
saleability and marketability of the remaining Precincts (particularly Precinets 3, 4 and 4).

Acguisition of the Commercial Precinct
Baimain Trilogy has arranged the purchase the ‘Commercial Precinct’ on behalf of the Fund; the property

consists of the following three separate lots:

Master Plan approval

Lot Plan of Subdiviston Area (SQM} {residential dwellings}

S22 4353104 2,802 34

523 4353100 2,000

524 4353104 1,012 10
12,814 44

These lots sitwithin (and are landlocked by} Precinct 4 and adjacent to Precinct 3 but were not actually
controlled by the Fund historically. Figures 5 and 6 below show the proximity of the Commercial Precinct relative

to Fund controlled assets.

Figure 5: Master Flan highlighting the Commaercial Figure 6: Master Plan showing the nearby Martha
Precinct relative to Precinets 3 and 4 Cove Stages and lots

Stage 2ZH {lot 517} -
Precinct 3

Stages 2F & 2E -
Precinct 4

Precinct 4

Pracinct 3
Development Site

Stage 2 Marina
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The split in ownership between these development lots has historically created considerabie issues {and
increased costs) for the Fund and the vendor of the Commaercial Precinct. These issued have negatively affected
the saleability of the respective Precincts due to the lack of feasible development options. As such, when the
Commercial Precinct was put on the market in its current, unimproved condition, we seized the opportunity to
improve the Fund’s land holding position.
Precincts 3 end 4, with the addition of the Commercial Precinct, form a cohasive land parcel featuring the
{olfowing infrastructure and approvals:
*  Pracinct 3: an existing, fully-operational, income-producing 234-berth marina;
*  Commercial Precinet:

o Master Planapproval for 44 residential dwellings on lots 522 and $24 with unobstructed water views that

stretch to the south of the portfelio {refer to Figures 7 and 8, below); and
o potential fora 2,400 SOM retail/commercial development on lots S23 and $24 (subject to Counci?
approval);

¢ Precinct 4

o Master Plan approval for 60 waterfront apariments; and

o 31 completed marina berths (highlighted in green on Figure 7.
This represents a highly attractive investment proposition and will form the most valuable section of the Martha
Cove asset portfolio,
Thus, we regard the acquisition as a commercially beneficial and necessary defensive strategy aimed at
protecting and enhancing the value of the Fund's exposures at Martha Cove, which is respectiully believed to be
in the best interests of Unitholders,
While we are not at liberty to givulge the terms of the acguisition, we can advise Unitholders that the transaction
is scheduled to settle after the maturity of the extended CBA Facility. The acquisition will not conflict with or
impinge on its covenants, ensuring that the Fund continues to adhere to its contractual obligations under the
FacHity.

Figures 7 and 8: approximate surveys of Precinct 4 and the Commercial Precinct {in green and yellow,

respectively} showing their relative position and proximity to existing marina infrastructure and waterways.
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Remmaining Martha Cove Precincts
The following Martha Cove Precincts remain unsold and will be progressively taken to market in the coming

menths as part of the Fund's individual precinct realisation strategy:

jreciﬁct Deséription Details Stze (Ha)
3 Stege 2 Marina 234-berth marina spanning four fingers and including on-water facifities 3.88
4 Development Site 2 superlots comprising 31 completed marina berths and Master Plan 4.04
approval for 60 apartments
5 Stage 3 Marina and Master Plan approval for 51 marina berths and future designation of a 200-dry 474
Boat Ramp berth facility (subject to Council approvalj
& Waterfromt Land Lots  Brindabelia Point, corviprising 21 fully-serviced residential land fots, each with 252

a completed correspeniing riiarina berth

7 Balance Land Vast rural land holding adjacent to the established Martha Cove porifolio 225.65
comprising seven land parcels

Hardship
The Fund's kardship program continues to be suspendsd until further notice due to the Fund's liquidity

constraints and in fing with the terms of the extended CBA Facility. Consequently, no applications can be
considered at this time,

Capital Repayments
As indicated in April's Fund Update, subject to the materialisation of our asset recovery projections, Fund's

licquidlity and the timely repayment of the CBA Facility, we expect to récommence the return of capital in the
fourth quarter of the 2013 calendar year.
Piease do not hesitate to contact Balmain Trilogy Client Services on Freecall 1800 194 500 or email contact@

hatmaintrilogy.com.au should you have any queries.

Yours sincerely,

o/

Rodger Bacon Andrew Griffin
Joint Chief Executive Jaint Chief Executive
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ASSET REVIEW

SECURITY PARTICULARS TARGET REALISATION
LGCATION ASSETTYPE
ASSET Carrara QLD Vacam Residential Land Under Contract - $hart Term

CURRENT STATUS
Securfty is subject to an unconditional contract of sale scheduled to settle in the caming weeks,

ASSET 1 Surfers Paradise QLD Commercial Unit

CURRENT STATUS
Security sold in May 2013 and the net proceeds have been received by the Fund.

ASSET 2 Broadbeach QLD Completed Cornmercial Unit

CURRENT STATLIS
Security sold, Full ameunt of the loan recovered and paid to the Fund.

ASSET & Clagiraba QLD Rurat Residertial Development Short Term

CURRENT STATUS
Realisation of the security continues, with 22 of the 25 lots having beer sold and the niet
proceeds have been received by the Fund.

Vacant Residential
ASSET 4 Hervey Bay QLD Development Site

CURRENT STATUS
Twe vacant land lots comprising the security were sold together in January 2013 and the
ptoceeds have been received by the Fund.

Vacant Residential
ASSET 5 iHervey Bay QLD Developrment Site

CURREMT STATUS
Full recovery achieved through realisation of the security.

ASSET & Sovereign Islands QLD Completed Residential Dwelling

CURRENT STATUS
Securfty sold following completion of miner works and the net proceeds have been received
by the Fund.

10
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SECURITY PARTICULARS TARGET REALISATION
LOCATION ASSET TYPE
ASSET 7 Pimnpama QLD Vacant Residential Land
CURRENT STATUS

Securfty sold and the net proceeds haveé been raceived by the Fund,

Vacant Commercial
ASSET 8 Surfers Paradise QLD Development Site

CURRENT STATUS
All security properties sold and the net proceeds have been received by the Fund.

Residential and
ASSET 2 Surfers Paradise OLD Commercial Units

CURRENT STATUS
All security properties sold and the net proceeds have been received by the Fund,

Residential Development Site
ASSET 10 Surfers Paradise QLD and Units

CURRENT STATUS
All security properties sofd and the net procseds have been received by the Fund. |

ASSET 11 Spring Hill QLD Part completed Residential Units
. .

CURRENT STATUS

All security properties sold foliowing completion of construction works and the ret procesds

have been received by the Fund.

ASSET 12 Broadbeach QLD Completed Residential Units

CURRENT STATUS
Al security properties have been sold. The guarantor to the loan has heen declarad bankrupt
and the appointed trustee in bankruptey is investigating potential recovery from the estate,

ASSET 13 Broadheach QLD Completed Residential Units

CURRENT STATUS
All security ptoparties have been sold. The guaranter to theloan has been declared bankrupt
and the appointed trustee in bankryptey is investigating potential recovary from the estate.

11
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SECURITY PARTICULARS TARGET REALIS
LOCATION ASSETTYPE

ATION

ASSET 14 Waitara NSW Completed Residential Units

CURRENT STATUS
All security properties hdve been sold and the net proceeds have been receivad by the Fund.

ASSET 15 Hope isfand QLD Completed Residential Land Lots

CURRENT STATUS
All security properties have been sold and the net proceeds have been received by the Fund.

ASSET 16 The Entrance NSW Part completed Residential units

CURRENT STATUS
All 43 real property securfties have been sold and the net proceeds have besn received by the
Bund, :

ASSET 1Y Melbourne VIC Completad Residential Units

CURRENT STATUS
All security propertiss have been sold and the net procesds have been received by the Fund,

ASSET 18 Wakerley QLD Residential Development Site

CURRENT STATUS

Realisation of Stage 1 of the development, comprising 31 residential dwellings, was
completed in October 2012. Stages 2 arid 3 were sold in February 2013 and the net proceeds
have been received by the Fuhd,

ASSET 19 Melhourne VIC Completed Residential Units

CURRENT STATUS
All security properties have been sold and the net proceads have been received by the Fund,

ASSET 20 Braeside VIC Vacant Commercial Site Leng Term

CURRENT STATUS

We cortinue to pursue the orderly realisation of this 29-hectare industrial site {comprised of

six atfotments). One of the lots, which has been sibdivided into 34 sub-lats, has been taken to -
market via a national auction campaign (adventised in print and electronic media} managed by
Savills and CBRE, which culminated in an on-site auction in May, Subsequently, 7 sub-tots have
gone under contract or under offer {and are exprected to go to contract shortly),

The five unimproved development lots will be gradually released to the market.

12
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SECURITY PARTICULARS TARGET REALISATION

LOCATION ASSETTYPE

ASSET 21 Varsity Lakes QLD Completed Commercial Units
CURRENT STATLS

All security properties have been sold and the net proceeds have been received by the Fund.

ASSET 27 Haidelberg VIC Part Completed Residential Units

CURRENT S5TATUS
All security properties have been sold and the net proceeds have been received by the Fund.

ASSET 23 Canungra QLD Vacant Land

CURRENT 5TATUS !
All security properties have been sold and the net procesds have been received by the Fund,

ASSET 24 Hope Isfand QLD Completed Residential Units

CURRENT STATUS
All security properties have been sold and the net proceeds have been recelved by the Fund.’

ASSET 25 Surfers Paraclise QLD Residential Units

CURRENT STATUS
All security propertias have been sold and the et proceeds have been received by the Fund.

ASSET 26 Broadbeach QLD Residential Unis

_ CURRENT STATUS
5 _ All security properties hava been sold and the net proceeds have been received by the Fund.
Recovery attion against the guarantors to the loan continues.

ASSET 27 Pimparra QLD Residential Land Lots

CURRENT STATUS
Al secuiity properties have been seld and the net proceeds have been received by the Fund,

13
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SECURITY PARTICULARS TARG

T REALISATION

LOCATION ASSETTYPE

ASSET 28 Hervey Bay QLD Vacant Residential Land

CURRENT STATUS
All security properties have been sold and the net proceeds have been received by the Fund.

ASSET 29 Labrador QLD Vacant Retirement Village Site

CURRENT STATUS
All security properties have been sold and the net proceeds have been received by the Fund.

Comptleted Vertical Retirament
ASSET 30 Southport QLD Viilage and Commercial Units Long Term

CURRENT STATUS

Balmain Trilogy has procured the finandal and operational revitalisation of the asset, which
resulted in higher occugancy and trading, thereby reducing its ongaing financial reliance on the
Fund. A new marketing campaign will be implemented shertly to capitalise on the improvement
of the offering, which consists of retirernent units, commerdial amentities and comprehensive on-
site care capabifities. Action against the borrower coritinues.

ASSET 31 Martha Cove VIC Precinct @ - Retirernent Village Site Medium Term - Under Contract

CURRENT STATUS
Under contract as cutlined in the body of this letter.

Completed Commercial
ASSEY 52 Gold Coast QLD Development and Marina Berths

CURRENT STATUS
Security property has been sold and the net proceeds have been received by the Fund,

ASSET 33 Surfers Paradise QLD Residential Development Site

: § CURRENT STATUS
1= Security property has been sold and the net proceeds have been received by the Fund.

ASSET 34 Carrara QLD Vacant Residential Site Under Cantract - Short Term

CURRENT STATUS
Security is subject to an unconditional contract of sale scheduled to settle in the coming
weeks.

14
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SECURITY PARTICULARS TARGET REALISATION

LOCATION SHETTYPE

ASSET 35

Martha Cove ViC Completed Residential Dwellings

CURRENT STATUS
Securily property fras been sold and the net proceeds have been received by the Fund.

ASSET 36

Martha Cove VIC Precinct 3 - Stage 2 Marina Long Term

CURRENT STATUS }
Subject to the Martha Cove development precinct strategy.

ASSET 37

ASSET 38

Martha Cove VIC Precinct 2 - Apartment Site Medium Term - Under Contract

CURRENT STATUS
Under contract as outlined in the body of this tetter.

= Martha Cove VIC Precinct 8 - Stage 5 Marina Medium Term - Under Contract

CURRENT STATUS _
Under contract as outlined in the hody of this letter,

Martha Cove VIC Precinct 5 - Stage 3 Marina & Boat Ramp Long Terrm

CURRENT STATUS
Subject to the Martha Cove development precinct sirategy.

Martha Cove VIC Precinct 6 - Waterfrort Land Lots tong Term

CURRENT STATUS
This site is subject to the Martha Cove development precinct strategy.

Martha Cove VIC Precinct 7 - Balance Land Long Term

CURRENT STATUS
Security will be taken to market in the coming months.

Martha Cove VIC Completed Residential Dwellings

CURRENT STATUS
Security property has been sold and the net proceeds have been received by the Fund.

15
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SECURITY PARTICULARS TARGET REALISATION

LOCATION ASSET TYPE

ASSET 39 Marthz Cove VIC Pracinct 1 - Completed Land Lots Under Contract - Partly Sold

CURRENT STATUS
Under contract as outlined in the body of this letter.

ASSET 40 Martha Cove VIC Precinct 4 - Developmant Site Medium - Long Term

CURRENT STATUS
This site is subject to the Martha Cove development precinct strategy.

¢

ASSET 41 Surfers Paradise QLD Vacant Residential Development Site Refinanced

CURRENT STATUS
Full fcan recovery has been made by the Fund.

Disclaimer:

The information provided herein is provided by Trilagy Funds Manageemant Limited ACN 080 383 679 (Trilogy), AFS Licence 261425 in its capacity as
Responsible Entity of the Pazific First Mortgage Fund ARSN 088 139 477 (Fund). The information contained herein is of 2 general nature and does not
constitute financial product advice. This update has been prepared without taking into account any person's abjectives, financial situaiion or needs,
Because of that, each parsor should, before acting on this update, cansider its appropriateness, having regard to their own sbjectives, financial
situation and needs. The: information comained in this update is current as at the date of this updste and is subject to change without natice, Past
performance is not an Indicator of future performance, lnvestmentin the Fund is subject to investment risk, inchuding possible delays in payment and
{oss of income and pringipat Invested. Naither Trilagy nor hts zssaciates, related entities or directors guarantes the performance of the Fund orthe

repayment af monies invasted.

71 5254 16
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?LA% PiperAlderman

Cur Ref: AKB AEF.384396
Your Ref:
CONFIRMATION OF EMAIL
8 July 2013
Sent.vﬁ-,./ ..... [ LDL D
AT

By Emall: SRussell@Russelislaw.com.au;
dpyers@russelislaw.com.au; icopley@russellsiaw.com.au

Russeils

Level 21

300 Queen Street
BRISBANE QLD 4000

Attention: Mr Stephen Russel!

Dear Sirs

Raymond & Vicki Bruce v LM Investment Management Limited
(Administrators Appointed) in its capacity as Responsible Entity of the
LM First Mortgage income Fund and The Members of The LM First

Mortgage income Fund (FMIF)

We refer to your letter dated 14 June 2013.

Your letter dated 3 May 2013 related to our clients’ then proposed amendment
to apply for access to the books and records, an amendment not utimately

pursued by our clients.

With respect, the conflicted position of your client, LM Investment Management
Limited (LMIM), will not be remedied by your client's administrators offering to
facilitate access fo the books and records of LMIM. Access to the books and
records is a moot point uniess an independent responsible entity is appointed
to properly investigate ciaims against LMIM, its insurers or any third parties and
has the power to pursue claims identified for the benefit of unit holders.

Your client's administrators, in Ms Muller's evidence and the submissicns filed
to date on behalf of your client, appear ‘o confirm that they have no obligation
to investigate claims for the benefit of unit holders. Rather, it is asserted that
the administrators’ role is to leave it to unit holders to investigate claims and
lodge proofs of debt (in relation to potential claims against LMIM) and
otherwise to investigate LM's directors and report any breaches to ASIC,

These proceedings were brought by Mr and Mrs Bruce with the aim of
faciitating the appointment of an independent responsible  entity.
Independence of a responsible entity is paramount to the protection of unit
holders’ interests and one of the benefits in having an independent responsible
entity is that it may investigate any potential claims for the benefit of unit
hoiders, including claims against the previous responsible eniity and its

insurers.

28319585vt

Lawyers

Sydney . Melbourne
Brisbane » Adetaide

ABN 42 843 327 183

Level 23

Governor Macquarie Tower
1 Farrer Place

Sydney NSW 2000
Austratia

DX 10216 Sydney Sfock Exchange

t +81 29253 0969
f +61 29253 9900

www.piperalderman,com.au

Partner;
Amanda Banton

t +61 29253 9929
abanton@piperaiderman.com,au

Contact:
Anne Freeman

Pariner

t +61 26253 85834
afreeman@piperalderman.com.au
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Y PiperAlderman
&d

To Russells

Date; 8 July 2013

Our Ref: AKBAEF 384365
Page: 2

Our clients shouid not be expected to undertake or fund investigations which should properly be
undertaken by the responsible entity. The respensible entity has a duty to act in the interests of
the unit holders and that duty extends to bringing claims (including claims for breach of trust) on
behalf of the trust and ultimately for the benefit of unit holders.

Whilst we appreciate your client’s administrators’ offer to review the books and records, it does
not remedy the principal concern, namely that an independent responsible entity with the power
to bring claims for the benefit of unit holders must first be appointed, as, otherwise the
investigation of claims and the books and records will be a moot point.

Yours faithfully
Piper Alderman

Per:
For
Amanda Bériton

Partner

28319985v1

B2FI3



P -2

LM First Mortgage
Income Fund

incorparating:-
> FlexiAzcount and Fixed Term Investmant
> LM Savings Plan
- Currency Hedged Fixed Term Investment
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How fo use this Product Disclosure Statement

This Product Disclosure Statement ("PDS™ is provided and issued by LM Investment Management Lid as responsible entity for the LM
First Mortgage Income Fund ["Fund”}. investors should read the entire PDS and any supplementary PDS before making a decision to
invest,

This PDS describes the main features of the LM First Mortgage Income Fund, and the invesiment options in the Fund, which are the
Fiexi Account, the Australian Dollar Fixed Term cptions, the Currency Hedged Fixed Term options, and the regular savings plan
opticr known ags the LM Savings Plan, and confains the Application Form,

This PDS alse provides general information in retation to LM Investment Management Ltd ("LM", “Manager”, "we”, "us”, "our”), material
ducuments and other relevant matiers. If helps investors to decida whether the product offered will meat their needs and enables hem
to compare this product with others they may be considering.

Important information

No person is authorised to give any information or to make any representation in connection with the offer of investment described in
this FDS which is not confained 1n this PDS. Any inforrmation or representation not so contained may not be relied on as having been
authorised by the Manager in connection with this offer,

This PDS is an offer which i available to perscns receiving the electronic PDS within Australia but doss not constitute an offer in any
Jurisdiction where, or to any persons to whom, it would be unlawlul to offer this PDS. It ks the responsibility of any ovarseas applicant
to ensure compiliance with all laws of any country relevant to their application. The return of a duly completed Agplication Form will be
taken to constitute a representation and waranty that there has been no breach of such Jaws and that all necessary approvals and
consents have been obtained. An application may oniy be acceoted on an Application Form which forms pari ofthis PDS.

This PDE shouid be read in its entirety. In particular it is important that investors consider the risk factors that could affect the
performance of the Fund, None of an investor's ehjectives, financial situation or needs has been taken into aceount in this PDS and
investors should carefully consider their personal circumstances before deciding whether fo mvest in the Fund. If after reading the
PDE an investor has any questions regarding its contents or the procedure for Investing they shouid contact their financial or other
professional adviser. Past performance should not be taken as an indicater of future performance.  Neither the Manager nor the
custodian gives any guarantee with respect fo the performance of the Fund, the payment of income or the repayment of sapital by the
Furd,

All menetary amounts in this PDS are references to Australian dollars | uniess stated otherwise.

The Manager may change any of the terms and conditions in this PDS. Notice of material changes will be given to investors, nomally in
the form of a replacernent or suppiementary PDS.
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LI investment Management Ltd

LM Investment Managemant Lid ("LM") is a privately owned, Australian funds management company with naticnal and international
operations, With a specialist focus en the mortgage trust sector, LM manages one of Australia’s largest mortgage trusts, the LM First

Mertgage Income Fund ("Fund’}. Through its management of the Fund, LM enjoys active parficipation and recognition as a lender within
Australia's business and property sectors.

The Austrafian Morigage Trust Sector
The Australian managed funds industry is the 4th targest in the world, behind the United States, Luxemburg and France. Established
in the 1960's the Australian mortgage trust sector is 2 signitficant sector within the financial services industry which has evolved 2s

mainstream income investment. It i in fhis sector that LM hes focused ifs expertise to deliver the LM First Mortgage Income Fund, a
competitive income product designed to outperform cash’.

Distribution

Distribution of this income product is through a national and intemational network of financial advisers, wholesale platforms, private
banks, superannuation funds, corporate and institutional investment. Designed specifically for these markets, the Fund offers fajlored

investment options including retall, wholesale, institutional and currency hedged. Product Disclosure Statements for these options are
availabie from your financial adviser or the Manager,

The LM First Mortgage Incoms Fund

LM’s management expertise, feamed with & well defined investment sirategy of selecting only Australian registereg first morigage

securities, cash and at cali securities has aliowed the Fund to deliver uninterrupted interest distributions and maintain the unit price of
$1.00 since inception in 19002

With a niche product LM receives invastments through adviser recommandations in 27 countries. it is pleasing to incorporate multiple
Gurrency investment options in this new PDS.

Compliance within the Reguiated Financial Services industry

LM is registered as an Australian Financial Services Licensee and a Responsible Entity under the Caorporations Act 2001 and is
therefors regulated by the Australian Securities and lnvestment Commission.

Australia enjoys a global reputation for having one of the most efficiently regutated finance sectors in the world. It provides security and

integrity, through & scund, fiexible and strong system offinanciai regulation designed to prevent systemic failure, and avoid unnecessary
burdens on business.

! Since inception the returns paid to investors have cufperiormed cash rates, Past performance is notan indicator of fulure periormance.
Ferformance of the Fund is noi guaranteed and the risks associated with an investment in the Fund are different to cash,
* Past performance is not an indicator of fuiurs perfiormance.
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Investment Objective
¢+ To offer appropriate risk / return premium over cash rates
on a range of different currencies®;
= o offer compefitive inferest distributions: and

To aliow investors a choice of investment currency and
mvestment term.

The Manzger achisves this by being selective with the
investments of the LM First Mortgage Income Fund, which are a
diversified “poal” of registered first mortgages, cash and “at call’
securities.

Benefits of investing
» Ghoice of investment term:;

Choice of currencies with non-Australian doliar currencies
hedged against movements in the Australian doliar

- Australian registered first mortgage security;

»  Appropriate risk premium relative to cash rates®:

= Funds management expertise — managed by specialist
moergage frust manager,

v Nine year management frack record of uninterrupted
income distributions’,

The LM First Mortgage income Fund
investments

The Fund currently invests in a diversified porfolio of Australian
registered first morigages over commercial, residential, indusirial,
retail and vacant land, inferes! bearing cash investments and “at
call” securities.

The assets of the LM First Martgags Income Fund as at 29
February 2008 fotalied $718.403.075 and were made up as
follows:

. Australian Registered First
Mortgage Securities 96%

Cash &"At Calf” Securfies 4%

interest Distribution Rates

interest distribution rates are variable, and will gepend on
incorne earned and expensas paid by the Fund from time to time,
commission payable fo advisers, and on the type of investment
chosen. Investors can obtain details of the most recent interest
distribution rates paid by the Fund in respect of parficular
investment options from their adviser, by telephoning the
Manager on +617 5584 4500 or from the Manager's website at
v L Maustralia.com.”

Investment Options in the LM First
Mortgage Income Fund

Financial advisers have the advantage of tailoring a client's
portiolio for opfimal liquidity and maximum return by biending
mvestment through one or more of the Fund's Flexi Accourt or
Fixed Term investments.

The investment options offered by the Fund provide fiexibilty of
choice for investors. Investors can choose investment currency
and term of their investment by selecting one or more of the
investment options balow:-

Australian Dollar Investment Options
= Flexi Account
The Flexi Account option generally allows investors 30
day access to their funds.8

= Fixed Term Investment
The Fixed Terms offerad by the Fund are as followsf

- dyears = 3years o 2years * 13 months
12months - 6months  : 3months 1 month
Investors may request different termg by applying to the

Manager.
LM Savings Plan

The LM Savings Plan is a savings plan optien that
investors can start with @ minimum investment of $100
and ongoing regular monthly investments of $100 or more
for atleast the first 12 months.

Non-Australian Dolar Currency Hedged Fixed Term
Inivestment Options
Non-Australian dofiar investments in the Fund are hedged
in the respective currency ageinst Australian dollar currency
movements.  The Fund currency hedges 2 non-Austraiian
dollar investment through the use of Forward Foreign Exchange
Centracts ("FFEC™), The FFEC's are faciitated by a globat
investment bank,  Investments may be arranged for most
currencies including -
“USD »GBP “EUR  CAD  -HKD
NZD - THB - CHFand - SEK

Non-Australian Dollar investors can choose the ferm of their
investment by selecting one or more of the invesiment terms
below:#
12 Months
8 Months
= 3 Months
+ 1 Month

ScEbh o upy

The mvestor's invesiment term commences on the date the
Manager setlles the FFEC,

For darification on hedging a specific currency or enguines for
other investment terms please contact the Manager.

Further details regarding each of the Fund's investment opfions
are set out on pages §- § of this PDS.

® Since inception the returns paid to investors have ouiperformed cash rates. Past performance is not an indicatar of future
performance, Performance of the Fund is not guaranteed and the risks assaciated with an investment in the Fund are diferent

to cash,
7 Past performance is not an indicator of future performance.

¢ While the Manager considers any delays unlikely, in certain circumstances the Manager may delay withdrawals from the
Fund by up to 365 days or suspend withdrawals in order to protect afl invesiments. Refer o page 17 of this PDS {"How to

Withgraw").
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L!’\!’ Fiax: Account and Fixed Term Options
Flexi Account
The Flexi Account option generally allows invesfors 30
day access to their funds.®

Fixed Term Investment
The Fixed Tems offered by the Fund are as follows:®

4 years 3years - Zyears © 13months

Zmonths - &Gmonths - 3months - 1 monih
Invesiors may request different terms by applying to the
Manager.

Interest Distribution Rates

Interest distributions are variabie, and will depend on income
earned and expenses paid by the Fund from time to time,
commission payable to advisers, and on the type of invesiment
chosen.  The most recent interest distribution rates paid by
the Fund in respect of the Fund's Flexi Account, Fixed Term
Invesiment and LM Savings Plan options can be obizined
from an investors adwviser, by telephoning the Manager
on +817 5584 4500 or from the Manager's website at
www. L Maustralia.com. ™

interest Distribution Payments for the Flexi Account and
Fixed Term Options

Monthly interest distributions are automatically reinvested.
However investors may choose to have their inferest distribution -

= paid by dirgct credit menthiy or guarnterly to the nominated
financial insfitution account on the Appiication Form;

paid to an nvestor's LM Cagh Performance Fund
investment account; or

r paid as a split interest distribuiion, which means that part
of the interest distribution is paid to an investor's financial
institufion account and the balance reinvested. Further
detalis are set out below.

if no instructions are giver, interest distributions are autematically
reinvested.

Interest distributions are caiculated daily. inferest distributions are
paid within 14 days after the end of the month.  Quarterly interest
distributions are paid within 10 business cays of the quarterly
anniversary of the investiment date.

Interest distributions are paid by direct credit to the accournt
norninated on the investor's Appiication Form,

Split interest Distributions for the Flexi Account and Fixed
Term Options

investors can elect to have & fixed portion of their monthly interest
distribution amount paid monthly o guarterly to their nominated
financial institution account with the balance interest distribution
amount reinvested to their investment account,

This aptional feature aliows investors to properly plan and budget
their financial affairs and is particularly useful for investors who
are relying on investmenis to provide regular payments to maet
everyday expenses.

T use fhe “Split inferest Distributions” feature please complate
the appropriate section of the Application Form attached to this
PDS.

Additional Investments for the Flexi Account and

Fixed Term Options

Investors can chocse to make an additional investment or regular
rnonthly, quarierly or semi-annual additional investments to their
Flexi Account or Fixed Term investment account. See the heading
“Adding to an investment for Australian Dollar Investments Only"
onpage 16 of this PDS.

LM First Mortgage income Fund Fixed Term Commencement
An investment term genarally commences on the day that the
investor's properly completed Application Form {and relevant
supporting documentation) and investment mohey are received
and processed by the Manager.  For exampie, if a properly
completed Appiication Form, supporting documentation, and
investment money are received and processed for 2 12 month
term on 15 January, then the investment term commences on 15
January and ends on 15 January of the following year.

Flexi Account Withdrawal Notice

To withdraw all or part of a Flexi Account investors must give the
Manager written notice. Payment of the withdrawal wil generaliy
oceur within 30 days from recaipt of the written notice.® Whilst the
withcrawal is processed the investmant continues to eam interest,
The withdrawal is paid by direct credit to the investor's account
nominated on the Application Form.

Fixed Term Invesiment Withdrawal Notice

To withdraw aff or part of a Fixed Term investment, nvestors
must notify the Manager in wiifing at least 5 business days prior
to the maturity daie of the Fixed Term investment, Payment of
the withdrawal will generally be made within 30 days after the
maturity date.® Whilst the withdrawal is processed the investment
continues to earn interest. The withdrawal is paid by direct crediit
to the investor's account neminated on the Application Form.

If no withdrawat notice or written notice to change the tem, s
received at fesst 5 business days prior 1o the maturity date the
investment will automaticafly rofl over for a further investment tarm
of the same length.

* While the Manager considers any delays unlikely, in certain circumstanicas the Manager may delay withdrawals from $he Fund by up
to 365 days or suspend withdrawais in order to protect all invesiments. Refer to page 17 of this PDS ("MHow to Withdraw"),

" Past performance is not ar indicator of future performancs.
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LM Savings Plan Option

LM Savings Plan investors can start their savings plan with
a minimum investment of $100 and ongoing regular monthly
nvestments of 5160 or mare for atieast i first 12 months.

investors can choose 10 have their angoing investments paid by
direct dabit on & weekly, fortrightly or monthiy basis. The direct
debit wilt be paid from the account nominated on the Application
Form.

The minimum investment term for the LM Savings Plan is 12
months. Te ensure that savings are maximised no withdrawals
are allowed during the initial 12 month term.

After the initial 12 month pericd investors can make up to 4
withdrawals anhuatly,

Interest Distribution Payments for the LM Savings Plan

interest distributions are calculated dally and reinvested monthly
to an investor's LM Savings Plan investrent account,

LM Savings Plan Additional Investments

Investors can choose to make additional invesiments to their
savings plan at any fime. The minimum additional investment
amount iz $100,

L& Savings Plan Withdrawal Notice

Foliowing the inifial 12 month invesiment pericd investors can
make Uup to 4 withdrawals annually by giving written notice to the
Manager. Payment of the withdrawai will generally ocour within
30 days from receipt of the written nofice,™ The withdrawal is by
direct credit to the account nominated on the Appiication Form.

LM Savings Plan Commencement

An investment ferm generally commences on the day that the
investor's properly completed Application Form (and relevant
supporting documentation) and investment money are received
and processed by the Manager.  For example, if & properiy
complated Application Ferm, supporting documentation, and
investment monay are received and processed for a 12 month
term on 15 January, then the investmant term commances on 15
January and ends on 15 January of the following year.

Performance

The historical retums of the Fund to 29 February 2008 are set
out below. Performance figures are calculaied net of fees and
assume all interest distributions are reinvested. The performance
figures assume a fee of 1.1% pa (including GST) of net assets
is paid fo advisers. No performance figures are provided for the
1 Month Fixed Term option as it commenced at the date of this
PDS, nor for the 13 Month Fixed Term opficn as it commencad
on 20 March 2008. Investors can obtain updated detaiis of the
most recent interest distribution rates paid by the Fund in respect
of particular investment aptions from their adviser, by teiephoning
the Manager on +617 5584 4500 or from the Manager’s website
at www. L Maustralia.com. 12

investment Smths 1y 3yrs® Syrs* Tyrs' Byrs*
4Years 383 778% NIA NIA ONA L N
3 Years 383% TT8% NA O ONA ONA NA
2 Years 383% TT8% T75% NA O NA O NA
12Month Term  370% 7.52% 7.50% 7.60% 7.02% 7.80%
& Month Term 296% 8.00% 6.00% 6.05% 6.32% 645%
3 Month Term 247% 500% 5.00% 502% 5.30%

5.46%
LMFlexiAccount 3.25% N/A  NA  NA  NA A
LM Bavings Plan 3.27% 652% 6.50% NA NA - NA

“Effective annual interest distributions o 25 February 2008, interest distrbution rates
may vary. Past performance is notan indicator of future performance.

" While the Manager considers any delays unlikely, in certain circumstances the Manager may delay withdrawals from the Fund by up
to 385 days or suspend withdrawals in order to proiect afi investments. Refer to page 17 of this PDS (“How to Withdraw™),

“Past performance is not an indicator of futurs performance,
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Kon-Australian Dollar Currency Hedged Fixed Term Investment Options

Non-Austrafian dollar investments in the Fund are hedged
In the respeclive currency against Australian dollar curTerncy
movemenis, The Fund cumency hedges a non-Austraian
dollar investment fhrough the use of Forwarg Foreign Exchange
Contracts ("FFEC™. The FFEC's are ‘aciiitated by a global
investment bark. Investments may be aranged for most
currencies including:-

USD GBP CEUR 1 CAD . HKD  SGD : JPY
NZD - THB - CHFand - SEK

Nor-Australian Dollar investors can choose the term of their
investment by selecting one or more of the investment terms
below:?

=12 Months

k6 Months

v 3 Months

# 1 Bonth

The investor's invesiment ferms commences on the date the
Manager settles the FFEC.

Extended Investment Terms

- Investors may apply to the Manager fo invest in the Fund for an

extended investment period for multiple 12 month investment
terms e.g. i an investor wants to invest for a 2 vear investmant
term the 2 year investrent term will be conducted as 2 rolling 12
month investmentterms. In this case the second investment term
is dealt with in the sare manner as an initial investment. ¥ the
Manager allows the extended investment term, the terms and
conditions of the extended investment term will be the same as
the Fund's investment terms oufiined in the PDS in force at e
time the extended ferm commences. investors will need to contact
thelr adviser or access our website at www.| Maustraliz.com or
tefephone us on +617 5584 4500 prior to the reinvestment temn
to obiain details of the most recent interest distribufion rates and &
copy of the PDS that will apply for the pumpose of the reinvestment,

Non-Austrafian Dollar Currency Hedged Interest Rates
Interest distribution rates are variable, and wit depend on
income eamed and expenses paid by the Fund from fime to ifme,
commission payable to advisers, and on the type of investment
chosen. investors can obtain details of the most recent interest
distribution rates paid by the Fund in respect of parficular
currency investment options from their adviser, by teiephoning
the Manager on +617 5584 4500 or from the Manager's website
atwww.L Maustralia com. ™

Currency Hedge

The Fund hedges a non-Australian dollar investment through the
use of FFECs. Each FFEC requires agreement batwaen the user
{the Fund} and the provider (financial insitution) on the following:-

= currencies to be exchanged;

v the value of each of the currencies to be exchanged;

+  the maturity date of the confract and

»  the rate at which the exchange between currenciss will cocur,

The forward rate is determined by the spot rate {current market
rate} and the inferest rates of the relevant currencies and wil
change as these variables alter,

On acceptance ofinvestmentfunds and the completed Application
Form, the relevant currency is converiad at the prevailing spot
market rate into Australian dollars and units i the Fund issued,
The Fund simullanecusly enters into a FFEC. The FFEC requires
the Fund to deliver an amount of Australian doliars in exchange
for an amount of the refevant forsign currency at a specific time in
the future {the specific time is eguivalent to the investrment term)
at a predetermined exchange raie (forward rate), At the end of the
investment period the Fund converts the eamings of the investor
into the refevant foreign currency at the forward foreign exchange
rate.

Both the spot and forward fransactions are facilitated by a global
investment bank.

This process allows the Fund to offer investors the opporunity
to invest in the LM First Morigage Income Fund and hedge their
investrment against curancy movements,

Currency Hedged initial investment

On receipt of the investment amount and ine completad
Application Form {inciuding relevant supporiing documentation)
the Manager will confirm receipt with the investor's adviser,

The non-AUD invesiment amount is held in the subscription
account untl the Manager exchangss the foreign currency
into Australian dollars and simultaneously hedges the relevant
currency using FFECSs,

Non-AUD investment terms for all currencies commence on the
Gay the Manager setties the FFEC. For exampie, if the properly
completed Appiication Form and supporting documentation for a
12 manth term Investment and investment monies are received
by the Manager on 20 March and the FFEC setties on 22 March
the commencement date will be 22 March and the maturity dafe
will be 12 months fater. The investment commences fo earn
miterest from 22 March.

FFECs are seftled on a daily basis with the global investment
bank.

Investors will be notified by the Manager of the commencement
date of their Investment in writing.

1 While the Manager considers any delays unlikely, in cartain circumstances the Manager may delsy withdrawals from the Fund by up
to 365 days or suspend withdrawals in order to protect all invesiments. Refer to page 17 of this PDS ("How to Withdraw™},

" Past performance is not an indicator of future parformance,



interest Distribution Payments for Non-Australian investments
Interest distributions are calculated for the ferm of the investment
and are reinvested at the end of the investment term uniess the
investor elects to have the inferest distribution paid direct to the
investor account nominated on the Application Form. The interest
distribution is paict within 5 business days of maturity of the original
and any subsequent investraent term.

Investors should note that if they elect f0 have the interest
distribution paid to the investor account nominated on the
Application Form, financial instifufions charge a remittance fee
which wilt be deducted from their interest distribution,

Automatic Reinvestment Default Position

If the investor has not ticked one of the boxes in Section 12 of the
Application Form fo efther redeem of to rollover the investment for
subsequent invastment terms, the following default process wil
apply. At the end of the relevant investment ferm, the invesior's
original investment amount and interest distribufion {unlass the
investor elects to have the interest distribution paid direct to the
account nominated on the Application Form), are automatically
reinvested and rehedgad in the originally nominated currency
for further 1 month investment terms unti the investor provides
the Manager with ionger investment ferm instructions or a wiitten
withdrawai nofice,

investors should complete the Maturity/Rollover Instructions in
Section 12 of the Application Form to ensure that correct rollover/
withdrawal instructions are provided to the Manager.

Investors sheould consult with their adviser to obtain details of
the current PDS and most recent interest, distribution rates prior
to reinvestment.® The current PDS and most recent interest
distribution rates are also available from the office of the Manager
by telephoning +617 5586 4500 or by visifing the Manager's
website sl www.LMaustralia.com. ™

Changing Roflover Investment Terms

Investors can change the term of their investment by giving
the Manager writien notice af least 5 busingss days prior fa the
exisiing maturity date.

Investors should consult with their adviser to obtam details of
the current PDS and most recent interest distribution rates priat
to reinvestment. ™® The current PDS and most recent interest
distribution rates are also availabie from the office of the Manager
by telephoning +617 5585 4500 or by visiting the Manager's
website at www.Lilaustralia.com,®

Notice of Withdrawal

To withdraw all or part of a cumency hedged fixed term
investment. investors must notify the Manager in writing at least 5
business days prior to the maturity date of the current investment
term. Payment of the withdrawal will generally be made within
& business days after the maturity date ™® The withdrawal s by
direct creditto the account nominated on the Application Form,

Please refer to the paragraph on this page headed "Auvtomatic
Reinvestment Defeult Position” for further details of the
consequences of not providing the notice in writing at lsast 5
business days prior to the relevant maturily date.

*® Past performance is not an indicator of future performance.

*While the Manager considers any deiays uniikely, in certain circumstances the Manager may delay withdrawals from the Fund by up

to 385 days or suspend withdrawals to protect all investments. Referto page 17 of this PDS ¢

How to Withdraw™).
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Assets of the LM First Mortgage Income
Fund

The assets of the Fund are a diversified porifeliic of Austraiian
registered first mortgages over commercial, residential, industriat,
retail, vacant land, inferest bearing cash investments and “at call”
sacurities,

The assets of the Fund as al 29 February 2008 totalled
$718,403,075 and were made up as follows:

Australian Registered First
Mortgage Securities 96%

Cash & "At Call” Securiies 4%

Investment Strategy and Structure

The Meanager's investment strategy is to pravide competitive
ivestment returns fom  Austrafian registered first morigage
securities, cash and "atcall' securities. Risk management is g priorty
and the Manager folows a disciplined research driven approach ta
investmeant.

The Manager's Property Research and Analysis Commiitee
("PRAC™. specifically targets locations offering properiy growth
cpportunities and property sectors which are axpected to perform.
The Manager ufitises the information provided by PRAC o raview
and assess its asset alocafion strategy for the mortgage securifies.
As part of its asset alflocation strategy the Manager diversifies the
miorigage portfolic ata number of levels including, sector, geographic
focation, term and loan size.

Alf detision making in refation to the assets of the Fund is handled
through a coltaborative discussion forum of committee structires,
rather than resting with cne persan. Both the broad base of expertise
involved in commitiee discussions fogather with the ohjectivity offered
by voling members of the committess is designed for the uliimate
profection of investor funds. The Cradit Committes is integrat to the
compliance and risk management processes utlised by the Manager
with respect to the selection of registerad first morigage assets for
the Fund. The Credit Committee calis for coliaboration of a broad
base of experiise from the property, fnance, legal and accounting
sectors when evaluating mortgage assets for the Fund. The formal
stricture and collaborative decision making process provided by the
Credit Committee ensures an informed assessment and objective
dedision is made when selecling the firs! merigage assets of the
Fund, For more information in relation to the Credi Committee and
the Manager's lending policies ang procedures refer to the section
headed "Lending Policiss and Procedures of the LM First Morigage
incorne Fund” on this page of the PDS,

Tor enhance investment retums from cash investments the Manager
miay, from time 1o time. invest a proporfion of Fund's cash assets
with other fund managers who specialise 1 income bearng cash
vestments, long ang shoit ferm securties {including  equity
securities and derivatives on seclrities) or mortgage securijes.
Specialist fund managers are chosen following an extensive and
rgorous research process that exemines thedr invesiment styls,
expertise of thelr investment team and 2 range of other factors, The
Manager reviews each speciaiist fund manager's petformance en
an ongoing basis. ensuring that they operate within the mandated
expectaiions and guidelines. As atthe date of this PDS, the Manager
has & policy lirrdting the proportion of Fund asssts invested with other
specialist fund managers to 10%.

The Manager monitors and balances the Fund's portiolio of assets
between cash, “af call’ sscurities and Australian registered first
mongage securiiies, {o ensura-

the delivery of consistent performance for investors:

sufficient liquidity is avaflable for investors redeeming their
investment in the Fund”. The Manager has a fiquicifty
policy that is monitorad by the Board to adeguately manage
payment of withdrawals withir the time period specilied; and
iquidity is available to service the requirements of hoth
existing and new morigage securities,
Since its inception in 1892, the Fund has settled approximately §3.5
bilhion of first mortgagss. To ensure a continued supply of loans
for the portfolio, the Managers Commarcial Lending Deparment
markets s property related expertise, experience and lending
services throughout a network of Australian loan onginators,

Lending Policies and Procedures of the
L First Mortgage Income Fund

The Manager is selective in its choice of morigages and adheres o
prudent lending parameters. The Fund follows strict fending policies
and procedures as detailed below:

Assessment of the borrower - the Manager endsavours to

maet gvery borrower fo assess character and Business

aecumen;

+ Al mortgages are subject to the Manager's rigorous ade
diligence process including approval by the Manager's
Credit Committee:;

Afirst monigage is aiways regisiered on property heid as the
primary security;

Tne Manager has every security property valued by one
of the Manager's panel valuers or by a valuer rmeeting the
Manager's standards for inclusion on its panel and adhering
to the Manager's vaiuation guideiines:

The Managsr does net accept vahuafions performed on
the instruction of borrowers. The Manager requires that
valuations be provided on the Manager's instructions, or that
valuers confirmthat their valuations adnere o the Manager's
requirements;

The valuer must have appropriate professional indemnity
insurance

The veluer must cerfify that they are independent of bath the
bomower and security property; Fia fL

An updated valuation will generaliv be- Leg where 2 loan
termn is extended or a logr§ ctherwise Taried. An updated{
valuafion wit alse genssally be seqiifed for commercal
foans at 24 month intervals and for construction laans at 12
month intervals. The requirement for an updated valyation
may be waved where the Manager considers that an
updated valuation would serve no usefyl purpose (eg where
itis cemonstrabie thai properfy values have increased or not
changed i the focality of the property, where a property under
construction 48 significantly presoid, whers 2 commerdial
pioperty has long term lemses in place, where a sale

or rafinance is imminent or where the loan o valuation ratio
ofthe property is fow):

The Manager has a palicy ofdiversifying morigage securiies
geographically and by property type:

The Manager has 2 policy of generally not exceeding the

" Wrile the Manager considers any delays uniikely, in certain circumstances the Manager may delay withdrawals from the Fund by up
te 388 days or suspend withdrawals i order to protec: all nvestments. Refer to pags 17 otthis PDS (*How to Withdraw™.,
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following loan to valuation ratins -
*  B6.67% for constructionand development loans; and
¢ 75% for commercial foans:

The consfitution of the Fund does not aliow the Manager
fo exceed a loan to valuation ratio of 85% for any one loan
exceptin the eventofdefault This could ocour for example,
where Interest iz being capitalised while the security
property fs baing marketed and soid, or where the Manager
determines that expendilure should be incumed to improve
the security property prior to sale {the Manager considers a
laan to be in default when interest payments have not been
received in breach of the loan agreement, or the loan term
has expired without repayment of principal);

= One of the tools the Manager empioys to enhance income
into the Fund is to baiance the assets of the mortgage
porffolic  between commercial icans and  selective
developmentioans:

# A seviceabllity analysis is performed to evaluate the
financial capacity of each asplicant borrower including
checking the credit history of each borrower through a credit
bureay,

Further information i relation to investment policies and ending
criteria is cutiined on page 31 of this PDS ("Additional Information™.

To the extent that they may affect the value or performance of an
underiying investment the Manager may take into account labour
standards, or environmental, soclal or athical considerations
when making, retaining or realising an investment in the Fund.
The Manager has no predetermined view about now far such
matters wif e taken into account, and the Manager will make a
cetermination on such issues on a case by case basis.

LI First Mortgage income Fund Arrears
Management

The Manager has documented arrears management processes
which are impiemented in the event that a martgage loan goes
it defaull. Amears loans are managed by a team of experienced
personnel. The documented processes inciude the following:

Dishonoured payments or other defaults are referrad to
the Arears Manager for actioning. The Arrears Manager
immediaiely contacts the bormower to ascertain the
circumstances of the default

v Ifthe defaultis shorttenm. arrangements are mads with the
borower to remedy the default;

If the defauf is long tenm. & summary of the nature of
the default is emailed to the Amears Commitiee with
recommendations;

The Arrears Commitiee is comprised of the Executive
Direcfors, the Porifolio Manager, the Risk Manager, the
Arrears Manager and members of the Commercial Lending
Departmient a5 approprate;

The Arrears Commitee mests at least weekly, The
Arears Committee considers the recommendations for
arrears loans and supenvises the preparation of an arears
management plan for each arrears loan. Given the nafure
of loans wittun the loan portiolic, the Manager adopts &
case by case approach (o amears management. reflected
inthe individual management plans for each arrears loan

Management plans are implemenied by the Amears
Manager who mainiains & separate amears file for each

arrears {oan;

Reports on arrears loans are prepared and presented at
Amsars Committee meetings,  Management plans are
considerad and updated as necessary;

In the formulation of 2 management pian the Amears
Committee considers the following factars:

Current vaiue of the security property;
Whether an updated valuation ought to be obfained;
= Gurrent loan amount;
#  Currentioan to valuation ratio;
& Areview of securiies heid;
¥ Areview of insurances held;
v issue of default nofices;
¢ Forcommergial loans:-
tenancy status;
& For construction loans -
status of constructiorn;
costto complete;
sales achieved;
review of presales;
#  Currentmarkefing andior sales programs;
Credit assessment of the berrower and any guaraniors:

Whether demands ought to be issued to any
guarantors;

¢ Any proposal by the borrowar to remedy the defalt

Status of any second or subseguent morigages and
status of priority arrangements:

# Desirabilily of faking possession or appointing 2
receiver or agent for the morpagee:

& Complance with statutory requirements {eg lodgement
of notices, maintenance of controlier accotnts);
Ay siie-specific ssues (eg planning, subdivision,
contaminafion or heritage status); '

& Potenfiad sales avenues;

Whether sales agent ought to be appointediselaction of
agent;
For all arrears loans, a detailed recoverability analysis
Is prepared and updated on @ weekly basis as parl of the
arrears management plan:

External  consultants  (valuers, lawvers, insolvency
practiioners, sales consultants efe) are engaged where
appropriate throughout the arrears management process:

The Manager may from time to fime foreciose ona Security
property as part of a realisation strategy. Foreciosure is
& remedy available ic a registered mortgagee by which
the moripagee becomes the absolute iegal owner of the
property free of any interest of the morigagor. In the event
of fareclosure, the Marager may hold, improve andior sel!
the secunty property in order to achieve the best resulf for
the Fund, The Manager may sella propety on which it has
foreclosed to a refated enfity, in which case the sals price
will be determined by valuation,

Arrears loans are managed in this way untit the security is sold
andfor all possible recovery action has been complated,

[t
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The assets of the Fund as at 29 February 2008 totalled
$718,403,075 and were made up as folows:

Austrafian First Registered
Mortgage Securities B6%

Cash & “At Call” Securities 4%

As at 28 February 2008 the mortgage allocation was as follows:
Security Property Type Aliocation

© Commercial 34%
Restdential 36%,

. industrial 8%

£ Pre-Development Land 16%
Retail 8%

Geographic Distribution of Security Property

v New South Wales 35%

£ Australian Capitat Territory 3%
Victoria 9%

~ Cueensiand 34%

Western Australia 7%

. Norther Territory 11%

B Tesmania 1%

Consirustion and Development Morigage Securities

- Construction & Development
Mortgage Securities 33%

Non-Construction Mortgage
Securities 687%™

*Won-Construction Martgage Sacuriies includes pre-development land, completed
developments and income generating commercial loans.

Wortgage portfolio detalls as at 28 February 2008

Total amount of mortgage securities 687,404 654
fNumber of mortgages 74
% of mortgages with fixed interest rates 100%
Average foan to valuation ratio 63.89%
Smallest foan 594,677
Largest ican $85.623 920
Average loan size 39,280,468
Undrawn ioan commitments. over $362.375,790

next 24 montns

Average monthiy undrawn loan commitments $15.09¢8 881

The Manager maintaine a defailed cash flow model which
assesses the total Fund inflows and outflows including
pragrarmmed foan repayments from borrowers and prograssive
ioan draws. This mode! allows the Fund's Portiofio Manager fo
accurately assess Fund cash requirements to enswre sufficient
fiquidity for the Fund to meet its cormmitments at ali times . *

As at 28 February 2008 there were 52 borowers. Two borrowers
had a mortgage that exceeded 5% of the mortgage porfiolio, The
Manager generally ensures that no single mongage exceeds
10% of the Fund's assets.

One borrower may have an interest in several foan facilities
by way of different entifies. The Manager zssesses the total

EXposure 1o one borrower gs including those related entifies with
different foan facilifies,

Mortgage securities by maturity profiie as at 29 February 2008
Period maturing % of Total Value §

0-6 months 38.42% $284,114,682
6-12 months 32.65% $224434.036
121Bmonths 17.19% $118182.830
18-24 months 5.70% $39,203.820
24-38 months 3.37% $23,164,303
3648 months 0% 30
48-60 months 2.67% 318,321,827

Mortgage securities by interest rate profile as at 28 February 2608
Far the month ended 29 February 2068 the average interest rate
of the mortgage portfolic was 9.60%.

inferest rate % % of Total Vaiue $
=or<7.00% 0.12% $816,519
7.01-7.50 157% $10,812.275
7.51-8.00 7.78% $53‘46?,988_
8.01-8,50 11.13% 76,515,263
8.51-8.00 10.51% $72‘213,8907
£.01-9.50 16.87% $107,696,9§§
9.51-10.00 1.98% $13,630,474
10.01-10.50 5.45% $37,435117
10.51-11.00 30.59% $210,310,344
11.04-11.50 9.66% $66,433 970
11.51-12.00 5.54% $38,088.833
Status of Mortgage Loans

The Manager considers a loan to be in default when interest
payments have nof been raceived in breach of a loan agreement,
orthe loan term has expired without repayment of principal. Setout
in the table below are details of Fund loans faliing into the former
category. '

LI First Mortgage Income Fund Loans in Arrears

Period Principal  Unpaid interest  Ne. ofloans
60-90 days $10438287  $600.053 1
80daysand over $34.685533 36165 154 7
Total $45121,820 6,775 107 8

As a1 28 February 2008 the percentage of mortgage securiies ln
arrearswas 7.48%.

Alf of the loans except for one in arrears ware past their maturity
date. As at 29 February 2008 one other loan was past ifs maturity
date and it represents 0.8% ofthe morigage porifolic.

The Manager ufilises its preperty expertise and Hs Amears
Management Policies and Procedures to secure realisation and
exit strategies for all arears loans.

As atthe date of this PDS the directors do nat consider the arears
above will resull in a capital loss for the Fund.

"White the Manager considars any telays unlikely, in certain cireumstances the Manager may deiay withdrawals from the Fund by up
to 385 days or suspend withdrawals in order to protect all investments. Befer fo page 17 of this PDS ("How to Withdraw™),
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Unit Pricing

The price of unifs in the Fund has remained at $1.00 since
the mception of the Fund in October 1999, Ag per the Fund's
constifution, the unit price is calculated menthiy and determinad
by dividing the vaiue of the adjusted netassets of the Fund by the
number of units on isste on the 1ast day of ach month, Tha Unit
price may vary and may increase or decrease depending on the
performance of the assets of the Fund,

The Manager has a Unit Pricing Policy which provides that Fund
assets will be valued at cost or fair value, depending on the type
of assel. The Manager will revalue an investment asset if the
Manager determines that & particular investment hag increased
or decreased in value. A copy of the Unit Pricing Policy with any
assessment provisions exercised by the Manager is avaflabie free
aof charge upon request.

Updated Financial and Other information
The current financial report for the Fund is avallable at www,
LMAustralia.com  or by telephoning freecall 1800 062 949
{Australia only) or +617 5584 4500, The Manager wil notify
mvesiors of any material adverse information in relation to the
Fund. Information reievani to the Fund that iz nof materially
adverse and that is subject 1o change from fime to tme (including
information in relation to Fund's fund size, asset allocation,
mortgage securiies aliocation e.g. geographic and property
type allocation, average loan to valuation ratio, performance
and arrears, including information contained in this PDS) will be
updated by the Manager on its website and a paper copy of any
upcated information will be given to any person without charge on
requsest
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If & properdy completed Appfication Fomm, investment funds
ang vestorfs verification documentation and information (as
required) arrive before 12 noon Queensiand tme on a busmness
day at the Gold Coast, Queensiand, the application wil generally
be accepted that day; iIf they arive after that time, then that
application will be accepted on the next business day.

Complets and sign the Application Form attached to this
PDS.

. Remit funds directly to the Fund by one of the methods

outlined on pages 14 and 15.

. Mait the Application Form plus the Direct Dabit Request

Form / Bpay Receipt / Electronic Direct Credit Receipt /
copy of Telegraphic Transfer or Cheque. to the Manager
at LM Investment Management Ltd, PO Box 485 Surfers
Paradise Qld 4217,

How to Remit Funds for Australian

Dofiar investments

There are a number of ways to remit funds for the Australian dollar
invesimant oplions in the Fund. Austrafian Dollar investors can -

complste the Direct Debit Request Form atlached to this
PDS {for investors with Austraiian bank accounts only);

or

make z cheque payable o the custedian {for Australian
bank account hoiders only)- PTAL acf LM First
Mortgage Income Fund;

ar

remit funds directly by BPay {for Ausiraiian bank account
holders only). In this instance an investor must fax the
Application Form to the Manager then telephone the
Manager on frescall 1800 062 919 (Ausiralia only) or
+617 55684 4500 1o receive their account number. On
receipt of an account number the investor can proceed to
BPay by using:

Bilier Code Reference No

53383 Your Account No

The Bpay receipt must be attached to the Appiication
Form when mailed to the Manager,

or

remit funds directly by electronic direst credit or
telegraphic transfer In this instance once an investor
has forwarded the electronic direct credit or telegraphic
transfer to the Fund's bank account {details below) the
investor must fax the completed Application Form and a
copy of the elecironic direct credit receipt or telegraphic
ransier 10 the Manager and forward the original by mait,

LM First Mortgage Income Fung

Name of Account; PTALa;:f Y First Morigage Income Fund

Banit; Suncom Metway Lid

Swift Code: METWALLE

Branch: Wickham Terrace, Brishans

ESE: 484 799 )
Account Mot 045 450 110

or

When remitfing funds by electronic direct credit or
telegraphic transfer please provids the electonic direct
credit of telegraphic transfer reference code on the
Application Form in Section 13 and attach a copy of the
etectronic direct credit receipt or teiegraphic fransfer
te the Application Form., investors making addftional
investments mus! complete the Additional Investment
Form available from the Manager's websie at www.
LiMaustralla.com. Investors should note that financial
institutions may charge a remittance fee which wil be
deducted from their investment. We endeavour fo ensure
inter-financier transfer processes are efiectad promptiy,
but cannot be held sccountable for any delays within the
banking svstem:

to make payment by credit card please complete the
Credit Card Paymen! Form attached te this PDS and
forward it with the Appiication Form o the Manager.
The merchant fess charged by the credit carg provider
are deducted from the investment furds. The marchant
senvice fee may vary from time ¢ time, bul as at the
date of this PDS the merchant fees were 1.54% of the
investment funds,
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How to Remit Funds for Non-Australian
Dollar Currency Hedged Investments

Remit funds directly by telegraphic transfer. Telegraphic
transfers can be arranged with an investor's overseas financial
institution by providing & with the foliowing detalls of the bank
actount to be credited {which is in the name of the custedian).
Please provide the telegraphic transfer reference code on
the Application Form in Section 13 and aftach a copy of the
telegraphic transfer to the Application Form,

New Zealand invesiors should note the altemative payment
oplions referred to below under the heading “New Zealand
Investors”.

For currencies other than those shown on this page please
contact the Manager to obfain bank agcount detaiis for
telegraphic transfers.

Please ensure that funds are remitied in the currency to be
invested.

Telegraphically fransfer USD, GBP, EUR,
CAD, JPY, S3GD, HKD, CHF, THE, SEK,
and other currencies (excluding RZD) to
the account below:-

Name of Ascount:  PTAL acf LM First Mortgage Income Fund

Bank; Commonwealth Bank of Ausiralia
Address: 48 Martin Street, Sydney

Swift Gode: CTBAALZS

Branch: Sydney

Account No. 100842778

{plus the currency code for the currency
you are sending .. 100642778 USD)

Wew Eeaiand investors

Telegraphically transfer NZD to the
account below:-
Name of Account:  PTAL acf LM First Mortgage tncome Fund

Bank: ANZ

Address: 203 Queen Street, Auckland, New Zealand
Swift Code: ANZBNZZ2

Hranch: At-,zckiand

Account No. 0102z 0887818 00

As wel as making NZD investments by telegraphic transfer,
investors fiving in New Zealand can:-

v Amange for NZD investments to be direct debifed from
ther bank account, Please compiste the Direct Debit Form
inthis PDS, or

mgke a deposit in person at an ANZ bank or
electronically direct credit invesiment funds to the ANZ
NZD account referred to above. When remiting funds by
direct credit please supply & copy of the diredt credit receipt
and banking reference number provided by the remifling
bank in Section 13 ofthe Appiication Fomm.

After receipt of funds, currency hedged non-Australian dellar
applications are processed in the manner detailed i the paragraph
headed "Currency Hedged Initial Investment” on page B of this PDS.

investors should note that financial institutions may charge a
remittance fee which will be deducted from their investment. The
Manager endeavours fo ensure inter financier transfer processes
are effected promptly, but cannot be held accountable for any delays
within the banking system.

Minimum investment Amount:

investment
Option

Minimum Additionat
Investment/Monthiy
Contribution

Mitnimum
fhvestment

LM First Mortgage Income Fund

FexiAccount $1,000 Multiples of $1,000

Fixed Terms $1,000 Miuttiples of §1,000

LM Savings $100 Minimum monihly

Plan confribution &
additional investiments
$100

Currency Hedged $1,000 Multiples of 31000

Non-Australian
Goliar Fixed Terms

The Manager will, at its discrefion, accept invesiments of amounts
different to those setout above.

Monthly Contributions to an
LI Savings Plan Account

Investmentin  When Debited You can stopfrestart
LM Savings Debited from the After the minimum
Plan nominated account initial 12 month

on the 24th of each
moenth or next
business day if

the 24thfalis ona
weekend or public
holiday unless a
specific date is
nominated on the
Application Form.

period an investor
can stop and restart
their LM Savings
Plar at any time
without incurring
fees by simpiy
contacting the
Manager in writing.

If aninvestor has not made a monthly contribution in 12 months
a new Direct Debit Request Form will have to be completed and
forwarded to the Manager.

vercs Liassbralin cons - 1 44
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Adding to an Investment for Australian
Dollar investments Only
When adding to an investment, please remember to:

complete the Additional Investment Form avaliable from
the Manager's website at www.LMaustralia.com:;

provide the account number - if an investor is unsure of the
account nlimber please contact the Manager;

state the full account name;

» slipuiate the amount to be added ~ payment can be made
by the mathods ouflined under "How to Remit Funds” on
pages 14 and 15 of this PDS. Any queries please contact
the Manager on +617 5584 4500 or freecall 1800 062 918
{Australia only);

include a daytims talephone number;

mail the Additional Investment Form plus the Direct Depit
Request Form / Electronic Direc! Credit Receipt / copy of
Telegraphic Transfer or Cheque, to the Manager at LM
Investment Management Lid, PO Box 485 Surfers Paradise
Qld 4217,

Please note that additional investments can be made at any
fime 1o existing Australian dofiar investmenis however additionat
investments can only be addad to existing currency hedged non-
Australian doliar investments on rollover of the current investment
term.

Ifyou add to an existing fixed term nvestment (instead of starting
a new fixed temn investment; the new application meneys will be
added to, and from that date will be treated as part of, the existing
investment.  For example, if 2 12 month term investor makes
an original investment of $400,000 on 12 March and then in 8
months time adds another $50,000 fo the existing investrment, the
enfire $150,000 invesiment will mature 12 months after the initial
$100,000 investment was made.

If you are adding fo an existing investment you should first
obtain a copy of the curent PDS for the Fund, as the additional
investment will be made on the terms of that PDS. Investors can
obtain a current copy of the PDS at any time from their adviser,
our website at www LMaustraliaz.com or by caliing us on freecall
1800 062 918 (Ausiralia only).

Cooling Off Period

A 14 day cooling off perod generally applies to investments
in the Fund. The coofing off peried does not apply to additional
investments or reinvestments of distributions.

During the 14 day cooling off peried investors have the right
to change their mind and withdraw their investment. This 14
day period commencas on the earlier of 5 davs from the date of
issue of units in the Fund to the investor. or the investor receiving
confirmation fhat their invesimeni has been accepted and
processed.

investors wishing to withdraw must contact the Manager in writing
at LM Investment Managernent Limited PO Box 485, Surfers
Paradise, Queensland 4217, by fax +B17 5582 4116, or by emall
to mail@iMaustraliz.com. Hthe Manager receives a withdrawal
reguest within the 14 day cooling off period, it will withdraw and
refund the investment. The refund may be adjusted to reflect
any changes in unit price (positively or negatively], any taxation
incurred, and if the investment is & currency hedged fixed term
investment, any fees incurred in relation to breaking the FFEC.

These cooling off rights do not apply 1o wholesale investors {as
defined In the Corporations Act 2001) or if the Fund is not figuid
for the purpeses of Chapter 5C of the Corporations Act. Investors
should contact their adviser or the Manager by telephoning +817
5584 4500 or by email to mail@LMaustrafia.com if they have any
guestions about cooling off rights.
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When requesting a withdrawal, investors please remember to:-

provide the name of the Fund and the invesiment account
number. If you are unsure of the account number please
contact the Manager,

state the full investment account hame;

stiputate the amount fo be withdrawn and how itis to be paid:
» include a daytime telephone number; and

sign the request—

w  ifitls & joint account buth investors must sign the request;

& fitis @ company account either 2 directors, 1 director
and company secretary, or sole directar whe is also
the sole secretary must sign the request,

“ You can send your signed withdrawal request by the
faliowing options:-
& Faxing the signed withdrawal request to the Manager at
+817 55824116 or

& Scanning the signed withdrawal request and emailing it to
the Manager at investmentservices@i_Maustralia.com or

#  Malling the onginal signed withdrawal request to the
Manager &t PO Box 485, Surfers Paradise, Oid 4217
Australia,

If an investor requires withdrawal proceeds to be paid to an
account other than the account nominated on the Application
Farm, then we may require further documentary evidence.

Fax & Scanned Images - Terms and Conditions

You should understand that a person without your authority couid
send the Manager a fax or scanned image, and by pretending to
be you, transfer or withdraw funds from your account far thair own
benefit or request any other changes to your account,

in using fax or scan faciliies, you agree that the Manager is not
responsible to you for any fraudutently completed communications
and that the Manager will not compensate you for any losses.

You agree that should such a fraud take place you release and
indemnify the Manager against any jiabilities whatsoaver arising
from the Manager acting on any communication racsived by fax
or scanned image in respect of your invesiment, to the axtent
permitted by iaw.

The Manager will not be liable for any loss or delay resufting from
the non-receint of any trangmissicn, These terms and conditions
are in addition to any ofher requirements that may form part of
your giving instructions relating to the compiletion of a particular
authority.

By sending the Manager a fax or scanned image you signify your
acceptance of these conditions.

Withdrawal Notice Period

Investment
Option

Withdrawal request
received by the Manager

Withdrawai is
paid by the Manager®

LM First Mortgage Income Fund

Flexi Priorte 12 noononany  Generally within 30
Account Gold Coast business days from receipt of
Option day notice and is credited to
the investor's financial
institution account
nominated on the
Application Form
Australian  5business days priorto  Generally within 30
Dollar Fixed expiration of the fixed  days after maturity
Term term date by direct creditto
Investment the investor's financial
institutior account
nominated on the
Application Farm,
Currency  Shusiness dayspriorto  Generally within 5

Hedged Non- expiration of the fixed
Australian  ferm

business days after
maturily date by direct

Dofiar Fixed creditto the investor's

Term financial institution

investment account nominated an
{he Application Form.

LM Savings Foltowing the inifial Generalfy within 30

Plan 12 month investment  tays afterthe Manager

Option period investors receives writien nofice of

the withdrawal by direct
creditic the account
nominated on the
Appilication Form,

canmake up o4
withcrawals annually by
giving writien notice to
the Manager.

*LM First Mortgage income Fund - Withdrawal Defays

The Manager is generally required by the constitution fo satisfy
withdrawal requeste within 180 days. in cerain gircumstances,
that period may be extended te 365 days or the Manager may be
entiled to suspend withdrawals. This facility allows for protection
ofinvestment funds. The Manager has a liqsidiity policy that

is monitored by the Board to adequately manage payment of
withdrawais within the time specified. For all non-Austraiian
dollar investments, the Manager will continue to hedge (ona 1
monthly basis) the currency exposurs of these Investmants The
time periods for withdrawais referred 1o above are the periods
within which the Manager expects to be able to safisfy withdrawat
requests. based on the withdrawal requests previcusly made in
respect of the Fund. However past experience is not anindicator g
cffuture circumstances, and fhere could be detays in mesting &
withdrawal requests or a suspension of withdrawals, Referio the
paragraph headed “Withdrawal from the Fund” on page 31 of this k1
PDS.

The withdrawal nofice period commences from the time the nofice
is received by the Manager. Where a request for withdrawal is

received on any day that is nota business day on the Gold Coast, é
Queensiand, the request is deamed to have bean received by us =
onthe next business day, &
-
17
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Minimum Withdrawal Amounts

Investment Option Withdrawin  Minimum
multipies of  balance

- Flexi Account Option $1,000 51,000

- Fixed Term Opfions $1.000 $1.000

3100 $100

i the investment amount remaining affer a withdrawal is less than
the minimum balance set out above, then the Manager may direct
the withdrawal of the entire baiance. The Manager has discretion
to allow withdrawal amounis other than those set out above.

Breaking a LM First Mortgage Income Fund Fixed Term
Investment or LM Savings Plan
Partial or full withdrawals are NOT permitted:~

during a fixed term investment;
during the initial 12 manth term of an LM Savings Plan

investment or more than 4 withdrawals are not permitted
in any 12 month paricd thereafter,

The Manager has complete discrafion to allow a partial or ful
withdrawal during & fixed term investment or LM Savings Plan
and generally only allows early withdrawal in the evant of daath or
in cases of medical or financial hardship. if the Manager aliows an
early withdrawal, the Fund will charge -

& fee equat to the last three months’ interest distributions
paid or payabie on the amount being withdrawn; and

where an adviser is paid an upfront commission the
Furd will charge an additional fee equal to the upfront
commission paid, calculated on a prorata basis for the
tength of time remaming to maturity.

The abave fees will be deducted from the investment amournt.

Curency hedged fixed ferm investors should note that the above
fees do notnecessariy reflect the only impact of an early withdrawal,
Other impacts (ncluding fees and charges thal may be payabie
to the fmancial institition which provides the FFEC) can only be
calculated at the Hme the request for early withdrawal s made,
because there are a numbar of variable factors, including currency
market rates and length of time to maturlly. Investors will need fo
contact the Manager if they want to withcraw early, and the Manager
can at that time provide detalls of the total withdrawal costs, fees and
other possible financial impacts.

investors should nofe that the financial impacts on an investor
who breais a currency hedged fixed investment ferm with an sarly
withdrawa! are likely to resulf in the Investor receiving fess than the
original amount investad,

Overseas Remiftance

investors should note that financial mstitufions may charge =
remitance fee which will be deducted from their investment. We
endeavour to ensure inter-financier transfer processes are effected
promply, bit are not responsibie for any defays within the banking
system.
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Advisars can Monitor an Investor's investment

Advisers are provided with online access to full investment details and reporting on their clients' investments, For axample, to check
maturity dates for investments advisers can access the Maturing Investment Reports for their clients by logging on to the LM information
Exchange which s accessed from the home page on ourwebsite at www LMa ustralia.com. Foraccass to the LM information Exchange
the adviser can contact the Manager on frescall 1800 162 919 {(Australia only) or +617 5584 4500,

Correspondence & Information from the Manager
To assistinvestors to kesp frack of their investment the Manager will send -

L

On Receipt of Investment Funds and Application Form:
The Manager will email the adviser to confirm receipt of mvestment funds and Application Form,

On investment:

On initiaf investment a Contract Note will be forwarded as requested by the investor on the Application Form {refer to Section
8 of the Application Form — which provides for correspondence to investor/s by emal or pest, or for cerrespondence o only be
sant [o the adviser ).

interest Distributions:

No correspondence is sent by the Manager. Interest distributions are refnvested uniess the investor elects to have the intarast
distributions paid to their financial institfion account. Advisers can access Transaction Statements and Distribution
Statements from the LM information Exchange.

LM First Mortgage Income Fund Fixed Investment Terms Maturity Notice
The Manager provides advisers access to the Maturing Investments Report far their clients from the L information
Exchange. Anctice of matusity 15 emailed to advisers prior to the maturity date for fixed investment terms.

For Austrafian Doliar Fixed Term investments - on the maturity date the investment will automatically rofiover for a further
investment term of the same iength unless the Manager receives written notice of withdrawal or of 2 change to the investment
term af least & business days prior to the maturiy date.

For Currency Hedged Non-Australian Doliar Fixed Term Investments — on the matuity date the investor's criginal
investment amount and interest distribution (unless the investor has nominated for the interest distribution to be paid to their
bank account) is automaticaliy reinvestad and rehedged in the originally nominated currency for the rollover term selected on
the Application Form. I no roflover term is selected the investment wil automatically rollover for further 1 month investment
terms until the investor provides the Manager with longer investment term instructions ora written withdrawal notice,

Investors and their advisers will need o access the Manager's website or telephone us prior to the reinvestment term to access
the most recent interest distribution rates and the current PDS that will apply for the purpose of the reinvestrment 19

Rollover Confirmation
Within & business days following roflover of the invastment 2 Rollover Confirmation Nofica/Contract Note wilt be forwarded to
advisers.
Transaction Statement is available to investors:
from their inancial adviser via the LM Information Exchange; or
¢ byrequest to the Manager.

Exit Statement with details of the investor's investment account will be sent to the investor within 6 months of withdrawai from
the Fund.

Annual Periodic Statement with details of the investor's investment account will be sent to the investor once a year by 31
Becemper for the preceding financial year

Annual Taxation Summary wili be sent to an investor or made available to their adviser on the LM information Exchange by
the end of Septernber each year for the preceding finangial year.

Annual Financial Statements of the Fund will be avaiiable on the Manager's website at www.LMaustratia.com by the end of
September each vear for the preceding financial year, Investors can choose 1o receive the annual statements free of charge by
mait or email by marking the appropriate box in Section 8 of the Application Form.

Changing Details
tnvestors can advise the Menager of their changs of address, ermail or telephone number’s by telephoning the Manager on 1800 082 519
(Australia only} or +617 5584 4500 or emaiing the Manager at mail@l Maustralia.com,

Allother changes including bark account details must be made by wiitien requast signed by the investar’s and sent to the Manager by:-

+  Faxing the signad request fo +617 5592 4116 or
+  Scanning the signed request and emailing it o the Manager at investmentservices@i Maustralia.com or
¢ Mailing the original signed request to the Manager at PO Box 485, Surfers Paradise, QLD, 4217 Australia..

Change of Detalls Forms can be obiained from the offices of the Manager or online at www.LMaustralia.com |

" Past performance is not an indicator of futurs parformance.
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Government regulations require all financial product issuers to include the standard censumer advisory warning set out below. The

warning below is standardised across all product issuers and does not provide specific information on fees and charges for the L First
Mortgage income Fund,

CONSUMER ADVISORY WARNING

DD YOU KNOW?

Small differences in both investment performance and fees and costs can have a substanfial
impact on your long term returns,

For example, total annual fees and costs of 2% of your Fund balance rather than 1% could reduce

your final return by up to 20% over a 30 year period {for example, reduce it from $100,000 to
$80,000).

You shouid consider whether features such as superior investment performance or the provision
of better member services justify higher fees and costs.

You may be abie to negofiate to pay lower contribution fees and managements costs where
applicabie. Ask the Fund or yourfinancial adviser,

TO FIND OUT MIORE

if you would iike fo find out more, or see the impact of the fees based on your own circumstances,
the Australian Securities and Invesiments Commission {ASIC) website (wwwido.asic.gov.au)
has a managed investment fee caiculator to help you check out different fee options.

Refer to the table on page 22 of this PDS for information on the specific fees and charges that apply fo the LM First Mortgage Income
Fund.
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This tabie shows fees and other costs that you may be charged. These fees and costs mia

y be deducled from your money, from the

retums on your invesiment or from the Fund's assets as a whole. Taxes are set out on page 25 of this PDS.

You should read all of the information about fees and costs, becauss it is important

to understand their impact on your invesimsnt

TYPE OF FEE OR COST AMOUNT HOW AND WHEN PAID
FEES WHEN YOUR MONEY

MOVES IN GR OUT OF THE FUND.

Establishment Fee - Nit Not applicabie.

The fee 1o open your investment.

Contribution Fee : i Not applicable.

The fee on each amount contributed
to your investment by vou.

Withdrawal Fee :
The fee on each amourt you fake
out of your investment.

NI for the Flexd Account, or where you take ouf vour
investment al the end of ts Fixed Term, orin accordance
with fhe terms. of the LM Savings Plan, afier giving the
fequirad notice.

The Fund may charge a fee for sarly withdrawa) equal
tothe last 2 months' interest distributions paid or payable
on the amount withdrawn plus any upfront adviser
commission paid in relafion fo the amount withdraw,
on & pro rata basis for the length of ime remaining to
maturity of the Investment.

For Cumency Hedged Non-Austraian doliar fixed
investment terms there will be other finansial impacts
on you which can only be calculated at the time of the
raquest for early withdrawal {dug to 2 number of variable
factors meluiting curmency market rates and the length of
time to maturity). Further details are referred to under
the heading "Dollar Fee Exampie for Early Withdrawal
Fee Charged by the Fund” on page 24 of this PDS,

LM First Morigage income Fund Fixed Term
mvestments and LM Savings Plan only

~ Fees for early withdrawal are deducted
from the amount withdrawn at the time of
withdrawal.

Termination Fee ;
The fee to close your investmant.

Nif

Not applicable.

MANAGEMENT COSTS

Fees and costs for managing your
investmeant2

That part of the Fund’s Management Costs which
comprises e Managers Management Fee Is
acied daly and is cumrently paid menthly by being
creductad from the assets of the Fund, Thal part of
the Funds Management Costs which comprises
expenses of he Fund {other than tha Management
Fae) wil be payable fom the income or capital of
the Fund, efher monthly or as the BXPENEES gre
ncurred. Traf part of e Fund's Managemen: Costs
which comprises the Management Fee may be able
t0 bs negofisied with the Maragsr by a wholesale
clent as a differsnfiaf fee.  Further information is
detailed uncer the heading “Addtional Bxpianation
of Fees and Costs™ on page 23 of this PDS.

SERVICE FEES

Switching Fae -
The fee for changing investment
opfions.

Nil

Not applicable.

* Al amounis include GST {f applicable) and

Fund.

¥ The adviser fee may be negotiable, but that

take Into account any input tax credits o reduced fax cradits that may be availzble to the

will depend on what arrangements you may have in place with your adviser. See the

paragraph “acviser fees” unger the heading “Additional Explanation of Fees and Costw™ on page 23 of this PDS. Further information
on the Managemeni Cogis is also detalled under that heading. :



ADDITIONAL EXPLANATION OF FEES AND CO5TS

Management Costs for the LM First Mortgage Income Fund

The Management Costs can only be estimated, as the acfual costs are not yet known. Howaver, the Management Costs for the Fund
for the financial year ended 30 June 2007 were 1.55% pa of the net assels of the Fund, and based on current financiat information the
Manager considers 3.5% pa to be a reasonabie estimate of the annuai Management Costs. The Management Costs ars made up of
the following different fees and costs (and note that the following fees and costs are explanations of the compenents which make up the
estimated 2.5% pa Management Costs, and are not additional fees ot costs).-

The Management Fee component of the Management Costs accrues daily and is paid monthly from the assets of the Fund,
The constitution of the Fund allows the Manager to recover a Management Fee of up to 5.5% pe of the net assefs of the Fund.
Al the date of this PDS, itis estimated that the Manager will only receive & Management Fee of 2.3% pa of the net assets of the
Fund, and that the Manager will waive itz entitiemant to the higher fee. Note however the section “Changes t0 Fees and Costs”
ort this page of this PDS.

The custodian fees for the Fund are currently the greater of 0.02% pa of the assets of the Fund and $20,000 pa.

Adviser fees are fees paid to vour adviser for professional financial advice. They are negotiated between you ang your adviger,
These fees may be paid from the Fund as a ump sum andfor trall commission, I you choose not to use an adviser, your
individua! distribution rate will st be calculated as if a fee of 1.1%, pa {including GST} of your investment amount was payabie to
an adviser. Any sush amount niot paid to an adviser will be usad to meet Management Costs,

The individual distribution rates payable to investors will vary dependent on the adviser fees paid by the Fund. This adviser fee
s an expense of the Fund. The Manager's reasonable expectation is that such fees would be up to 1.1% pa (including GST) of
Yyour investment amount, but they could be higher. You should discuss the payment of this fee dirscily with your agviser

¢+ The Manager is reimbursed for all expenses properly and reasonably incurred in managing the Fund. This includes any bank
and governmentfees, charges and duties levied in connectian with payments to and by the Fund. The estimate of Managamen
Costs referred fo above is based on cument financial information, but the actual expenses will depand on the amount incurred
during each parficular yaar,

Bank and Government Feas and Charges

Some bank or government feas, charges and dufies may be charged directly to you, rather ihan ‘o the refevant Fund. For example,
cheque dishonour fees, and processing or remittance fees charged by banks. Thase amounts have not been taken into account in the
estimate of Management Costs referred to above, but are not expected to be significant amounts.

fMerchant Service Fees for the LM First Mortgage income Fund

¥ you invest by credit card a marchant service fee may be charged by the credit card provider, That fee wii vary from ime to fime. but at
the date of this PDS is 1.54% of the investment funds. This amountis deducted from your investment funds at the time of investment.
This amount has not been taken info account In the estimate of Management Costs referred to above.

Tax (including Goods and Services Tax)
The fees quoted in this PDS are inciusive of GST where appficable. See the heading "Tax” on page 25 of this PDS for further details of
tax that may be relevant to your investment,

Differential Fees for the LV First Wortgage Income Fund

The Manager may negotiate differantial fees with cerizin whelesale clients or employess of the Manager or of a related body corporate
of the Manager, or relatives of those employees. Such differential fees will depend on individual negotiation, compliance with legaf
requirements, and any applicable ASIC policy. Where the differenfial fee arrangements involve the Manager paying rebates the rebates
will be paid from the Manager's own funds and will ot affect other investors,

Changes to Fees and Costs

As noted above, the constitution of the Fund allows fhe Manager to recover a Management Fee of up 10 5.5% p.a. of the net assets
of the Fund. The constitution also allows the Manager to waive af or part of #s fee. The Manager's current intention is to waive its
entitlement fo part of its fee each month. The Manager will decide each month how much of the maximum 2.5% pa Management Fee it
will be paid, but at the date of this PDS, itis estimated that the Manager will only be paid a Management Fee of 2.3% pa of the ne! assats
of the Fund. -

The Manager may decide to vary the amount of Management Fee it recovers. the amount of the other Management Costs, or the
methods of payment of those amounts, in its absolute discretion, and without vour consent (but subject io the limits in the constifution),
The Manager will give investors notice of any such change which is material. In parficutar, the Manager will give 30 days written notice of
any change to the Management Fees under this DS, Any immaterial change can ocour without notics.

Marketing Fees
The Manager may pay progerly authorised advisers a marketing reimbursement from time to time out of ifs own funds,
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LM First ortgage income Fund Fixed Term investment and LI Savings Plan Early Withdrawai Fees Charged by the Fund

Partial or full withdrawais are NOT permitted during & fixed term investment or during the initial 12 maonth term of an LI Savings Plan
invesiment (and more than 4 withdrawals from an LM Savings Plan are not permitted in any 12 month period thereafter). The Manager
has complete discration to allow 2 partial or full withdrawat during a fixad term investment or LM Savings Plan and generally only afiows
early withdrawal in the event of death or In cases of medical or financial hardship. #f the Manager aliows -

an early withdrawal from a fixed term investment; or

an LM Savings Plan investor to withdraw during the iniial 12 momth tenm or afiows rmore than 4 withdrawals in any 12 month
period thereafter;

the Fund may charge a fee equal to the last 3 months’ interest distributions paid or payable on the amaunt being withdrawn, and where
an adviser is paid an upfront commission the Fund will charge an addificnal fee equal to the upfront commission paid calculated on g
pro-rata basis for the length of time remaining to maturity.

Doitar Fee Exampie for Early Withdrawal Fee Charged by the Fung*

Below is an example of the early withdrawal fees charged by the Fund if you are allowed fo break an mvestment term. It assumes the
investment term i 12 months, you withdraw $50,000 8 morths after the investment date, you make no olher transactions during the
year, the Fund paid total effective interest distributions of 8.00% pa, and the adviser is paid a 1.1% pa commission (including GST)
upfront. This is not a forecast.

LM First Mortgage income Fund Fee Calculation Total Fee Paig to How and When Paid
Farly Withdrawa! Fee Example the Fund

Assuming 12 month investment term 3 menths interest distribution Total fees of $1,550.00
ahd you withdraw $50,000 prior i the calculation — $50.000 x (8.00%/12 x 3} $1,000.00 deducted from your
maturity date and the adviser was paid Pius Plus investment at the time
anupfront commission of 1.1% 1.1% pa for length of fime remaining of withdrawal,

until maturity of the 12 month term $550.00
calculation ~ $50.000 x (1.1%/M12 x B)

*  For Currency Hedged Non-Australian Doliar Fixed Term Investments you should niote that the example of withdrawal fess
oullined sbove does not necessarily refiect the only impact of an early withdrawal. Other knpacts (including fess and charges
that may be payable to the financial institution which provides the FFEC) can only be caiculated at the fme the request for early
withdrawal is made, bacause there are & number of variable factors including currency market rates ang fength of fime to maturity.
You should note that the financial impacts on an investor who breaks an investment term with an early withdrawal ars likely to result
ir ihe mvestor receiving less han the originat amount invested.

EXAMPLE OF LA FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND ANNUAL FEES AND COSTS
This table gives an example of how the fees and costs of the Fund can affect your investrment over & one year period. You should use
this table to compare this product with other managed investment products.

Exampie of Annual Fees and Costs

Example ~ Balance of $50,000 with a contribution of $5,000 during the year

Contribution Fee Wit Not applicabie

Plus: Management Costs 3.5% pa” fincluding GET) For every £50,000 you have in the Fund
you will be charged $1,750 aach year,

Eguals: Cost of Fund If vou had an investment of $50.000 at
fhe beginning of the year and you put in
an additional $5 000 dunng tat vear you
would be charged fees of $1. 750"

What i costs will depend on the investment
erm oplion you choose and the fees
you negotiate with the Fund or with your
financial adviser

* This i an esfimate only and not the actual Management Costs for your nvestment. Further information on the Management Costs
is detailed under the heading “Addificnal Expianation of Fees and Costs” on page 25 of this PDS. This amount includes an estimated
fee of 1.1% pa (including GST) of net assets payable o your adviser. (See the paragraph “adviser fees” under fhe heading "Additional

Lxplanation of Fees and Costs” on page 23 of this FDS). The table above is just an example. in praciice your investmeant batance and
the value of the Fund will vary daily.

“*Additional feas may apply - if the Manager allows vou to withcraw early you may also be charged early withdrawal fees as setout on
page 24 ofthis PD5, Early withdrawat fees are deducted from your investiment amouns,

i the £5.000 was invested for a full 12 months, you would be charged $175 for that extra $5.000.
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Taxation law is constantly undsr review and changing. The
comments below are accurate for Austrafian resident tax payers
at the date of this PDS. Tax law is complex and each investor's
circumstances are different.  The Manager racommends all
investors seek professional indepandant taxation advice on their
invastment before investing in the Fund,

Taxable Interest Distributions

The Manager's policy is fo distribute all net taxabie income of the
Fund to investors each financial year, Under the current incomea
tax legislation, a trustoperates as a flow through vehicle such that
the income of the trust when distributed, retains its charactsr as it
“flows through'the trust o the investor and the Manager as trustee
is not generally iable to pay tax with respect 1o the Fund.

This has the consequence for investors that they will be required
to include their entiiemant to the nat income of the Fund in their
income tax retums and this income should be mcluded in the
irvestors' taxation retum when the investors’ entiiement fo that
income arises, This entitlement arises imespactive of whether the
investor receives the income during the year, after the end of the
year, or if the income is reinvested as additianal units in the Fund.

Disclosure of Tax File Rumber

The Manager recommends Austrafian resident investors
disclose their Tax File Number on the Application Form. The
Manager will be required to withhold tax at the highest marginai
rate (plus Medicare Lewy) from interest distributions payable
to all investors who have not advised the Manager of their Tax
File Number or exemption dstails. It is nat, howaver, against the
law for an investor (o choose not 1o guote their Tax File Number
or exemplion details, The coliection of Tax File Numbers is
authorised, and the use of such information is requlated by the tax
laws and the Privacy Act.

Capital Gains Tax

If the Fund disposes of an asset, any capital gain on the disposal
must be included in the Fund's calculation of net capitat gain. The
net capitai gain of the Fund will be distributed to investors as part
of the investor's share of the Fund's taxable income for fHhe year
(in proportion to the invesiar's investmant in the Fund).

Where the disposal of an asset resulis in a capital loss, the loss
will be retained by the Fund ang not distributed to investors. The
capital foss will generally be available to the Fund to offset any
future capital gains of the Fund.

I an asset of the Fund is disposed of after it has been owned by
the Fund for more than 12 months, any capital gain derived by the
Fund as a result of the disposal will potentially be reduced by 50%
for the purpeses of calculating the net capital gain of the Fund.

The Manager will send to each investor their annual taxation
statement by the end of September each year investors
should not complete their taxation returns until they receive this
statement.

Non-Resident Investors

If an investor is not an Australian resident for taxation purposes,
the investor must {(when completing the Application Form) provide
thelr overseas residential address, Withholding tax will then be
deducted from distibutions before they are paid to investors.
The tax rate will depend on which counfry the investor resides
in". Non-resident investors may be entited o ciaim a credit for
withhoiding tax deducted in their country of residence. Invesiors
should consuit their taxation adviser for further specffic advice.

"Withholding tax is generally deducted at & rate of 10% from
interest distributions for most countries, however seme excepfions
do apply. Please refer fo the refevant Australian Double Taxation
Treaty for further information. Investors should consult thelr
taxation adviser for further spacific advice,

Entifies such as charities that hold fax exempt status will not incur
any Australian tax, including withholding tax.

Social Security

An investor's investment in the Fund will be cizssified as s
financial investment by the Department of Veteran Affairs {'DVA")
and Centrelink and therefore be included in the Income and
Assets Tests by the DVAA and Cenwreiink.  Government policy
in this area can often change and the Manager recommends
investors consult with their financial agviser, the DVA or Centrelink
for any further information on how their investment in the Fund
may affect tham, '

Goods and Services Tax

Goods and services tax {*GST") is not directly applicabie to an
investor's investrment in the Fund when they invest or redeem
their investment. The Fund may incur GST in respect to various
expenses and the Fund may not be entitied to input tax credits
with respect to al the GST the Fund incurs.
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Risk Management

Allinvestments are subj
This is achisved by;

ectto varying risks and (he Manager actively manages the Fund with a view to balancing returns with security,

smploying experienced, professional personnat:
-~ maintaining a long term vision for the Funds;
complying rigidly with ite compliance program:
actively monitering and managing the assets of the Funds;
continuing to set high performance benchmarks.

For any investor the key to managing thair investment is to undersiand and be comfortabie with -

P the Investment term;
the lavel of risk: and

potential volatility,

that accompanies an investment in the Fund. The Mariager actively manages risk under its risk management program. These
comments are intended as & guide only and we recommend that investors seek professional financial advice.

Capital Risk

- The value of the investment might dediine. Ivesfments are not capital guaranteed. Shoudd the Fund not achieve
appiopriate rates of refum or suffer a capital loss then there is fhe possitrfity that the investor could suffer alogs. No
iusses of capital have ocoured in the Fund since it inceptionin 1899, or are expected to oceur as at the date of this
PR3, Pastperformance is not anindicator offuture performance.

Unit Price

The unit price is variabie and may increase or decrease depending upon the performanice of the investman portiolio of
the Fund,

The Manager is constantly assessing various investrment seciors in order to determine which sectors have the best
patentiatn terms ofincome and/or capitat security cepanding on he nvestment obiective ofthe Fund.

Interest Distribution
Rate Risk

. This risk reiates fo the volatility of retums to invesiors, The Manager stebilises interest distibLtion rate risk
as follows:

The Manager stabilises inferest distibutions risk as follows:-

cash assets of the Fund are proacfively monitored fo ensure that investments atleast move in ine with markat
movements — investors should note that retums may not keep pace with mflation; ang

P moengage securifies in the Fund utfise a combination of fixed inferest rete lending and short lending ferms
anc the Manager utilises a poficy of annuat interest rate reviews on the anniversary of each of the morgape
securties.

Currency Risk

Non-Australian doflar investments in the Fund are hedged in the relevant cumency against Australian doliar curency
movements. The Fund curency hedges a non-Austrafian dollar ivestment through the use of Forward Foreign
Exchange Coniracts ('FFEC™. invesfors should howaver e aware that any delay or shertfalf in income or capital
payments from the Fund may resutt in a loss far the Fund due o breaking a FFEC. In such an event, the invesmmen
wilinet be currency hedged and income andior capital may be impacted.

Property Market Risk

Property market risk is the risk that negaiive movements in e proserty marke! may impact on the capaciy fo fully
recover the amount owing on a morgage.
. The Manager manages this risk by sincly complying with e lending guidelines, lcan to valuation ratio noficies,
compliance program and the efficiency of s collections systems. Theaverage loanté valuatior ratio as at 2o February
"2098 was 63:89%. Itis the Manager's policy not to exceed a lean to valuation ratio of 85% for any one loan. However
inthe event of a default the foan to vaiuation ratic of 85% rrigy be exceded. Morlgage securities are reviewad on an
angoing basts with updated vatuations obtained in accordance with fhe Manager's valuations policies.

Development or
Construction Risk

In development or construction morigages  heid by the Fund there could be delays in payment of
interest or repayment of capital dus to the fiming, compleion and saie of the developmerd.

- The Manager's persorine! have considerable experience in dealing with construction and development loans. For
each lcan ar “as 5 and an “on completion” valuation is oblained, Funding of the lnan is controlied by the Managar on
a "cost fo complete basis”. The Manager has specific procadures in place that are adhered to both priorte and during &
project to ensure that the secunty is maintained and risks minimised,

investors should also refer to the paragraph headed “interest Capitalisation Risk" below as construction angd
cevelopment ivans may have capialised nterest.

interest Capitalisation
Risk

Loans made Fom the Fund may require the inferest to be paic periotically during the term of the inan or
in the case of & construction and deveiopment ican a provision for interest may be built into the facility within the
approved loan fo valuation rafic. (Loan fo vaiuation ratio is generally 86.67% for construction and development
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* loans). As a risk management measure, this provision for interest is bulk info the inan facility along with & contingency.
This enables the Manager to control the interest payments and ensure that they are met within the approved inan fo

. valuafion rafi limdt. in addition to this, a detalled finangial analysis is conducted on each bomower to ensure that the
borrower has sufficient resolrces to coverinterest commitmens if recuired,

- Thereis arisk that nierest payments may not be recoverable because of-
changed clreumstances of the borrower:
changed circumstances of the security property; or
cther economic conditions.
Where this occurs there may be insuffiicient cashfiow in the Fund fo meet inferest distributions of redemption requests.
Allfoans are monitored by experienced personnel employed by the Managerin its mortgage managemers division.

As at 28 February 2008 the percentage of mortgage loans in the Fund where inferest payments were buift inlo the oan
facilities was 52.71 % af the mortgage portfoiio.

Credit Risk - This is the risk that a borower may not meet s obiigations in full andfor on time o pay rrerest and repay capial
financial obiigations. The Manager mitigates this risk by utlising a conservative lending strategy in refation to the
merigages and following strict lending guidelines.

Liguidity Risk Adelay i meeting an investor's withdrawal request is possible where there are a significant number of withdrawal
© requests recsived af the same time, which absorb the cash resarves of the Fund and i assets of the Fund ane not
sufficiently liguid.
- Generally the Manager is reguired by the constitution to satisfy redemption requests within 160 days. In cerlain
circurnsiances, thal period may be extended to 365 days or the Manager may be enfiled o suspend redemptions.
- The Manager has a fiuidity policy that is monitored by the Board to adequately manage payment of withdrawals within
the time period specified. Refer to the paragraph headed "Withdrawal from the Fund’ on page 31 ofthis PDS for further
details.
The Manager has aranged a line of credit facility with the Commonweatth Bank of Austrafia for $215 miliion which
<an be ullised in figuidity management or to allow the Manager fo take advantage of competifive commercial lending

apporiunifies for the Fund,
Arrears of fhe Fund's The Manager ufiises its properly expertise ardd its Armrears Management Policies and Procedures to secure
Mortage Porticlic realisation and extt strategies for all arrearsioans,

Further detalls of the: arrears managemen: processes are outiined on page 11 ofthis PDS.

Share Market Risks The Fund may invest in specialist managed funds which i fum hold incame bearing cash investments, long and short
term securities {induding equity securiiies and derivatives on securifies) which may be quoted on recognised stock
exchanges. The value of these investments right decline for reasons inciuding demestic and iniemational sconomic
conditions, changes in government fiscal, monatary and reguiatory policies, changes in interest rates and curency

. exchange rates, the rate of inflation or changes in the circumstances ofthe companies or funds in which the speciaist
managed funds invest, Arefum on invesfiments in the specialist managed funds or repayment of capital invested is not
guaranieed. As atihe date of this PD'S, the Manager has a policy limiting the proportion of Fund's assets invested with

© other specialist fund managers to 10%.

The Manager miigaies this risk by uilising speciafist furd managers o inves! the Fund's assets held in this secior
Each specialist is chosen fPliowing an extensive and ngarous research process that examines their investment
style, the expertise of their investment team and a rangs of other factors. The Manager reviews sach spedaist fnd
manager's performance on an ongoing basis, ensuring that they operate within the mandated expeciztions and
guidelines

Borrowing risk Under the constitition the Manager may borow against the Fund assats on ferms and condiiens acceptable to the w
Manager The Manager has-amanged a line .of credi facility with the Commonweatth Bank of Australia (‘CBA"} for :
$215 million. This faciity was put into place in orderto allow the Mianager to take advantage of compeitive commerci)
tending opportunities, or io assist the Fund with managing fiquidity, interest distibutions or funding loan commiiments.

i Atthe date ofthis PDS the amount owing to the CBAwas $155 milionsAs atthe date of this PDS ths interest rate ofthe
fadility is variable and is priced between 0.50% to 1.10% above the respeciive BESY bid rate. The facility term is the
subject of an annual review. The finance facllity 1s secured by a fixed and floafing charge over the aseets of the Fund, =
providing e CBA&S a secured lender with first priority over the assets and income of the Fund. The rights of investors
fo the income and assets of he Fund are secondary to the rights of the CBA. The facility will be repaid via investment

* inflows and inflows received from principal repayments frorm bomowers. This facilty or 2 simitar facility may be vatied
from fime to time in order fo manage the Fund. Insufficient income generated by the Fund to service the CBA debt,

Hag

Increases in the bank interest rate or an unforeseen refusal ofthe financierto extand the tem of any facility could cause E

the Fund to default on its loan E

W

Government Policies Investment performance may be affected by changes to government policy in raiation to taxes, exchange §
rates, iegislative changes, land tax, income tax and other government facters. These factors are generaly -

beyond the conirol of the Manager. »

v
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LI Investment Management Ltd ("the Manager”) is an Australian
funds manager operating internationally from offices on the Geold
Coast, in Sydney, Hong Kong, New Zealand and London. in
conjunction with its network of authorised financial adviser groups
domestically and abroad, LM provides an esiablished investment
product with a range of flexible options, focused on achieving
income and flexibility to the investing public.

Since ception in 1898, the Manager has become a growing
presence in the financial services markets throughout Australia,
Hong Kong, Asia, the Middie East, United Kingdom and New
Zealand.

Recognised as & specialist funds manager within the AUD$22
bilion mainstream morgage trust sector, LM invesiment
Management Ltd manages one of Australia’s largest morigage
trusts, the LM First Morlgage Income Fund, The Manager's
other funds urder management include the LM Wholesale First
Mortgage Income Fund, the LM institutional Currency Protected
Austratian tncome Fund, the LM Curency Protected Australian
Income Fund and the LM Cash Performance Fund.

The Manager is licensed with the Australian Securities and
investments Commission ("ASIC") as a Responsible Entity and
Australian Financial Services Licensee. Independent audits of
its registered funds, their compliance plans and the Manager are
conducted at least annualiy.

The Manager specialises in professional and responsive financial
services, and is & highly regarded lending institution within
Australia’s business and property seciors.

Management Principles
The Manager's corporate vision is fo be recognised as a eading,
innovative and prudential funds manager. The management team
has a common understanding of business principles to ensure the
vision is upheld, These pringiples includs -
delivering a high level of service with clear communication
and genuine empathy for clients;
offering qualifative investment and lending products;

using a research driven approach o anficipate market
changes and seek new opportunities -

to protect the delivery of income; and
& {oprotect the delivery of 2 stable unit price.
The Manager's commitment to offering clients a competitive

advantage with service is demonstrated by its use of information

technology delivering 24 hour access to online investment
reporting.

Key Personnel

The Directers of the Manager collactively offer considerable
years of experience and specialist knowledge from the finance,
insurance, legal and property sectors. The Manager aiso carries
a vast depth of professional property and business relaied
experience across all business units.

The Manager's personnal are strategic thinkers with the foresight
to identify quality investment opportunities, while keeping their
fingers on the pulse of Australia’s property and finance markats.
The Manager blends this foresight with a sound investment
philosophy to sesk optimum results for investors.

The Directors encourage the key decision makers at LM
investment Management Ltd to take a ‘hands-on’ approach when
seeking new investment opportuniies and anticipating market
changes.

Financial infermediaries and investors have direct access to
a staff which provides prompt professional assistance. Our
relationships are built on honest and apen communication and a
genuine appreciation of our cients' needs.

Corporate Governance

The Board of LM investment Management Lid generally
meats quarterly to discuss the strategic direction of LM and the
monitoring of #ts funds. The Manager has 2 strong commitment
to corporate governance, compliance and risk management. The
Manager has a committee based structure for all major decision
making processes to ensure ulimate protection of mvestor funds.

Executives and a representative of the Board meet weekly fo
discuss issues pertinent to the Manager and #s funds. Each
executive is responsible to the Board for the cperation of their
own business unit. The Funds Management Committee meets
manthly o analyse and review performance of the funds. The
Compliance Committee generally meets quarterly to monitor and
review compliance systems and processes to ensure that they
are in accordance with the Compliance Program and registered
funds' compiiance plans.

The Manager follows a disciplined research driven apaproach to
investment. The Manager's Property Research and Analysis
Committee  {("PRAC"), specifically targets locations offering
property growth cpportunities and property sectors which are
expected 1o parform.

The Board and management alsc have access to a2 range of
independent and expert advisers to assist on particular technical
ISSUES.

Az an unlisted public company, the Manager is the sublser of
yearly financial audits. The audits are a reguirement under the
Comorations Act 2001, These audits are parformed by Emst &
Young, an internationsl accounting firm. Emst & Young also
perform financial and compliance audits on the Manager's
registered funds on a bi-annual andior annual basis dependent
on the relevant fund's compliance requirsments,
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Peter Charles Drake, Chairman and Chisf Executive Officer

As CEQ Pefer is principaly responsible for the strategic vision, direction and the structured growth of LI
investment Management Lid (“LM"). Peter has been involved in the financial services industry since 1878, and is
particutarly active In investment praduct design, Working closely with LM's Portfolio Manager to manage the growth
of funds under management, Pster also plays an integral role in LM's Funds Managemeant Committes, and Credit
Committee. Peter’s vision of an innovative and prudential funds manager holds frue as LW continues its dynamic
growth in the Austrafian financial services secior,

Lisz iaree Darcy, Executive Director

Lisz joined LM lnvestment Management Lid in 1998 and was appointed Executive Direcior in September 2003.
Lisa is principafly responsible for ali accounting functions of both LV Investment Management Lid and &s registered
schemas, She works closely with LM's Portfolic Manager, to manage the growth of funds under management. Lisa
plays an integral role in LW's Funds Managament Committee and Credi Committes, With more than 20 years
exparence i the banking and financial planning industry, inchuding financial accounting and funds management,
Lisa makes & valuable contribution to LM's ongoing managament of investment funds and financial services. Lisa
haids & Bacheior of Business from Griffith University.

Eghard van der Hoven, Executive Director, Porfolio Manager

in 2003 Eghard joined LM Investment Management Ltd as Pertfolio Manager. responsible for the moritorng and engaing
performance of LM's various funds, As Executive Director Eghard’s sourd understanding of the investment industry
spanning almost 20 ysars includes extansive experience in stock broking, audiing, nvestrment analysis, business strategy
and poiicy planting. As the Chair of LM's Funds Management Committee, Egharndis responsibie for joint decisions in relation
to the asse! aliacation, geographic spread afiocation, cash flow, deiivery rate forecasting and budgeting of L's funds.
Eghard also sits on fhe Credit Committee and the Arears Managerent Comittee. He hoids 2 Master of Gommerce,
majoring ir: Economics, and a Bachelor of Cormmerce {Hons) in Economice, fom University of Pretoria, South Africa.

Francene Maree Mulder, Executive Director, General Manager Distribution/Product

Francene commenced with LV invesiment Management Lid in 1999, following & 20 year career in the commerdal, legal
and securifies sactors. Priorto jeining LM Investment Management Lid, Francene held manageris posifions focused onthe
areas of commerdial morigages, conveyancing and the property sector. Spedfic experience in morgage securfies and the
marketing of financial products provided a sofid background for Francene 1o successiully underiake her role within LV, As
Executive Director, Francene is primarly responsible for the marketing and expansion of distibution of LM's products on a
wholesale and retafl basis, throughout Australia and intemationsal markets, Francene takes an active role in the direction of
all chent commurication, company communication and service. Francene is also a member of the Property Research and
Anglysis Commities, Funds Management Commitiee, Cradit Committee and Amears Commitiee.

John Dillor, Non-Executive Direstor

John holds mere than 30 years strategic and managerial experfise in the business and development sactors domesfically
and adroad. As Non-Executive Director, John's experiznce complements the continued strategic growth of LM
investment Management Ltd as an Australian unds manager with intemational oparations. John's previous managenal
expenience includes the strategic and financial growth of \ision Cabinets Ply Lid. & speciaiist cabinetry business that
services & range of residential and commercial cilents nafionally, Prior te Visior, John was Managing Director ASEAN of
Occidental Chemicals, responsible for the administration, manufacture and distribufion 1o the Association of Soufh East
Asian Nations (ASEAN]. He also holds a Bachelor of Commerce from the University of New South Wales.

Vai Liswellyn. Non-Executive Director

Val halds over 30 years’ management experience in e enginesring, manufactusng, tebour hire and Faining secors in
Australie, London and Wales In 1982, Vel emigrated with his family to Australia, establishing Axial Engineers. then iater
estabfished Awial HR. an industial fabour hire operation to operate alongside Axial Engineers. In 10856, Va! became sols
shareholger and Director of the Axial group of compariies. and in 1997 estabished #xial Training o train new apprenfices,
supendsors and managers in the manufaciuring, anginesling, mining, warehousing, food processing (outchery), relail and
business sectors.  The Axdal Group currently operates fom six locations throughot Queenstand and also in Perth. Val is a
aualfied Chartered Accountar:. adrritted as a Member oftne Instit.fe of Chariered Accountants in England and Walss in 1872

John C'Sullivan, Non-Executive Director

Johin has over 20 years experience in funds management and invesfiment advice in Eurape, Asia and Australiz. His previous
roles have included CEOC and Pariner of a terge advistry business in New Zealand, General Manager of Oceanic Life i New
Zesland and Director of Gesanic Funds Management in Australiz. Wnen Oceanic was purchasad by Sun Affance, he was
appoinied New Zealand Marager of SunAlience Asset Management. He is cumentlyManaging Diretior ofhis own distibution:
cormpany, O'Sullivan Capital Management Lid,
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Payment and Other Instructions

Each investor releases. discharges and agrees to indemnify the
Marager from and against afl actions, proceedings, accounts,
dlaims and demands whatsosver and howsoever arising from or in
cornection with or in any way related o the Manager in good faith
accepling and acting on instructions received in writing, by facsimile
transmission of by scannad image which are signed by or purporied
to be signed by an authonsed signatory or signatories,

Fax & Scanned tmages - Terms and Conditions

You should understand that a person without your authority couid
send the Manager 2 fax or scanned image, and by pretending to
be you, transfer or withdraw funds from your account for their own
benefit or request any ather changes fo your accourt,

in using fax or scan faslliies, you agree that the Manager is not
respensible to you for any fraudulently completed communications
and that the Manager wili not compenzate you for any losses.

You agree thai should such a fraud fake place you release and
indemnify the Manager against any liabiliies whatsoever arising
from the Manager acting on any communication received by
fax or scanned image in respect of your investment, i the extent
permitted by law.

The Manager will not be liabie for any joss or delay resulfing from fhe
non-receipt of any transmission. These terms and conditions are in
addition o any other requirements that may form pant of your giving
instructions relating 1o the completion of & particuiar authority,

By sending the Managsr & fax or scanned image you signify your
acceptance of these condifions,

Changes to Terms and Conditions

The fees that apply to investors’ investment accounts can change
from time fo time. Investment ferms and conditions can also be
changed oy the Manager giving notice of the changes. Investors
wifl need to contact thelr adviser or the Manager, or access the
Manager's website to find out the terms and conditions which apply
from time to time.

Appointment of Authorised Delegate

An ‘authorised delegate’ is any company, partnership or individua?
appointed by an investor to operate their account. The most
common arrangement is to appoint an investor's financial adviser 1o
enable him oy her to better manage the invastor's fmancial affairs.

An investor tmay appoint an authorised delegate by signing and
dating the authority on the Application Fomm. The authorised
delegate must also sign the authority,.  Where the authorised
delegate 15 2 corpuration o & partnership, 2 duly authorised officer
or partner of the authorised delegate must sign the authority. The
Manager may require proof of authonsation.

The authorised delegate has the same powers as an investor to
access investmenis, make further investments in the Fund on
behalf of the investor or io make writien requests for withdrawals
from the Fund.  Such withdrawal may only be paid to the account
nominated on the Applicetion Form. In the case of an authorised
delegate which is a corporation or & parinersnip, the Managar may
act on the instructions of any person it reasonably believes to be
an authonsed officer or pariner, and any instruction given by such
an officer or pariner shafl be deermad o have been given by the
authorised delegate.

Investors may at any time. in writing, nofify the Manager of the
revocation of appeintment of an authorised defegate.  Such
revocation however, will not be effactve unti the Manager has
acknowiedged the revocation inwriting,

By signing the authority on the Application Form, an investor agrees
to release. discharge and indemnify the Manager from and against
all actions, proceedings, accounts, claims and demande arsing
from the release of information to the authorised delegate namad
on the Application Farm, of in respect of any loss or tiabifity arising
oult of any tansaction or dealing made or purporied to be made
pursuant fo an actual, pumerted or alleged direction or authority of
an authorised delegate, nofwithstanding the fact that the transaction
of dealing was requested or received without the authorised
delegate’s or the investor's knowledge or authority.

Joint Investors

K an investor's investment is held jointly with one or more other
persons, the Manager can send nofices, statements or other
documents (including any changes to nvestment terms and
condiions} by maiifng them to any one of the joirt haldars {that is,
the first investor or any of the other jaint holders) at their nominated
correspondence address. The investors will be deemed to have
received the nofice, statement or other document on the second
business day after i is sent. if the Manager gives these notices,
statements or other documents to any one of the joint holders, their
auinorised delegate or adviser, they will be deemed to have been
received by all of the joint holders.

Applications signed by several parfies are deermed to be signed as
joint fenants and unless otherwise agreed all parties must sign to
authorise a withdrawal.

Frivacy — use and disclosure of personal information

The privacy of an investor's personal information & important to
the Manager. The purpose of collecting investor informatian on
ihe Anpitcation Form is to process the appiication and manage an
nvestar's investment in the Fund. ¥ the information an investor
givas is not complete or accurate, the Manager may not be able o
provide the progucts and services applied for,

In precessing the application and managing investers’ investments
in the Fund, the Manager may disclose parsonat information o other
parties such as an investors financial adviser and/or 1T service
providers of financial advisers, the financial adviser's licenses or as
required by taw.

Investors are entified to request reasonable access o their
personal information. The Manager resarves the right to charge an
administration fee for coflating the information reuesteq.

For further detalls on the Manager's Privacy Policy please visit the
Manager's website at www [ Maustralia.com,

The Constitution for the Fund

The constitution for the Fund is 2 legal contract between the
Manager as responsible entity and each invesior, The constitution
together with the Corporations Act and other relevant law governs
the relationship between the Manager and investors, the Managar's
duties as 2 responsible ently and the way the Manager must
operate the Fund. The consfitution includes provisions which deal
with:-

the rights of investors;

the duties and cbiigations ofthe Manager as the rasponsible
entity;
investmertt and borrowing powers of the Manager,

+ ability of the Manager to be indemnified by the Fund for
all expenses, psses and liabifies arising in fis capacity as
responsible entity provided it has properly performed its
guties:

¢ ability to remove the Mangger,



unit issue and redemption procedures:

convaning and conduct of the Fund's investor meetings;
v the duration and termination of the Fund; and

tights to Fund interest distributions.

The terms and conditions of the constitition are binding on
Investors and the Manager as the responsible entity of the Fund,

The statements in this PDS only provide a summary of some of
fhe provisions of the constitulion. The Manager may change
the constitution in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
Howsever any change that may adversely affect investors' rights
miust be approved by special resolution of the investors.

Classes Of Units

The Fund constitution authorises the Manager to issue different
classes of unifs with special rights or restrictions as determined
by the Manager from fime fo time. The interest distribufion rate
ofterad or paid to the differant ciasses may vary. The Manager is
required under the Comporations Act to treat aff investors within a
class of units equally and as between classes fairly. The Manager
has created separate classes of units In the Fund representing
each different type of investment  The Manager wit only issue
new classes of units where it considers it appropriate having
regard to the interests of existing Investors and in accordance with
the Manager's obligations under the Corporations Act and the
constifution.

Invitation Only Whoiesaie Clients in the Fund

The Manager may invite wholesale clients to invest i the
Fund.  Such an investor must provide 1 husiness day's notice
of redemption of the investment fo the Manager but is otherwige
subject to the withdrawal provisions as cutiined in the paragraph
headed "Withdrawal from the Fund” on page 31 of this PDS. The
interest distrbution rate for such investors will be defermined
by the Manager from time to time.  The Manager may waive e
wholg or part of its Management Fee in raspect of such investors,
Tha Manager may alse waive the whole or part of its Management
Fee in reiation to investments by its employees, or empioyess ofa
related body corporate of the Manager,

The above arangements constitute differential fee arrangements
under ASIC Class Order 03/217 (as amended) and are offered
to wholesale clients (within the meaning of section 761G of the
Corporations Act 2001} or employess of the Manager, or of 3
related body corporate of the Manager,

The Manager also issues units to relatives of the Manager's
employees. and waives the whole or part of its Management
Fee for those mambers, Those members hold units of different
classes to the units hald by other members i the Fund.

The Nature of Units of the Fund
Each unit gives the holder an undivided interest in the Fund,
However. & unft doss not confer any interest in any parficular
asset of the Fund and does not entitie the holder to have any of
the assets of the Fund fransferred to them or to interfere with any
of the Manager's rights or powers,

Fowers and Duties of the Responsible Entity

Ali of the assets and undeniakings of the Fund vest in the Managar
to hotd on wrust for investors. In relation to the assets of the Fund
the Manager has ali of the powers of 2 natural person who ks the
absolute beneficial owner of the assets,

Fund, detemining investment policy. selecting and managing the
invesiments, valuing the investments, sending notices and reporis
to investors, aranging investors’ meetings, accepiing of rejecting
applications for investment, calculating the number of units to
e issued or withdrawn, maintaining a register of investments,
payments of interest distrbutions to investors, preparafion and
inferest distribution of cheques, managing the Fund borrowings
and ensuring thal the Fund is caried on and conducted in a
proper and efficient manner. The Manager is entitied to various
indemnities under the constitiutions.

Withdrawal from the Fund

Generally the Manager is required by fhe constitution to satisfy
withdrawal requests within 180 days. In certain circumstances,
that period may be extended to 385 days or the Manager may be
entitied to suspend withdrawals in order to protect all investments.
The Manager has & liquidiy policy that is monitored by the Board
to adequately manage payment of withdrawals within the time
period spacified. The Manager may suspend withdrawals where!

.+ the Fund's cash reserves fall and remain below 5% for 10
consecufive Business Days: or

20 in any period of 90 days, the Manager receives net
withdrawal requests equal to 10% or more of the Fund's
issued units and, during the period of 10 consecutive days
falling within the 90 day period, the Fund's cash reservas
are jess than 10% of the total assets: or

iii- it is not satisfied that sufficient cash reserves are avaiiable
to pay the withdrawal price on the appropriate date and to
pay all actual and contingent liabilities of the Fund; or

v any other event or circumstance arises which the Manager
considers in s absolute discretion may be detrmental to
the intsrests of the members of the Fund.

Histaorically, the Fund has successfully met ali withdrawal requests
on fime and in full, This is due to the iquidity management of the
Fund and the struciure of the investment terms (although past
performance is hot an indicator of future performance},

The Manager does not expect that the Fund witl be a managed
mvesiment scheme that 15 net liquid as that ferm is defined in e
Comporations Act.

Part 5C.6 of the Compaorations Act provides that a managed
Investment scheme 1s liguid if fiquid assets account for af least
80% of the value of schems property. Liquid assets would
ordinarily include money in an account or on deposit with a bank,
bank accepted bills, marketable securities, or any other praperty
(ncluding the morigage loans of the Fund) which the Manager
reasonably expects can be realised for its market value within
the period specified in the Fund's consfitution for satisfying
withtrawal requests while the Fund is ligux. The liguidity of the
Fundis therefore dependant onwhether 80% of the Fund property
{including the mortgage loans! can be realised for s market
vaive within the penod speciiied in the constitution for salisfying
withdrawal reguests while the Fund is fiauid. In the unlikely event
that the Fund is notliquid. an mvestor will anly be able to withdraw
their investment in the manner specified in s601KE fo s801KE
of the Corporations Act. which would include mailking written
withdrawal offers fo all investors (or ali investors of a particufar
class) based on the units they hold in the Fund.

Authorised investments of the Fund

reeLMavstralia com ~ V17 i S et T Trns

The Manager may investin “Authorised Investments' as defined in
the constitulion, which includes but is not limited o bank deposits,

The Manager must act in accordance with the constitution and the
Comporations Act 2001 and is responsible for administering the
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investments in cash, stocks, bonds, notes or other securities or
derivatives and options over securities or derivatives, lsans and
interests in any registered managed invesiment scheme (as
tefined in the Comporations Act 2001).

To the extent that they may affect tha vaiue or performance of an
underlying investment the Manager may take into account labour
standards, or environmental, social or ethical considerations
when making. retaining or realising an investment in the Sund.
The Manager has no predetermined view about how far such
matters will be taken mto account, and the Manager will make a
determinafion cn such issues on a case by cass basis,

Appofntment and Removai of the Manager

The Manager may retire in accordance with the Comporafichs
Act 2001, Investors of the Fund by extraordinary resolution may
remiove the Manager and appoint a new responsible enfity of the
Fund.

Borrowings of the Fund
Under the constitution the Manager may borrow against the Fung
agsets on terms and conditions acceptable to the Manager.

The Manager has arranged a fine of credit facilty with the
Commenwealth Bank of Australiz (“CBA™ for $215 million. This
facilily was put info placs in order to allow the Manager to take
advantage of competifive commercial fending opportunities. or
fo assist the Fund with managing figuidity, interest distributions or
funding loan commitmenis. At the date of this PDS the amount
owing to the CBAwas $155 milion. As atthe date of this PDS the
interest rate of the faciiity is variable and is priced between 0.50%
© 1.10% abave the respective BBSY bid rate. The facifity term is
“the subject of an annual review. The finance facility is secured by
& fixed and fioating charge over the assets of the Fund, providing
the CBA as a secured lender with first priority over the assets and
income of the Fund. The rights of investors to the income and
assets of the Fund are secondary 1o the rights of the CBA. The
facility will be repaid via investment inflows and inflows received
from principal repayments from barrowsrs. This facility or a similar
Tacility may be varied from time fo time in order 1o manage the
Fund.

The Manager's indemnity

To the extent allowed by law, the Manager is indemnified out of
the Fund against any claim. action, damage, loss, liabifity, costs,
expense or payment which the Manager incurs or is liable for in
relation to the Fund, provided that it does not arise from the fraud,
negligence orwilful default of the Manager or its employees.

Expenses

All expenses reasonably and properly incurred by the Manager
in connection with managing the Fund are payable or abie to
be reimbursed out of the assets of the Fund. These expenses
include:

»  preparation, review, distribution and promotion of any
offer document;
the sale purchase, insurance, custody and any other
dealing with assets;
any proposed investment;
administration, management and promstion of the Fund;

»  communicating with, or convening and holding meetings
of and dealings with investors;
tax (provided it is not on the personal account of the
Manager; and bank faas:

- the engagement of experts and advisers:

»  preparation and audit of the taxation retums and financia!
statements of the Fund;
termination of the Fund and the retirernent or removal of
the Manager and the appointment of a new responsible
entity: and
any court procesdings, arbitration or other dispute
concerming the operation of the Fund or any assef of the
Fund.
Fees pavable to an agviser of an investar will also be expensas of
the Fund.

Liahility of Investors

The constitution fimits the liability of investors to the amount of
thelr investment. However, the Manager cannot give an ahsolute
assurance on this matter as the issue of the investor's fiability has
notbeen fully resolved by the courts.

Compliance Plan

As a responsivle entify, the Manager is required to adhere to the
compliance plan for the operation of the Fund, The compliance
pian sets out compliance measures in relation fo the conduct of
the Fund and its business. The compliance plan is designed to
document compliance risks, the manitaring process. and provide
a basis for compliance adherence and auditing. The compliance
plan is lodged with ASIC and is independently audited annually.

The Manager's Board and Compliance Commitiee monitor and
review ifs compliance plans fo ensure that all compliance sysfems
are foliowed.

Investment Procedures and Policies

Investment procedures and palicies of the Manager are reviewed
oh an cngoing basis. Qutfined below is a broad overview of the
investment and fending procedures that apply to the Fund,

Investments by the Manager

The Manager has policies in ralation to invesiing the Fund’s
assets with specialised fund managers of registered managed
investment schemes (as defined by the Corporations Act 2001,
A speciafist fund manager is only chosen if the Manager is futly
safisfied with its due diigence conducted on the specialist fund
manager which includes the investment stvie, expertise of their
investment feam and a range of ofher factors. The Manager
constantly monifors and reviews each specialist fund managers
performance ensuring that they operate within mandated
expsciations and guidelines.

Al the date of this PDS, the Manager has a poficy of limiting
investment with specialist fund managers Hat invest in income
bearing cash investrments, equity securites and options to 10% of
the assets of the Fund,

Lending Criteria of the Fund
v The Manager has determined and documented lending
policies for the approval and management of morfgages,
Risk management is a priority, with morigages diversified
aver a number of levels including geographic location,
sector. loan size. interest rate and maturity profile,

The type of real estate offered for securily must be
acceptabie to the Manager. Typical mongage sscurities
wilt include commercial, industrial and residential real
esfate (including deveiopment loans across thess
sectors) secured by 2 registered first mortgags. A first
marigage must be registered on the primary securify
property,



The value of the security property must be established in
accordance with the valuations pelicy of the Manager,

The abiitty of the borrower io service the faciiity must be
established to the salisfaction of the Manager.

Development Loans
The foliowing additional requirements are imposed in the case of
devslopment loans:

The mifial drawdown for the faciity is arrived at after
considering both the approved toan to valuation ratio on
the “as 18" vaiuation and the “cost to complete” fornuga.
The initial drawdown must mest the loan to valuation ratio
reguired and also allow sufficient funds to be avaiiable
in the: facility to complete the development. The project
feasibility must reflect the "cost to complete” formula
throughout the life of the project. The concept of a “cost
o complete” formula is that the lender atways retains
sufficient funds within the ioan facility to complete the
deveiopment based on its assessment of the actual cost
fo compiete the project.

» Additional development loan procedures are required
throughout the development stages of the loan to ensure
the development is adeguately monitored,

Where applicable a tripartite agreement is made between
the Manager, the borrower and the builder, This enables
the Manager, in the svent of default by the borrower, to
deal directfy with the bulider.

Credit Commitiee

The Credit Committes is an internal review commites for
all mortgage investments and is independent from all other
departments.  The Credit Commitiee mests as reguired to
consider praposed and actual investment opportunities. The
Credit Commiltes contains a broad experience base and includes
departmental fear lsaders for planning purposes.

New mortgage investment propesals are put forward by the
commercial lending department for consideration with a writien
summary. The Cradit Committes is responsible for sstting the
primary tems and conditions upon which subseguent approval
will be based.

When mortgage  investment proposals are completed in
accordance with the Manager's cradit standards they are required
to be finally approved by the Credit Committes.

Valuations Policy

All real property assets of the Fund are required to be valued
prios to seflement of each transaction. Valuations may only be
carriett outby the Manager's panel valuers or by a valuer meeting
the Marager's standards for inclusion on its panel and must
adhere to the Manage!'s valuation guidelines. The Manager has
determined and documented valuation review procedures for
guidance on each valuation,

Appropriate instructions must be given to the valuer having regard
to the type of valuation required. iIn parficular the instructions
should indicate the type of valuation required eg. “as is” or "on
compietion”.

The Manager, in accordance with its vaiuations review guidelines
is responsible for the review of all valuations. Unresolved issues
arising from a review must be referred to an executive director for
discussion and detarmination,

As an internal checking mechanism, an independent property

report is obtained (where appropriate) from two real estate
agents or an altemate valuers report whose normal trede area
encompasses the property being valued.

The wvaluer must have appropriate professional indemnity
nsurance,

The valuer must certify they are independent of both the borrowar
and the security property.

The Manager does not accept valuations performed on the
mstruction of borowers, The Manager reguires that valuations
be provided on the Manager's instructions, or that valuers confirm
that their valuations adhere o the Manager's requirements.

An updated valuation will generally be required where a loan term
is extended or a loan is otherwise variad. An updated valuation
will also generafly be required for commercial Ioans at 24 month
infervals and construction lbans at 12 month intervals.  The
requirement for an updated valuation may be waived where the
Manager considers that an updated valuation would sarve no
useful purpose (eg where it is demonstrabie that propenty values
have increased or not changed in the focality of the property,
where a property under construction is significantly presold, where
a commercial property has long ferm leases in place, where a sale
of refinance is imminent or where the loan to valuation ratio of the
propearty is fow).

Valuatien Panel

Members of the valuafion panet are appointed and removed in
accordance with the Managers valuafion panef appointment
guidelines.  The Manager iz responsivle for approving the
appointment or removal of a panei valuer,

Development Valuations
Separate valuations (may be within the one valuation report) are
required in relation fo "as is” and “on compietion” valuations.

“As is” Valuation

The “as is” valuation is the market valuation of the propenty at the
time of the initial drawdown. The loan io vaiuation ratio in this
case musi fall within the Manager's lending criteria,

“On Complefion” Valuation

The "on compietion” value is the market vaiue of the property
at the completion of development. The valuation methodoicgy
reguired is as follows:

- feasibility analysis” including demoliton, subdivisional,
construction, and other develooment costs, allowances
for sales and marketing expenses, inwerest and an
afiowance for profit and nsk © amrive af 2 base value for
the {and. Any such analysis is based on the premise that
the devetopment approval has or will be obtained prior to
settlement of the loan, Alternatively, the valuation must
contain an adjustment for any uncertainty attaching to the
geveiopment approval process. The reguirement for 2
feasibility analysis may be satisfied, I appropriate, using
alternate technigues such as discounted cash flows; and
‘gross realisation” based on comparable sales evidence
for the indwidual components eg. houses, units,
alfotments etfc.

The Manager wifl reasonably assess the appropriateness of
the feasibility analysis within the valusr's report by comparizon
with cost eslimates provided by & competent quanfity surveyor
selected from the Manager's panel.
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The “on completion” value i3 the valuation figure used in the cost
to complete calculations during the development phase. The “on
completion” value may be revised during the term of development
toreflect changes as approved by the Manager,

Complaints Procedure

If an investor has a complaint they should generafly first contact
their adviser. If the adviser iz unavailable, unwilling, or unable to
assist, or f the investor wishes to directly contact the Manager,
and the complaint relates to the Fund or the Manager, then the
investor should contact the Client Relations Depariment at the
office of the Manager on free call 1800 082 919 (Australia only}
or +617 5584 4500. Complaints may be made in writing or oy
telephone, The Manager will respond within 30 days of receiving
the complaint. i complaints cannot be resolved intemally the
Manager will refer the complainant fo the Financial Industry
Complaints Service {'FICS"), an external industry complaints
body which has been approved by ASIC and of which the
lManager is a member.

Financial Industry Compiaints Service Limited
PO Box 576

Colling Street

MELBOURNE ViC 8007

Telephone: 1800 335 405

Facsimile: (03) 9621 2201

email: fics@fics.asn.au

Interests of the Manager

Pursuant te the compliance plan, the Manager and the employees
and officers of the Manager and the various investment schemes
of the Manager, are entitled to apely for units in the Fund. The
Manager will be a wholesale investor and may be offered a
differential fee arrangement in these circumstances.

Related Parties

Peter Drake, a director of the Manager is the beneficial owner
of LM Administraion Pty Ltd, which has been engaged by
LM Inwestment Management Lid to provide administration
services al a commercial ams-length fee. in addition to this
LM Administration Pty Lid provides administration and funds
management services to the Fund and is paid 2 management fee
direct from the Fund.

John O'Sullivan, a non-executive direcior of the Manager is
the beneficial owner of O'Suflivan Capital Management Lid.
O'Sulivan Capital Management Lid has been engaged by L
Investment Management Ltd to provide marketing services in
New Zealand at a commercial arms-iength fee. This fee is paid
by the Fund.

- The Fund may lend to related parties provided the loans are on
commercial arms-length terms and are subject to review by the
Board.

The Board of the Manager is responsible for reviewing and
approving the structure and probity of commercial dealings
between the Manager and any related parties. Fees issued to
the account of the Fund by related paries, which are recoverable
from the Fund must be on commercial arms-length terms and are
subject to review by the Board,

Related Party Loans of the LM First Mortgage Income Fund

Hame Loan balance interest Percentage
as at 28 rate of toial loan
February porifolio
2008

Austrafian international  §7,779.51% 10.5% 1%

investment Sarvices
Piy Ltd™

* Austrafian International Investment Services Pty Lid is 100%
owned by the LM Managed Performance Fund (a related
fnvestment fund}, which has entered into a joint venture with a
property developer io gevsiop land in Canberra.

The Fund is lending money on commercial terms and conditions
to Australian Intemational Investment Services Pty Ltd,

The Manager received establishment faes of 1% of the total ioan
amount ($7,779,519) for this loan.

Related Party Finance

Tne Manager is the Responsible Enfity of the LM Managed
Performance Fund.  From time to time the LM Managed
Performance Fund advancas loans by way of second morigages
fo borrowers who have frst mortgage advances from the Fund,
Al 28 February 2008 there are 8 such loans by the LI Managed
Performance Fund in the total amount of $27.387.416. In these
instances the Fund enters into Priority Deeds with the borrower as
part of normal loan documentation procedures. The LM Managed
Performance Fund generates fees, charges and interest rates all
of which are paid by the borrower,

Conflicts of Interest Management

The Manager has a documentad Conflicts Management Policy
which deals with the idenfification, assessment and freatment
of canflicts of inferest and related party transactions. The Risk
Manager has responsibifity for conflicts and prepares conflict
records for each conflict or related party transaction identified.
Board approval is required for all reiated party transactions,

Manager's Liability

To the extent allowed by law the Manager is not liable for any
loss or damage fo any person (inciuding any investor} arising
out of any matier provided the Manager acts in good fzith and in
accoriance with the constitution,

This PDS has been prepared by the Manager based on
information within its own knowledge or provided to it by its
advisers. Other than as required by law, no responsibility is
taken by the Manager or any parties mentioned in this PDS for
any stalement made in relation fo the Fund ofher than those
statements made in this PDS. Neither the Manager, nor any other
party gives any guarantee with respect to the performance of the
Fund. The Manager has authorised the issue of this PDS, The
Manager does not purport to advise investors in refation fo this
investment or their taxation posiion.

Custodian’s Disciosures and Disciaimer

interests of the Custodian

The custodian has no interest in refation to the Fund. and has
not received any inducements other than the remuneration
is enfitied o recelve under the relevant custody agreement or
constitltion by way of custodian fees .
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The custodian fees for the LM First Mortgage Income Fund are
currently the greater of 0.02% pa of the assets of the LM First
Mortgage income Fund or 520,000 pa,

It is the intention of the Manager to take over the role of custodian
of the Fund during the life of this PRS. Alllegislative requirements
will be adhered to by the Manager at that ime.

Custodian Disclaimer

The role of the custodian is to hold the assets of the Fund and
titlie documents as agent for the Manager it is not the role of
the custodian io protect the rights and interests of the Fund's
invesiors,

The custodian does not guarantee the return of any investment,
any tax deduction availabiiity or the performance of the Fund.

Consent by Auditors

Ermst & Young, financial and compliance audifors, have
consented o be named in this PDS in the form and context in
which they appear. Ernst & Young is not responsible for, norhas it
caused or authorised the issue of this PDS.

Continuous Disclosure

The Fund s & disclosing entify for Corporations Act purpeses and
as such 1s subject to regular reporiing and disclosure obligations,
Copies of documents iodged with ASIC in relation to the Fund
miay be obtained from, orinspected at, an ASIC office.

Investors have a night to obtain a copy of the following documents:

the annual financiai report for the Fund;
¢+ any hall-year financiai report lodged with ASIC; and
any continuous disclosure noticas given by the Fund.

Effect of infernational Accounting Standards

Under AASE 132 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures and
Presentations”, contractual obligations are regarded as liabilities.
As unithoiders have the ability to redeem units from the Fund, aff
unitholders’ funds are recognised as liabilities of the Fund, rather
than equity. The result of this is o reduce the net assets of the
Fund to zero. As interest distributions paid and payable make up
a proportion of unitholders’ funds, they will be classified as interest
expenses in the Statement of Financial Performance.

AASBI30 requires assels to be classified into one of four
categones depending on the type of asset.

Investments are classified as either held fo maturity iInvestiments
or available for sale financial assets depending on the type of
investment.  Those investments that are held to maturty are
measured af amortised cost using the effective inferest rate
method. The nvestments that are classified as availabie for sale
are measured at a fair value basis each reparting period, with any
movement n fair value being reflected through the equity reserve,

Under the Australian Equivalent of the intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (AIFSR) the Fund is recuired to recognise
all the derivaiive financial instruments at fair value on the balance
sheet. Where possibig, the Fund will adopt hedge accounting
s¢ that the gains and iosses on the financial instrument are
recognised in fine with income recognition for the hedged term
and the volatility in the profit and loss is minimised,

Where hedging accounting cannot be adopted the gains and
iosses on the financial instrument are recognised at fair value with
changes in far vaiue recorded through the profit and ioss,

VWhere fair value hedge accounting is used, fair value changes on

both the hedged item and the hedging instrument are recognised
directly in the profit and loss. Where cash fiow hedge accounting
is used the carrying value of the hedged item is not adjusted and
the fair vaiue changes on the relaled hedging instrument are
reflected in a separate equity reserve and are then transferred to
the profit and ioss at the fime the hadged ftem is reafised.

The Fund uses cash flow hedge accounting. As such there is &
potential for volatility in the squity reserve.

Electronic PDS

This PDS is available in electronic form at www. LMaustralia.com.
Any person receiving this PDS electronically will on request be
sent a paper copy of the PDS {and attached Application Form)
by the Manager free of charge during the period of the offer.
Appiications must be made by completing a paper copy of the
Application Fomm which forms part af this PDS,

The Manager will not accept a completed Application Form i
it has reason fo believe that the applicant has not received a
complete paper copy or slectronic copy of the PRS or if & has
reason to believe that the Application Form or electronic copy of
the PDS has been altered or tampered with in any way. While
the Manager believes that it is extremely unfikely that during
the periad of the offer the electronic version of the PDS will be
tampered with or altered m any way, the Manager cannot give any
absolute assurance that this will not sccur. Any investor in doubt
concerning the validity orintegrity of an electronic copy of the PDS
should immaediately request a paper copy of the PDS diredt from
the Manager or their adviser.
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Suppieeéa;y Pcﬁuct Eisisuzfe Statement
28 Novernber 2008

This is the Supplementary Product Disclosure Statement (“First SPDS”) thal supplements the Product Disclosure Statemant issuad on 10 Aprit
2008 {"PDS"} for the LM First Martgage income Fund ARSN 080 343 288 (the "Fund"}. investors should read this First SPDS together with the
PDS prior to Investing in the LM First Morigage income Fund.

The purpose of this First SPDS is to update investors as follows -

" New investors {or investors roling over their existing investments) may now nominate monthly distributions for non-Australizn doliar
currency hedged fixed investment terms;

b This document contains updated informnation in relation to the Fund: and

v This document includes information fo comply with the raguirements of ASIC s Regulatory Guide 45 - “Mortgage Schemes — improving
Disclosure for Retail investors” released in September 2008,

Monthly Distributions now Available for Non-Australian Doliar Currency Hedged Fixed
investment Terms as well as Australian Doliar Fixed investment Terms

Non-Australian dollar currency hedged fixed term investors may electto have their distributions electronically credited to the investor's nominated
financial insttution accouni on a menthly basis. If the distribution is electronically credited monthily fo ar investor's financial institution account
the distribution is not hedged. The distribution is not hedged as the Fund pays the monthiy distribufion directly from the samings of the Fund in
Australian doflars. The distribution does not form part of the FFEC as it does for a nor-AUD investment where the interest is paid af maturity,

Such distributions will be paid within 5 business days of the monthly anniversary of the day the investment begins. For exampie, if the
investment commences on 15 June the distribution will be paid by 20 July. Investors should note that financial institutions may charge 2
remittance fee which will be deducted from the investor's distribution amount,

if an investor wants to change the distribution instructions it can onty do so on roffover of the investment and writien notice must be received by
the Manager at least 5 business days prior fo the maturity date,

Calculation of Monthiy Distribution
The calculation of the value of the unhedgad distribution will be as foliows -

The simple rate of return in the relevant non-AUD currency will be converied o the AUD value at the spot rate as at the day of the inftial
trade date. For example-

¥ Hvestol invests USD$100K at an effective rats of 5.75%pa, the simple rate is 5.60%pa;

& The USDS100K investment witl eam interest of USDY5.600 caiculated as foliows- USD$I00K x 5.60%pa for 12 months =
USDEE 600;

¢ The tofal distribution amount of USDISE 800 is converted 1o AUD at the spot rate of 0.93 = AUDSE 022
¢« Investor will be paid monthly distributions of AUDS501.83 calcuiatad as follows - AUDSE 02212 = AUDSE01.83.

Interest rates are variable and may change during the invesiment,

To Apply for Monthiy Distributions for Non-Austraiian Doliar Currency Hedged Fixed investment Terms

if a non-Australian dollar investor wants o slect to have their distribufions paid monthly, wher compisting the Application Fom they should

wrile in Section 11 of the Application Form (Page 48 of the PDS) “Interest distributions are to be paid monthly to the bank account nominated
in Section 15,

LM investment Managemeni Lid
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ASIC Benchmark Disciosure for investors

The information in the table below 1s provided to comply with the requirements of ASIC's Regqulatory Guide 45 - *"Morigage Schemes — improving
Disclosure for Retall investors” released in September 2008, Regulatory Guide 45 refers fo 8 benchmarks developed by ASIC. From 30
November 2008. all DSs for unlisted merigage schemes are required to include the following statements in respect of each benchmari:-

b that the Fund meets the benchmark: or

b that the Fund does not meet the benchmark, and an explanation of how and why the Fund deals with the business factor or issue
underlying the benchmark in another way.

Afull copy of Regulatory Guide 45 can be obtained from the ASIC website: www.asic.gov.au.

The Manager wilt notify investors in the Fund of any material adverse information in reiation to the Fund. This will include such information that
relales to the ASIC banchmarks. Information relevant to the Fund that is net materially adverse and that is subjest fo chenge from time to time
{inciuding information that refates fo the ASIC benchmarks) will be updated by the Manager on its website af www.LMaustraiia.com. and a paper
copy of any updated informaticn will be given to any person without charge on request.

The following information relevant fo the ASIC benchmarks is avallabie fom the Managar's website at www.L Maustralia.com/downioads/
FIIF_portfolio_update pdf in the document tited LM First Morigage income Fund - Portfolic Update, or a copy can be obtained free of chargs
by telephoning freacall 1800 062 919 {Australia only} or +617 5584 4500 -

[ information on the nature of the Fund's investment portfoiio, including details of lsans and whether the Fund invests in other unlisted
mortgage schemes and the conditions of such investment.

Set out below are the 8 ASIC benchmarks and a summary of how the Fund meets or does not meet the benchmarks. We encourage you to
discuss the ASIC benchmarks with your financial adviser,

BENCHMARK DOES LM MEET  EXPLANATION
BENCHMARK

Liguidity Yes The Manager has cash fiow estimates for the Fund for the next 3 months and as the Fund has fixed
(which for the purposes investment terms of 12, 6, 3 and 1 months, the Fund wit have sufficient cash or cash equivatents
of this benchmark (not including undrawn amounts under lending facilities) to meet projected cash needs over the
means the proportion next 3 months. Refer to page 4 of this First SPDS under the heading “Liquidity Policy” for further
of cash or cash detalls, including the Manager's policy on balancing the maturity of the Fund's assets with the
equivalents in the maturity of the Fund's kiabilifies.

Fund’s assets)

Scheme Borrowing Yag Under the constitution the Manager may borrow against the Fund assefs on terme and conditions
acceptable tothe Manager. TheManager has amanged a fne of oredit facility with the Commonwealth
Bank of Australia ("CBA"). This facility was put into piace in order to aliow the Manager to take
advantage of competitive commercial lending opporturitiss, or to assist the Fund with managing
lquidity. At the date of this First SPDS the amount owing o the CBAwas $150 milion. The facility
term is the subject of an annual review and the Manageris currently renegotiating the credit facility
with CBA and expects these negotiations to be finaiised by 31 December 2008, The Manager
expacts that negotiations with CBA will result in a continued line of credit faciity for a total of $150
mittion for & further 12 month term and wil be subject to an annuaf review. The finange facility is
secured by & fixed and floating charge over the assets ofthe Fund, providing the CBA as a secured
lznder with first priority over the assets and icome of the Fund. The fights of investors o the
income and assets of the Fund are secondary to the rights of the CBA The facility will be repaid via
mvestment inflows and inflows received from principal repayments from borowers,

Portfolio Yes The Manage! provides details in relation to number of loans and details of the morigage portfolic

Divergification diversification on the Porifolio Update and these details comply with the ASIC benchmark
requirements.  The Portfolio Update will be available from the Manager's website at www.
LMaustrafia comdownloads/FMIF _portfoiic_update.pdf in the document tited "L First Mortgage
income Fund — Porfolio Update” The Managers lending policies and procedures for the Fund
provide further details in relation fo maximum ican amount for any one borrower; the method
of assessing borrowers' capacty to senvice joans; the Manager's approach to taking security
revaluing security properties on rollover and whether the security must be income producing. See
the section headed “Lending Policies and Procedures of the Fund” on page 4 of this First SPDS,
The Manager does not cumently invest in other unlisted mortgage schemes, but has i power to
do so in the Fund constitution. The Manager's policy on investing in such schemes is to ascerain
whether such an vastment is desirable for the Fund in light of the circumstances atthat fime. The
Manager will not necessarly require such a scheme to safisfy the ASIC benchmarks hefore the
Manager invests in the scheme.
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BENCHMARK DOES LM MEET  EXPLANATION
BENCHMARK

Related Party © Yes The Fund may lend to refated parties, but such loans are subject to review by the Board and can

Transactions only be approved on commercial arms-length terms tollowing approval by the Credit Commitiee.
The Board's approval process is monitored by the Manager's Risk Manager and Business
Standards and Compliance Manager. The Fund may alse invest in other managed nvestment
schemes which are operated by the Manager. All Fund investments follow the same stringent due
difgence processes which are monitorad by the Chief Financial Offcer. Eor further details refer
to the paragraph under the heading "Related Parfies” on page 7 of this First SPDS Also refer io
the paragraph uncer the heading “Confiicts of Interest Management” on page 34 of the PDS for
information in relation fo how the Manager deals with confiicts of interest,

Valuation Policy No The Manager's valuation policies set out how real property asseis over which the Fund has
security will be valued {that is, on an "as is” basis, and for deveiopment loans, alsc on an "as f
compiete” basis) and hew often valuations are obtained. The ASIC benchmark also requires that
N0 one valuer conducts more than 1/3 of the valuafion work for the Fund, The Fund complies
with this requirement. Vaiuers selected to perform retevant vaiuations on the security properiy are
chosen based on independence, specialist industry expertise and geographic location. The ASIC
benchmark requires the disclosure of information about the valuation of 3 particular property for an
uniisted morigage scheme where a loan secured against the property accounts for 5% or more of
the fotal value of the scheme’s loan book. The Manager does not provide this information due to
privacy reasons, the commercial sensitivity of valuation information and hecause the assets within
the loan book changs regularly. Further details in relation to the Manager's valuation policies are
ocutlined on page 5 of this First SPDS under the paragraphs headed "Valuation Policies”.

Lending Principles No It Is the Manager's current pefizy o generally not exceed a loan fo valuation ratio of 66.67%
on construction and development loans and 75% on commerdial loans {which rafios do both
comply with the ASIC benchmark of 70% on property development - on the basis of the latest
‘as if complete’ valuation aind in all ofher cases 80% on the basis of the iatest market valuation).
However, It is the Manager's current practice to exceed those ratios whenever necessary in the
process of working through a repayment solution. The Fund's constitution aliows the Manager to
lerd funds provided that all mortgages are secured over preperty and the amount which may be
advanced o a borrower does not exceed an LVR of 75% of the value of the security property on
inttial settiement, After a loan has sattled and where the Manager considers it is in the hast interests
of the members of the Fund, the Manager may approve an LVR not to exceed 85% of the value
of the security property. The LVR of a Inan that is in defauft may exceed 85%. Where the loan is
a development ioan, funds are advanced progressively In stages throuah the developmerd on a
“Cost to Complete” basis and the Manager engages an external consultant Quantity Surveyor for
each development and receives periodic reports an the progress of the development including
cerification of construction claime based on work completed.  Further details in refation fo the
Manager's lending policies and procedurss are outlined on page 4 of this First SPDS under the
heading “Lending Policies. and Procedures for the Fund”,

Distribution Practices  Yes Distributions are sourced from income eamed from the aseefs ofthe Fund. The inferest distribution
rates are variable depending on the income eaned, expenses paid and other matiers relevant to
the Fund. ¥ the income eamed is not sufficient to pay all expenses and interest distributions
the retums to investors will be fower. The lower return will be determined based on the amount
avaliable to pay interest distributions. Please refer to the Manager's wabsite at www.LMausiralia.
com for detadls of the most recert interest distribution rates. Past performarnce i not an mdicator
of future perdfarmance.

Withdrawal Yes - Details in reiation to how and when investors can withdraw from the Fund are sef out on page
Arrangements 17 ot the PDS headed “How to Withdraw” and updated with information i relation to payment
of withdrawals on page 6 of this First 8PDS. As noted in that sediion of the PDS in certain
circumstances the Manager may defay withdrawals from the Fund by up fo 365 days or suspend
withdrawals for such period as i determines in order fo protect all investmenis, -

Adelay inmeefing an investor's withdrawal request is posshle where there arg a significant number
of withdrawal requests received at the same time. which absorb the cash reservas of the Fund and
ff assets of the Fung are not sufficiently figuid. The Manager has a liguidity poficy that is monfored
by the Bozrd to adequately menage payment of withdrawais within the time period specified.

trvestors should also note the automatic rollover provisions which apply to their investments, and

the time periods for nofice o be given to withdraw — see the heading "Fixed Term lnvestment E
Withdrawal Notice” on page 6 of the PDS and the heading “Automatic Reinvestment Default  «
Position” or: page 9 of the PDS, E
The amount payable to investors on withdrawal will be the jssys price of their units at that time. %
This amount is subject fo change depending on the net value of the assets of the Fund, See the %
heading "Unit Pricing” on page 13 of the PDS for further detaiis. ""
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Assets of the Fund

Updated information in refation fo assets of the Fund shown on page 12 of the PDS, including details in relation to number of loans, details of the
morigage portfolio diversification and arrears, is available from the Manager's website at www.| Maustralia.com/downloads/FIMIF _porffolio_
update.pdf. in the document fitied LM First Mortgage Income Fund - Partfolio Update, or a copy can be obtained free of charge by teigphoning
the Manager's regional offices or by tetephoning the Manager's head office on freecall 1800 082 ¢1¢ {Australia only) or +617 5584 4500,

Liguidity Policy
The Manager monitors and balances the Fund's portiolio of assets between cash and Australian registered first mortgage securities as part of
the Fund’s fiquidity management.

The liquidity policy of the Fund describes the methodology the Manager applies to ensure that the maturity of the assefs and liabilities of the
Fund do net negatively Impact on the Fund. The Manager does this by confinually monitoring and managing the four variables that impact on
liquidity which are: investor inflows: invesior redemptions; loan draws and loan repayments,

Since its inception in 1998, the Fund has setfled approximately $4 billion of first mortgages within the commercial, indusirial, retail, residential,
aged care and construction sectors of Australia's proparty market {past performance is not an indicator of future performance). The Manager's
Commercial Lending Team is focused on growing #s national mortgage broker and direct borrower network, with the intention of ensuring a
continued supply of foans for the partiofio,

As required by the ASIC benchmark on liguidity, eslimating cash flows, the Manager can take into account a ressonzhic estimate of
investor inflows and outflows based on pravious experience. Withdrawais are considerad with reference o the period within which investors
would reasonably expect withdrawal requests to be processed, rather than the maximum period within which the Manager is able to process
withdrawa requests. As noted under the heading "Withdrawals” on page 6 of this First 8PDS, investors may expect tmeframes of up to 385
days for withdrawals if the current markat conditions remain.

Lending Policies and Procedures of the Fund

The infarmation contained in the PDS on page 10 under the haading “Lending Policies and Procedures of the LM First Mortgage income Fund',
page 32 under the heading "Lending Criteria of the Fund®, page 33 under the headings "Development Loang’, “Credit Committee”, “Valuations
Policy", “Devsiopment Vatuations”, "As is’ Valuation” and “"On Complefion’ Valuation”, is deleted and repiaced with the following.

Credit Commitiee

The Credit Commitiee is integra! to the compliance and risk management processes ulilised by the Manager with respect to the selestion
of registerec first mortgage assets for the Fund. The Credit Committee Is an internal review committtes for alt mortgage investmente and i
independent from ali other departments. The Cradit Commitize calis for coliaboration of a broad base of expertise from the property, finance,
legal and accounting sectors when evaluating morigage assets for the Fund. The formal structute and collaborative decision making process
provided by the Credit Committee ensures an informed assessment and abjective decision is made when selecting the first martgage assetls
of the Fund.

New mortgage investment proposals are put forward by the commercial lending depariment for consideration with a written summary. The
Credit Commitiee is responsible for setting the primary terms and conditions upon which subsequent approval will be hased.

When mortgage invesiment proposals are compleled in accordance with the Manager's credif standards they are required to be finally approved
by the Credit Committee.

Lending Criferia of the Fund

b The Manager has determined and documented lending policies for the approvat and management of mortgages. Risk management is
a priority, with mortgages diversified over a number of levels including geographic location, sector, loan size, interest rate and matutity
profile,

b One of the tools the Manager employs to enhance income into the Eund is to bafance the assets of the morfgage portfolio between
commercial loans and selechve development lnans,

B The type of real estaie offered for security must be acceptable to the Manager. Typical morigage securities will inciude commercial,
industrial end residential real estate (including evelopment ioans across these seciors) secured by & registered first mongage. A first
morigage must be registered on the primary security property,

2 The value of the security property must be estabitshed in accordanee with the valuations policy of the Manager.

b Tnz ability of the borrower to service the facility must be established to the satisfaction of the Manager.

b To the extent that they may affect the vaiue or perfarmance of an underlying investment the Manager may take into account labour
standards, of environmental, social or ethical considarations when making, retaining or realising an investment in the Fund. The Manager
has no predetermined view about how far such matters will be taken into account, and the Manager will make a defermination on such
ssues on & case by case basis,

Lending Policies and Procedures

The Manager will be selective in its choice of mortgages and will adhers to prudent lending parameters. The Fund will follow strict tending
pelicies and procedures as detailed beiow -

B assessment of the borrower - the Manager endeavours to meet every horrower to assess character and business acumen;

2 the maximum loan amount for any one bamrower generally does not exceed 10% of the scheme assets;

W all mortgages are subject to the Manager's rigorous due diligence process inciuding approval by the Manager's Credit Commitige;

# he due dillgence process includes assessment of the financial capacity of the borrowar and any guarantors, The assessment is carried
out by review anc substantiation of assets, liabilities and income by reference fo information provided by the borrower and independent
searches and checks:
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o a first mortgage ie always registered on property held as the primary security;

b commercialioans are ioans secured by incoms producing property. Non-cammercial loans {nat secured by income producing property)
incitide construction/development lozns and pre-development land. The capacily to service commercial loans is assessed primarily by
reference to income produced from the security property, however income from alf sources is also considered. The capacity to service
construction loans is primarly dependent on the viabilify of the project the project cash flow {including interest commitments) and af
factors relevant {o the project inciuding valuafion of the complater! product, product demand, pre-sales contracis, marketing strategies,
certified project costings, credentials of the borrower, bulder and key sub-contractors:

v the Manager has every security property vatued by one of the Manager's panel valuers or by a valuer meeting the Manager's standards
forinciusion on its panel and adhering to the Manager's valuation policies. Further details in relation o the Managet's valuation poficies
are outlined below under the heading “Valuafion Policies™

3 the Manager has a policy of diversifying merigage securitias geographically and by propery type;
v the Manager has a policy of generally not exceeding the following 1oan to valuation ratios:-
¥ 66.67% for construction and deveiopment loans; and
& 75% for commenrcial loans;
The Credit Committee will consider the aporepriate loan to valuation ratio based on all the factors surrounding the loan;

b the censtitution of the Fund aliows the Manager to lend funds provided that all mortgages are secured over property and the amount
which may e advanced to a barrower doss not excead an LVR of 75% of the value of the securily property on initial settlement, After a
loan has setiled and where the Manager considers it is in the best inferests of the members of he Fund, the Manager may approve an
LVR not to exceed 85% of the value of the security property. The LVR of 2 loan that is in default may exceed 85%. This could accur for
example, where interest is being capitalised while the security property s being marketed and sold, orwhere fhe Manager determines that
expenditure should be incurred to improve the security property prior to sale {the Manager considers a loan to be in default when interest
payments have not been received in breach of the loan agreement, or the toan term has expired without repayment of principal};

= the following additional requirements are imposed in the case of development loans:

& fordevelopmenticonstruction ioans the inifial drawdown for the facility is arrived at after considering both the approved toan io valuation
ratio en the “as 18" valuation and the “cost to complete” formuta. The inifial drawdown must meat the loan to valustion ratio required
and also allow sufficient funids to be avaliable in the facility to complete the deveiopment. The project feasibility must reflect the “cost
to compilete” formula throughout the life of the project. The concept of a “cost to complete” formula is that the lender always retains
sufficient funas within the loan facllity to compiete the develepment based on its assessment of the actual cost to complete the project.
The Manager engages an external consultant Quaniity Surveyor for each project and receives periogic reports on the progress of the
project incuding certification of construction daims based on work complated: ‘

& additional development loan procedures are required throughout the development stages of the loan to ensure the development is
adequately monitored;

« where applicable a triparfite agreement is made between the Manager, the borrower and the builder. This enabies the Manager, in
the event of default by the borrower, to deal directly with the buiider,

Valuation Policies

All real property assets of the Fund are required to be valued prior to setilement of each transaction. Vaiuations may only be caried out by the
Marager's panel vaiuers or by a valuer meeting the Manager's standards for inclusion on its panel and must adhere to the Manager's valuation
guidefines. The Manager has detarmined and documented vaiuation review procadures for guidance on each valuation.

Members of the valuation pana! are appointed and removed in accordance with the Manager's valualion panel appointment guidelines. The
Manager is responsible for approving the appoirtment or remaval of & panel valuer.

The Manager, in accordance with ifs valuations review guidelines is responsible for the review of all valuations. Unresaived issues arising from
2 review must be referred to an executive director for discussion and determination.

As an internal chesking mechanism, an independent property repert is obtained {where appropriate} from two real estate agents or an alternate
valuers report whose nomal trade area encompasses the propariy being valued.

Valuers selected by the Manager to perform relevant valuations on the security property are chosen based on independence, specialist industry
experiise and gecgraphic location

The Marager only uses vaiuers who, where possibie. are registered under one of the state/lerritory valuer registration regimes and who include
& staternent in their vaiuation reports on whether the valuation compiies with all relevant industry standards and codes.

The Manager does not accept vaiuations performed on the instruction of barrowers. The Manager requires thal valuations be provided on fhe
Manager's instructions, or that vatuers confirm that their valuations adnere o the Manager's requirements.

The valuer must have appropriate professional indemnity insurance.
The valuer must certify that they are independent of both the borrower and security property.
Alinitial settlement, the valuation relied on must not be dated more than 2 months prior to setflement,

An updated valuation will generally be required where 2 loan ferm is extended o & loan is otherwise varied. An uptiated valuation will also
generally be required for commercial loans at 24 month intervals and for canstruction ioans at 12 month infervals, The reguirement for an
updated valuation: may be waived where the Manager considers that an updated valuation would serve no useful purpose (2.g. where it
is demonstrable that properly values have increased or nof changed in the locality of the property, where a property under construstion is
significantly presold, where & commercial property has iong term leases in place, where a sale of refinance is imminent or where the loan to
valuation ratio of the property is low).
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Development Valuations
Separate valuations (may be within the one valuation rapert) are required in relation to "as is" and “on completion” valuations.

Appropriate instructions must be given fo the valuer hawhg regard [o the type of vaiuation required. In particular the instructions indicate the
type of valuation required eg. “as is” o “on complation”.

YAs is” Valuation

The "as is" valuation is the markst valuation of the property af the time of the initial drawdown. A “feasibility analysis” is underiaken including
demolition, subdivision, construction, and other tevelopmant costs, allowances for sales and marketing expsnses, interast and an allowance
for profit and risk 10 arrive at a base value for the land. Any such analysis is based on the premise that the deveiopment approval has or will be
abtained priar o setfiement of the loan, Alternatively, the vatuation must contain an adjustment for any uncertainty attaching to the development
approval process. The requirement for a feasibility analysis may be safisfied, if appropriate, using aiternate techniques such as discounted
cash fiows, Additionally a cross check valuation meathod is employed evaluating comparabie sales evidence. The loan fo valuation ratio in this
case must fall within the Manager's lending oriteria,

“Gn Completion” Valuation
The “on completion” valug is the market value of the propetty at the completion of development. The valuation methodology required is a "gross
realisation” valuation based on comparable sales and/or lease evidence for the individuat components e.g, houses, units, alictments ate.,

The Manager will reasonably assess the appropriateness of the feasibility analysis within the vatuer's repott by comparison with cost esfimates
provided by & competent exiemal guaniity surveyor selected from the Manager's panel.

The "on completion” value is the valuation figure used in the cost to coempiste calculations during the development phase. The "on completion”
value may be revised during the temi of development to reflect changes as approved by the Manager,

Withdrawals

From fime fo time dependent on market cycles, the Manager may pay withdrawals over longer timeframes than usual in a normmal market
enviranment. As currently stated in the PDS, in certain circumstances withdrawal payments may be exiended to 365 days or the Manager
may suspend withdrawals. This protective management mechanism can be utifised o menage liquidity, lo protect Fund assets and stabiiity
and investor distributions,

Due to the current wurmoll and unpredictability of the marke?, the Manager is exercising caution with the Fund's cashflow management and
utilising longer tmeframes for redemptions. The Fund is currently continuing to pay redemptions, with income being eamed up o the date of
payment, and non-Australian doliar investments continue to hadge the currency exposure of these investments. However, longer imsframes
of up to 385 days can occur should the market dictate. The Manager may also suspend withdrawais far such periods as if determines,

in light of the above matters, the following changes are made to the PDS:

2 On page 17 of the PDS titled "How fo Withdraw”, the normal market environment timeframes for payment of withdrawals of generaliy
within 30 days after maturity for Australian dollar investments and generally within 5 business days after maturity date no longer oecur at
this time, and references to those time periods under the heading "Withdrawai Notice Period” are deleted from the PDS.

b Infootnotes 8, 8, 11, 13,16, 17 and 18 on pages 5, 8,7, 8,9, 10ard 12 respectively of the PDS, the words "While the Manager considers
any delays uniikely” are deleted.

- On pages 5 6, 7, 8 and 31 of the PDS, the references o "The Flexi Account option generally allows investors 30 day access o their
funds” and “Payment of the withdrawal will generally occur within 30 days from receipt of the written notice” ang "Payment of the
withdrawal will generally be made within 30 days after the maturity date” and “Payment of the withdrawal wil generally be made within 5
business days after the maturity date” and the paragraph beginning “Historically, the Fund has successiully met afl withdrawa! requests
on time and in full are deleted.

The Manager is managing the challenges of the current external factors to engure the ongoing success of e Fund in terms of both income

and stability.

investment Risks

Currency Risk

Non-Austraiian dollar investors whe elect to have their disiributions electronically credited fo the investor's nominated financial institution on a
monthly basis should note there is a possible additionat currency risk which relates 1o the unhedged distribution. These investors should take
into account the paragraph below in addition to the “Currency Risk” paragrapit on page 26 of the PDS,

b investors with non-Australian doflar investments who have elected 1o have their distributions paid monthly shouid note the distnbution is
not hedged as the Fund pays the monthly distribution directly from the earnings of the Fund in Australian dollars. The distribution does
nat form part of the FFEC as it does for a non-Australian doliar investment where the inferast is paid at maturity and as such the monthiy
unhedged distribution is subject to currency risk,

Borrowing Risk
As referred to in this First SPDS there have been changes made in relation to the Fund's borrowing and as such the Borrowing Risk on page
27 of the PDS is repiaced with the following paragraph.

Under the constitution the Manager may borrow against the Fund assets on terms and condifions accepiable to the Manager. The Manager
nas arranged e line of credit facility with the Commonwealth Banic of Australia ("CBA"). This facility was pul inte place in order to aliow the
Manager to 1ake advantage of competitive commercial lending opporiunities. or to assist the Fund with managing houidity. As at 28 November
2008 the amount owing to the CBAwas $150 million. As at 28 November 2008 the interest rate ¢f the factiity is varizble and is priced betwaen
0.50% 1o 1.10% above the respective BRSY bid rate. The faciity term is the subject of an annual review. The Manager is curmently renegotiating
the credit facility with CBA and expects these negotiations to be finalised by 31 December 2008. The Manager expects that negotiations with
CBAwill result in a continued fine of credit facility for a total of $150 million for a further 12 manth ferm and will b2 subject to an annual review.
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The finance facifity is secured by a fixed and floating charge over the zssets of the Fund, providing the CBA as a secured lender with first priority
over the assefs and income of the Fund. The rights of mvestors fo the income and assets of the Fund are secondary to the rights of the CBA,
The facility will be repaid vis Investment inflows and inflows received from principal repayments from borrowers This faclity or a similar facility
may be varied from fime fo ime i order to manage the Fund. Insufficient income generated by the Fund to service the CBA debt, increases in
the bank inferes! rate or an unforeseen refusal of the financier 1o extend the term of any facility coutd cause the Fund to default on #s loan,

The Directors

By way of update to information about the Directars on page 28 of the PDS, Simon Tickner has been appointed as an executive director
and John Dillon and Val Llewellyn are no longer non-executive direciors.  Information in relation to Simon's background and positien with the
Manager is culiined in the paragraph below.

Simon Tickner - Executive Director, Head of Lending

In 2001, Simon immigrated to Australia with his family after 2 20 year career in trading and broking financial derivatives in London's maoney
markets, Having estabiished LM's Sydney office that year, Simon has since overseen its growth whilst managing LM's business davelopment
i the southem states of Austrafia. As Head of Lending, Simon traveis throughout Austradia to source and assess new iending opportunitios
for LM. As Execufive Director, Simon's extensive ‘on the ground' knowiedge of Australia's many property markefs provides valuabie insight to
LM's board, and sfatistical knowledge to LM's Property Research and Analysis Committee. Simon is a member of the Board of Birectars, Credit
Committee, Funds Management Committee and Property Research and Analysis Commitiee.

Borrowings of the Fund
The following paragraph replaces the information contained on page 32 of the PDS under the heading “‘Borrowings of the Fund™,

Under the constitution the Manager may borrow against the Fund assets on terms and condifions acceptable to the Manager, The Manager has
arranged & line of credit facility with the Commonwealth Bank of Australia {("CBA"), This faciiity was put info ptace in order fo allow the Manager
to take advantage of competitive commerciat fending apporfunifies, or to assist the Fund with managing kiguidity. As at 28 November 2008 the
amount owing to the CBA was $150 million. As at 28 November 2008 the interest rae of the facility is variable and is priced between 0.50%
0 1.10% above the respective BBSY bid rate. The facility term is the subject of an annual review. The Manager is currently renegotiating the
credit facility with CBA and expects these negotiations o be finaised by 31 December 2008. The Manager axpacts that negofiations with CBA
will result in 2 confinued line of credit facifity for $150 million for a further 12 month term. The fimance facility is secured by a fixed and flioating
charge over the assets of the Fund, providing the CBA as a secured lender with first priority over the assets and incame of the Fund. The rightts
of investors to the income and assets of the Fund are secondary fo the fights of the CBA. The facility will be repaid via investment inflows and
inflows received from principal repayments from borrowers. The Funds credit facility may be varied fram time to time i order to manage the
Fund.

Complaints Procedure

The external indusiry complaints body approved by ASIC and of which the Marager is @ member has changed from the Financial Industry
Complaints Service {*FICS") to the Financial Ombudsman Service Limited ("FOS"), The paragraph below replaces the information under the
heading "Complaints Procedure” on page 34 of the PDS,

If an investor has a complaint they should generally first contact their adviser. If the adviser is unavailable. unwilfing, or unable tv assist, or if
the investar wishes to directly contact the Manager, and the complaint relates to the Fund or the Manager, then the investor should contact
the Ciient Relations Department at the office of the Manager on free cail 1800 082 919 (Austrafia only) or +617 5584 4500. Compiaints may
be made in writing or by telephone. The Manager will respond within 30 days of receiving the complaint. If a complaint cannot be resolved by

the Manager it should be referred to the Finaneia! Ombudsman Service Limited ("FO8"), an external industry complaints body which has been
approved by ASIC and of which the Manager is a member,

Financial Ombudsman Service Limited
GPO Box 3

MELBOURNE VIC 3001

Telephone: 1300 78 08 08

Facsimile: (03) 9613 6349

email info@fos.org.au

website: www.fos org.au

Ralatad Parfies

The information contained on page 34 of the PDS under the heading "Related Parties” is replaced with the following statements:-

Peter Drake. & director of the Manager is the beneficial owner of LM Administration Pty L, which has been engaged by LM investment
Management Lid fo provide administration services al a commercial ams-length fee. in addition to this LM Administration Pty Ltd provides
administration and funds management services i the Fund and is paid a managemeant fee direct from the Fund.

John O'Sullivan, a non-executive director of the Manager is the beneficial owner of O'Suliivan Capital Management Ltd. O'Sullivan Capital
Management Ltd has been engaged by LM Investment Management Ltd to provide marketing services in New Zealand ai 2 commercial arms-
length fee. This fee is paid by the Fund.

The Fund may lend to related partiss provided the loans are approved by the Credit Committee, are on commercial arms-length terms, and
are subject to review by the Board.

The Board of the Manager & responsible for reviewing and approving the sfructure and probity of commercial dealings between the Manager
and any ratated patties. Fees issued to the account of the Fund by related parties, which are recoverable fom the Fund must be on commercial
amis-length terms and are subject to review by the Board.
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The Fund is awed $33.513,345 in redation to assignment of 2 first registerad mortgages from the Fund to the LM Managed Performance Fund
{& related investment fund). This debt is secured by a fixed and fioating charge over the assets of the L Managed Performance Fund, The
current interest rafe payable by the LM Managed Performance Fund on this debt is 1C0%pa. This loan equates to 5.51% of the total loan
portfolic,

The LM Managed Performance Fund has guaranteed part of a debt due by a borrower to the Fund in the amount of $9,600,000, in exchangs
for the horrower makmg certain funds availabie to an associate of the LM Managed Performancs Fund. The current interest rate is 10.5%pa.
This loan etuates to 1.58% of the total loan porifolio.

The Fund has received the benefit of assignment of a debt due by the LM Managed Peformance Fund in the sum of $5100,000. The current
interest rate payable on this amount is 10%pa, It is antcipated that this debt will be repaid by 30 June 2009. This debt equates 1o 0.84% of
the toial loan portfolio.

The Fund has made 3 loans to various refated parties, which fotal $12 678.278. The Manager has received establishrent fees of not more
than 1.5% of the fotal loan amount. The interest rates for these loans are commarcial rates and range from 10.5% - 12%pa. These loans

equate o 2.08% of the total loan portfolio.

Reiated Party Finance

The Manager is the Responsible Entity of the LM Managed Performance Fund. From time to time the LM Managed Performance Fung
advances foans by way of second morigages fo borrowars who have first mortgage advances from the Fund. At 31 Cctober 2008 there are 8
such loans by the LM Managed Performance Fund in the folal amouni of $28 5566 297. in these instances the Fund enters into Priority Deeds
with the borrower as part of normal ioan documentation procedures. The LM Managed Performance Fund generates fees, charges and interest
rates all of which are paid by the borrower.

The Directors of LM Investment Management L i have authorised and consented 1o the issue of this First SPDS.
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Suppien Prod t E)iscﬁre Statement
3 flarch 2009

This is the Supplementary Product Disclosure Statement {"Second SPDS") that supplements the Product Disclosure Statement (‘PDS") and
the First Supplementary Product Disclosure Statement {"First SPDS") issued on 10 Aprit 2008 and 28 November 2008 respectively for the LM
First Mortgage Income Fund ARSN 089 343 288 (the F und™). Investors should read this Second SPDS together with the PDS and First SPDS
prior fo investing in the LM First Mortgage Income Fund.

The purpese of this Second SPDS is to provide updated information in relation to the Fund and ASIC’s Regulatory Guide 45 - “Mortgage
Schemes ~ Improving Disclosure for Retail Invesiors™,

No Appiications wili be Accepted from New Members

LM Investment Management Uimited (the "Managar’) has determined that from the date of this Second SPDS it will not accept any applications
for investment in the Fund from any person who is not an existing member in the Fund. Any application for investment in the Fund received by
the Manager will therefore be returned to the applicant.

The Manager will still accept appiications for investment in the Fund from any parson who is an existing member in the Fund, and this will
include deemed applications as part of any reinvestment of distributions.

The Manager may decide o change this decision at any time, and start accepling applications from non-membsars.

Borrowings of the Fund

There have been changess made in relation to the Fund's borrowing and the foliowing paragraph repiaces the explanafion of the Scheme
Borrowing Banchmark on page 2 of the First SPDS, the second paragraph under the heading "Borrowing Risk” on page & of the First SPDS,
and the second paragraph under the heading "Borrowings of the Fund” on page 7 of the First SPDS -

“Under the constitution the Manager may borrow against the Fund assets on terms and conditions acceptable fo the Manager. The Manager
has arranged a line of credit faciiity with the Commonwaalth Bank of Australia {("CBA"). This facility was put into ptace in order to aliow the
Manager to take advaniage of competitive commercial lending opportunities, or to assist the Fund with managing liquidity. As at 3 March 2009
the amount owing to the CBA was the fully drawn amount of $150 million and the interest rate of e facility is variable and is priced betwesn
4.0% 10 9.5% abave the respective Bank Bill Swap Bid Rate (BBSY). The facility is secured by a fixed and floating charge over the assets ofthe
Fund, providing the CBA as & secured lender with first pricrity over the assets and income of the Fund, The rights of investors to the income and
assets of the Fund are secondary fo the rights of the CBA. The facility expires on 31 July 2009, ¥ the facility is not repaid by 31 July 2009, the
Manager will seek a further extension of the facifity from the CBAto enable any balance debt fo be repaid. The facility will be repaid via cashflow
generated in the Fund. Repayment of the facility will take priority over mast ofher cashfiow needs of the Fund, and will take priority over most
withdrawal requests from members of the Fund. The facility may be varied from time to fime in order o manage the Fund. Insufficient income
gengrated by the Fund to service the debt under the facility, increases in the bank interest rate or a refusal of the financiar fo extend the term
of the facility cauld cause the Fund to default on its foan.” '

Inlight of the above matters, the third paragraph under the heading “Liquidity Risk” on page 27 of the PDS is deleted.

Liguidity Benchmark

The Fund still continues to meet the Liquidity Benchmark outlined in ASIC s Regulatory Guide 45 - “Mortgage Schemas — improving Disclosure
for Retall investors” released in Septermber 2008. However. in fight of the recent change fo the Fund's borrowing which requires repayment of
the credit facility to take priority over most other cashflow needs of the Fund, and the fact that investors may expect imeframes of up to 365
days for withdrawals, the Manager has amended the explanation of the Liguidity Benchmark. The following paragraph fherefore replaces he
explanation of the Liquidity Benchmark on page 2 of the First SPDS -

“The Manager has cash fiow esfimates for the Fund for the next 3 months, As the Fund has fied invesiment terms of 12, 6, 3 and 1 months
and wilt be paying any withdrawal requests up to 365 days after maturity, the Fung will have sufficient cash or cash equivalents (not including
undrawn amounts under fending facilities) to meet projected cash needs over the next 3 months. Refer fo page 4 of the First SPDS under the
heading “Liquidity Policy” for further details, including the Manager's poiicy on batancing the maturity of the Fund's assets with the maturity of
the Fund's fiakilities.”
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Withdrawals

in the First SPDS under the heading "Withdrawals” on page &, the second paragraph is delsted and replaced with:-

“Due to the current furmoll and unpredictability of the market, and the obfigafion on the Manager to repay the Fund's credit facility to the
Commonwealth Bank of Australiz in priority to most other cashflow needs of the Fund, the Manager is exercising caufion with the Fund's
cashflow management and utlising ionger timeframes for withdrawals. In particular, payment of investor withdrawals is ilkely to take 365 days.
The Manager may also suspend withdrawals for sush periods as it defermines®.

Interest Distribution Payments

tn accordance with the constitution the interest distributions are payable within 21 days after the end of the distribution period. The Manager
had previously endeavoured fo make such paymants within a shorter period, but that is no longer the case. Consequently, the following changes
are made fo the PDS or First SPDS:-

- The second last paragraph under the heading “Interest Distribufion Payments for the Flaxi Account and Fixed Term Options” on page 6 of
the PDS is deisted and repiaced with the following - “interest distributions are caiculated daily. Interest distributions are payable within 21
days after the end of the month. Quarterly interest distributions are payabie within 21 days of the quarterly anniversary of the investment
date”,

S The last sentence of the first paragraph under the heading “Interest Distribution Paymants for Non-Ausfralian invesiments™ en page 9
of the PDS is delefed and repiaced with the following - “The interest distribution is paid within 21 days of maturity of the original and any
subsequent investmeant term.” '

b In the First SPDS, under the heading “Monthly Distributions now Availabie for Non-Australian Doliar Currency Hedged Fixed investiment
Terms as well as Ausirafian Dollar Fixed Invesiment Terms” on page 1, the reference to °5 businass days” in the third paragraph is deleted
and replaced with “21 days” and the first two sentences of the second paragraph are deleted and reptaced with ~ “Such distributions will
be paid within 21 days of the monthly anniversary of the day the investment begins”.

Currency Hedge for Non-Australian Dollar investment Options

Providers of the Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts (‘FFECs”) are chosenby the Manager, The Manager has recently changed the providers
of the FFECs for the Fund. Conseguently, references in the PDS to FFECs being facilitated or settled by a global investment bank {on pages
2. 5 and 8} are amended by delsting the references to “global investment bank” and replacing them with "a FFEC provider chosen by the
Manager”.

The Directors of LM Investment Management Ltd have authorised and consented to the issue of this Second SPDS,

LM Investment Management Lid
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' J . d ARSN 080343288

Suiementary Product Disclosure tatent |
30 October 2009

This is the Third Suppiementary Product Disclosure Statement {*Third SPDS”) that supplements the Product Disclosure Statement {"PDS™,
the First Supplementary Product Disclosure Statement {"First SPDS") and the Second Supplementary Product Disclosure Statemant (“Second
SPDS") issued on 10 April 2008, 28 November 2008 and 3 March 2008 respectively for the LM First Mortgage income Fund ARSN 089 343
288 {the "Fund"). Investors should read this Third SPDS together with the PDS, First SPDS and Second SPDS prior to investing in the LM
First Mortgage income Fund,

Purpose of this Third SPDS

To provide updated information in relation fo.-

S The Fund's credit facility with the Commonwealth Bank of Australia (“CBA™.

The Fund's barrowing has been renegotiated, with the financier granting an extension for repayment of the credit facility unt!l 30 June
2010. The directors nelieve the Fund will be abie to meet its remaining obligations under the repayment plan to the CBA through
repayment of exisfing lans andfor refinancing of existing loans with alternative financing providers, the continued support from the CBA
of the securing of alternate sources of finance.

The section below headed "Borrowings of Fund” provides the fully updated details to references on the Fund's borrowing as contained
in the Second PDS;

i The Fund and ASIC's Regulatory Guide 45 - "Morigage Schemes - improving Disclosure for Refaif Investors”.

The Manager has updated the explanation of the Liquidity Benchmark and Withdrawals as these are affected by the priotity position of
the Fund's repayment o the CBA and the lack of credit liquidity avaitable in the property sector. This Third SPDS aiso updates investors
on how the Manager will communicate and provide ongoing access to investors for updated ASIC benchmarks and information on the
Fund.

Borrowings of the Fund
The section headed "Borrowings of the Fund” on page 1 of the Second PDS is deleted and replaced as follows -

“There have been changes made fo the Fund's borrowing and the foliowing paragraph replaces:-

{iy  the explanation of the Scheme Borrowing Benchmari on page 2 of the First SPDS;
[ the second paragraph under the heading ‘Borrowing Risk’ on page 6 of the First SPDS: and
i the second paragraph under the heading "Borrowings of the Fund” an page 7 of the First SPDS -

‘Under the constitution the Manager may borrow against the Fund assets on terms ang conditions acceptable to the Manager. The Manager
has arranged a line of credit facility with the Commonwsalth Bank of Australia (“CBA"). This facility was put into piace in order to aliow the
Manager to take advantage of competifive commercial lending opportunities, or fo assist the Fund with managing kguidity. As at 30 QOctober
2008 the amount owing fo the CBA was the fufly drawr: amount of $115,313,554 and the interest rate of the facility is variable and is priced at
4.5% above the Bank Bill Swap Bid Rate (BBSY). The facility is secured by & fixed and floating charge over the assets of the Fund, providing
the CBA as a secured iender with first priority over the assets and income of the Fund. The rights of investors to the income and assets of the
Fund are secondary to the rights of the CBA. The facility expires on 30 June 2010. if the facility is not repaid by 30 June 2010, the Manager will
seek a furiner extension of the facility from the CBA to enable any balance debt to be repaid. The facilify will be repaid vig cashfiow generated
in the Fund. Repayment of the facility will take priority over most other cashfiow needs of the Fund, ang will take priority over most withdrawal
requests from members of the Fund. The facility may be varied from time to time in order to manage the Fund. hsufficient income generated
by the Fund te service the dedt under the facility, increases in the bank interest rate or a refusal of the financier to extend the temm of the facility
could cause the Fund to default on its loan.’

As the line of credit is fully drawn and being repaid in priority over most other cashflow needs of the Fund, the thirg paragraph under the heading
“Liquidity Risk" on page 27 of the PPS is deleted.”
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Liguidity Benchmark
In the Second SPDS on page 1 under the heading “Liguidity Benchmark” both paragraphs are delefed and replacad with the Toliowing:

“The Fund stilf continues to meet the Liguidity Benchmark ouifitned in ASIC's Regulatury Guide 45 - “Mortgage Schemes — Improving Disclosure
for Retail Investors” released in September 2008, Currently, the Fund is required to repay the credit facility as a priority over most other
cashfiow needs of the Fund, and withdrawals are suspended except for withdrawals under hardship provisions and feeder fund payments for
investar distributions and fund expenses. Therefore, the Manager has updated the explanation of the Liguidity Benchmark. The foliowing
paragraph replaces the explanafion of the Liguidity Benchmark on page 2 of the First SPDS -

“The Manager has cash flow estimates for the Fund for the next 12 months and as such meets ASIC's figuidity benchmark guideline to have
cashflow estimates for the next 3 months. The Fund has fixed investment ferms of 12, 6, 3 and 1 months. As most withdrawais are suspended
the Fund will have sufficient cash or cash equivalents {not including undrawn amounts under tending facilities) to mest profected cash needs
over the next 3 months. The Manager's cash flow estimates for the Fund for the next 12 months contain a detailed schedule of managed ioan
repayments to the Fund from is existing loan porifolic. Refer to page 4 of the First SPDS under the heading “Liguidity Policy” for further detalls.’

Withdrawals

In the Second SPDS under the heading “Withdrawals” on page 2, the second paragraph is deleted and repiacad with:-

“The prevailing credit and liquidity constrainis in the properfy and financial markets, and the Fund's abligation to repay its credit facility to the
CBA in pricrity to most other cashfiow needs of the Fund, call for caution in the management of the Fund's cashflow, in order to protect alf
investments, the Manager has, as it determines, suspended withdrawals, with the exception of those approved under hardship provisions and
feader fund payments for investor distributions and fund expenses, as the cashflow allows. Aretum of liquidity to the Australian property sector
would positively assist with cash fiow management and the repayment due to the GBA and would, over fime, bring about a return to “normal”
timeframes for investor redemption payments.”

I Tight of the above matters, in the First SPDS on page 4 under the heading “Liquidity Policy” the last sentence is deleted as payment of most
withdrawals is currently suspended. -

Related Parties
in the "Related Parties” section on pages 7 and 8 of the First SPDS-

{li  The following paragraph replaces the eighth paragraph:-
"On 30 June 2008, the Manager assigned to the LM First Morigage Income Fund, the rights and henefits of a $5,100,000 debt due
to the Manager from the LM Managed Performance Fund. The date for the repayment of that debt to the LM First Morigage hcome
Fund has been extended to 30 June 2010. The current interest rate payable on this amount is 10%pa and the debt equates to
0.84% of the total loan portfolio.”
and

{iiy  The following paragraph is added.-
“The Fund may, from time to fime, self or partialy sell mortgage loans to other separate funds for which the Manager is also
Responsible Entity. Any such transactions are reviewed and conducted in accordance with the Fund's Conflicts of Interest Policy.
Currenily there is one loan that the Fund has partly sold fo the LM Austraiian Income Fund Currency Profected, with a current value
of $6,360 000."

Related Party Transactions

The paragraph below replaces the paragraph headed “Related Party Finance” an page 8 of the First SPDS.

LM is the Manager of the LM Managed Performance Fund. The LM Managed Performance Fund, in its own right, has second morigages
behind loans that are first mortgages of the LM First Morigage Income Fund. At 30 September 2008 the LM Managed Performance Fund has

& such second morgages in he total amount of $48 876 841. In each instance, the LM First Morigage Income Fund has entered into a Priority
Deed to protect its own first morigage position with the borrower as part of normal loan documentation procedures

ASIC Benchmarks & Any Updated Information
Apart from the curent financial report for the Fund, updated information in retation to the Fund that was previously provided on fe Manhager's
website will now be provided to investors via direct communication from the Manager. Therefore, references contained:-
iy inthe First SPDS
a. Page 2 under the heading "ASIC Benchmark Disclosure for Investors” paragraphs 3 and 4; and
b.  Under the “Portfolic Diversification” benchmark the second sentence; and
{i: inthe PDS page 13 under the paragraph headed “Updated Financial and Other infarmation”

are updated as foliows:-

The Manager wi nofify investors in the Fund of any materiat adverse information in relation to the Fund. This will include such information that
relates to the ASIC benchmarks. Information relevant to the Fund that is not materially adverse and that is subject to change from tme to fime
will also be updated by the Manager via direct communication to investors. Tris will include irformation that refates to the ASIC benchmarics
such as information on the nature of the Fund's investment perifolio, inciuding details of oans, whether the Fund invests in other unlisted
mortgage schemes and the conditions of such investment. A paper copy of any updaied information wil be given to investors without charge
on requast.
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SO Benchmark Disclosure & Update for Invesiors
& Apri 2010

This document s provided o give investors current information on the LM First Morigage Income Fund's (Fund) compliance with ASIC
Regulatory Guide 45, The requirements of ASIC's Reguiatary Guide 45 - "Morigage Schemes - Improving Disclosure for Retall Investors” was
released in Seplember 2008, Regulatory Guide 45 refers to 8 benchmarks developed by ASIC. Al unlisted mortgage schemes are required
{o includie statements in respedt of each benchmartk as (o whether they comply or not,

Please ensure this document is read carefully, including any waming statements, before making any further decisions on current investmenis
in the Fund.

Furd Closed {o New Members

LM Investment Management Limited (the "Manager™ deterrined that from 3 March 2008 # will not accept any applications for investment in
the Fund from any person who is not an existing member in the Fund, Any application for vestiment in the Fund received by the Manager
will therefore be returned to the applicant.

In arder to protect the Fund from the prevaiiing credit and figuidity consiraints In the property and financial markets, and the Fund's simultaneous
obligation to repay its credi facility 1o the CBA the Manager tlosed the Fund to new investrnents and suspended withdrawals, with the exception
of those approved under hardship provisions and feeder fund payments for investor distibutions and Fund expenses. Feeder funds are other
registered managed investment schemes that have invested directly in the LM First Morgage income Fund.

The Manager will still accept applications for investment in the Fund from any person who is an existing member i the Fund by way of
toliover of investment term, and this wiff include deemed applications as par{ of any reinvesiment of distnbutions, The Manager confinues
o offer term investments, affowing investment rollovers to existing investors, based on the ongoing achievement of the Fund's objectives,
strategies, continuous disdosiire as detailed in this document and any disclosure of ohgoing material changes. When an investor rolie over
thedr investrment they will continue to roll for their choice of investment term until they advise the Manager otherwise. Current fixed investment
lerms are 48, 24,15, 12, 6, 3 and 1 month. The inleres! distribution rafe received |8 based on the term and currency of investment. 1235 if an
investor chooses to withdraw their investment al the end of their investment term, as most nonmal withdrawals are curmently suspended, the
investment will continue to eamn distribution interest based on the same term as the last nominated term until cash flows permit the withdrawal
to be paid, 123 Refer 1o the behchmark fable on page 4 of this document for further details on withdrawals,

Strateqy for the Fund over the next 6, 17 and 24 Months

Sel out below is the Manager's strategy for the Fund.

The Manager has completed a detailed review of 2ach first mertgage securily in the portfolio. Over the past 12 manths, the Manager has
invested a considerable amount of time and resources to ensuring that alf Fund assets are protected. The assets have been put intn the best
possible position in arder to realise thelr full value back into the Fund.

Moving forward, the Manager will continually review the first morlgage securifies within the Fund to ensure the best possible outcome for alt
investors in the Fund. To drive positive outcomes, oitical lmeframes are applied for each morgage over the short, medium and longer iems
{le &, 12 ant 24 months). These timefrarnes and crfical dates are reviewed infermnally by the Manager's assst and recovery team, sach week,

The Manager has erftically assessed the loans in the current portfolio with our best estimates for repayment timeframes given the asset types,
market conditions, geographio and sector allecations and other considerations. Each asset has an individual plan targeted o achieve the best
possible outcome for the Fund investors,

a3 Months Slrategy

The Manager expects o be able to resclve the issue with the financiar (either CBA or new) regarding new extended finance terms and

the refease of rastictive covenants. The Manager will continue to explore the viability of a refinance of the current facility.

3 Whereas the Manager expects the cument finandier {0 offer a renewal of the current facility vpon expiration it is also currently seeking
aternate financing options o provide the Fund a more favourable structure and amorisation requirements. Interest has been expressed
by & number of institutional parties and noegotiations are currently being progressed.

B Continue current sell-down pregram with those assets identified for sake In order o realise cash into the Fund and reduce the finance
facility (should this not be refinanced).

¥ Monitor and ensure that the Fund's shjeciives and pumose are heing met at 2l imes.

for

e Continue reguiar reporting to investors,
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Twelve Months Strategy

- 8ased on conservative current levels of loan realisations, cash flow projections show that the full repayment of the CBA finance facility
should be achieved by February 2011, Alternatively the Fund will have obtained refinarce on more commercial tefms with less restrictive
covenants.

i Continue the managed sefl down of identified assets in order to realise cash into the Fund,

= Anneunce a proposed redemption program for those investors with a redemption request lndged.

[

i Reinvest an agreed percentage of the Fund's assels into new lending opportunities, an important sten in protecting the interests of
investors remaining in the Fund.

Manitor and ensure that the Fund's oblectives and purpoze are being met at all times,
N Continue regular reporting to investors.

Twenty Four Months Strategy

2 Continue the payrnent of redemptions as a managed process,

B Manage the remaining mortgage portfolio and ensure that Fund objectives and purpose are being met.

Fa Depending on fevel of remaining radermplion requests, consideration will be given to re-opening the Fund onee again o naw invastors.
b Continue regular reporting to investors,

ASIC Benchrawk Disclosure for Investors

The information in the table below provides a sutmaty of how the Fund meels or does not meet the 8 ASIC benchrmarks which are requires
under ASIC's Regulalory Guide 45 - "Mortgage Schemes - Improving Disclosure for Retall investors”. We encourage you to discuss the ASIC
benchmarks with your financial adviser, Afill copy of Regulatory Guide 45 can be obtained from the ASIC website: WWW.BSIG.Q0VaU,

The Manager wil nolify investors in the Fund of any material adverse information in relation to the Fund, This will include such information that
relates to the ABIC REG 45 benchmarls. This docsment provides current information on the benchmarks with copies of any updated information
given to investors without charge on request.

Any other information relevent to the Fund that is not materially adverse and that is subject to change from fime to time wil be updated by the
Maragar via direct communication o investors on a periodic basis. This will inchide information that relates to the ASIC benchmarks such
as fnformation on the rature of the Fund's portlolio investrent including details of loans, whether the Fund invests in other unfisled mortgage
schemes and the conditions of such investmant. A paper copy of any updatad information will be given to investors whhout charge on request.

BEHCHMARK NUMBER & a8k OOES LEMEET  EXPLANATION
BENCHMARK

Benchmark 1:- o The Manager has cash flow estimates for the Fund for the next 12 months and as such

Liguielity meets ASIC's liquidity benchmark guideline to have cashfiow estimates for the nexd 3

{which for the purposes of this months, As most withdrawals are suspended the Fund will have sufficient cash or cash

benchmark means the proportion equivalents (not including undrawn amounts under lending facilities) to meet projected

of cash or cash equivalents in the cash needs over the nexd 3 monthe. The Manager's cash flow estimates for the Fund for

Fund's assefs) the next 12 months contain a defalled schedule of managed loan repayments %o the Fund
from #s existing loan portfolio. The Manager constanly monitors and reviews the Fund's
cash flow estimates however any delay in the actual realisation of projected cash flow
will have & flow on effect to e Fund's actusl cash flow payments which may mean that
distabution payments may be delaved from time ta time.

The Fund bas met this henchmark prior o closure of the Fund with batanding the raturity of
the fund assets with the fund fiablities. As the Find is curertly dosed 1o new investments,
e Fund s tefiant on income {interest paymments) from existing loane and the repayment of
ioans to generate cash fow within the Fund, During this me it is expected that some loans
will nat meet the inferest payment requirements on time andfor repayment requirements
by the original matudty date. Therefore the liquidity benchmark is unable to be met, Refor
to page & of this document under the heading "iguidity Policy” for further details of the
{iquictity benclhmark.

Benchrmark 2« Yag Under the cocstifution the Marager may borow against the Furd assets on lerms and
Scheme Borrowing condilions acceptanle to the Manager. The Manager has amanged 8 fins of eredit faciity
with the Commonwealth Bank of Austrafia ("CBA™. This facility was put info place in order
to aflow the Manager to take advantage of compefitive commerdial lending opporiunities,
or to agsist the Fund with managing fquidity, As at 31 Janusry 2010 the amound awing
to the CBA was the fully drawn amount of $105,339,462 and the inerest rate of the
facifity is variable and is priced at 4.5% above the Bank Bilt Swap Bid Rale (BRSY). The
facility is secured by a fixed andt floatng charge over the assets of the Fund, providing
the CBA a5 a secured lender with first paority over the assets and income of the Fund.
The fights of fvestors Lo the income and assets of the Fund are secondary to the rights
of the CRA. The faciity expires on 30 June 2010, i the facdlity is not repaid by 30 June
2018, the Marager wilt seek a further exension of the facility fom the CBAto enable any
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Benchmark 3:- Yis
Fortfolip Diversification

Benchmark 42 Yes
Redated Party Transactions

Benchmark - Nor
Valuation Policy

balance debt to be repaid. The fadlity will be repald via cashfiow generated in the Fund.
Repaymerd of the facility will tzke priovity over most other cashfiow needs of the Fund, and
wilt take priomy over most withdrawal recuests rom members of the Fund. The curent
facility with the CEA requires its capital repayment ahead of normai invesior rednmpham
The current CBA minimum capital repayment requirements are 35 million per month,
Additonally where the rrinimuim requitement is mef, and the Fifid fs able 16 convert
further than the minirmum requirement fo cash then the CBA also takes the first 60% of that
additional converted cash. The facity may be varied from time to time in order to manage
the Fund. insufficient income generated by the Fund ta senvice the debt under the facllity,
increases in the bank interest rate or & refusal of the finandler to extend the term of the
fecility could cause the Fund to default on its loan.

Whereas the Manager expecis the curent fnancier 1o offer 2 renewal of the current
faality 1pon expiration it is alo currenfly seeking altenate financing options to provide
the: Fund 2 more favourable pricing structure and amortisation reguirerents, Interest has
been expressed by s number of insBiutional parties and negotiations are ourently being
prograssed,

Refer to pages 816 10 of this document under heading "Porlfolio Updale as at 31 January
2010 for the Fund's current portfolio diversification,

The Manager's lending poficies and procedures for the Fund provide further details in
relation to mexirnum loan amount for any one borrower: the method of assessing borowers'
capacity to service foans; the Manager's approach to faking securily, revaliing securiy
properties or roliover and whether the sequnity must be incore producing. Curently the
Fund is nol actively lending to new borrowers hut is maintaining, menitoring and reviewing
the Funds loans fo axisting borrowers. Ses the section headed "Lending Policies and
Procedures of the Fund” on pages 510 7 of this document,

The Manager does rot cumently iovest in ofher unlisted mortgage schemes, but has
the power to do so i the Fund constitution. The Manager's policy on investing in such
schemes Is to ascentain whether such an investment is desirabie for the Fund in light of the
crcumstances at that ime. The Manager will not necessarnily require stich a scheme fo
satisfy the ABIC benchmarks betore the Manager invests In the schema.

The Fund may lend to related parlies, but such loans are subject o review by the Board

and can only he approved on commerdial arme-lengih terms following aparoval hy the
Cract Committee, The Board’s approvad process is monitored by the Manager's Risk
Manager and Business Slandards and Compliance Manager. The Fund may also invest
in olfier managed investment schemes which are operated by the Manager AY Fund
invesiments folfow the sarme stingent due diigence processes which are monitorad by
the Chief Financiat Officer. For further details refer 1o the paragraphs under the heading
“‘Refated Parties” on page 7 of this document.

Tre WManager has a dooumented Conflicts Management Policy which desls with
the idenlification, assessment and frestment of conflicts of interest and related party
transactions.  The Risk Manager has resporsibilty for conflicts and prepares conflict
reeards for each conflict or related parly ransaclion identified. Board approval fs required
for all refated party transactions.

The Manager's valuation polities sef aut how res! propenty assets over which the Fund has
sectrily wil be valued (that is, on an “as is” basis, and far develapment loans, also on an
“as i complate” basis) and haw often valuations sre obigined. The ASIC bendhmark also
requires that no one valuer condists more than 143 of the valuation work for the Fund, The
Fund complies with this requirament. Valuers selected to parform refevant valuations on
the security properly sre chosen based onindependence, specialist industry expertise and
geogiaphic location. The ASIC benchark reguires the disclosure of information about the
valuation of & particular property for an unfisted morigage scheme where a loan secured
against the property accounts for 5% or more of the total value of the scheme’s loan ook,
The Manager does not provide this information due [ privacy reasons, the commercial
sensitivity of valuation information and because the assets within the Joar book change
regularly. Further detalls in relation to the Manager's valuation pelides are outlined on
pages 6 and 7 of this docurment under the paragraphs headed “Valuation Poficies”,
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Benchmark &:-
Lending Principles

Benchmark 7:-
Distribution Practices

Benchmark 8
Withdfrawn! Arrangenionts

Mo

Yes

Yes

envirorment oraated by the GFC.

Tts the Manager's current policy fo generally not exceed a loan to valuation ratic ot 68.67%
ot construction and development loans and 75% on comimercia! loans fwhich ratios do
both comply with the ASIC benchmark of 70% on property development - on the bagis of
the latest "as if complete’ valuation and in all other cases 80% on the basis of the jatest
market valuation). However, it is the Manager's current practics to exceed those ratins
wienever necessary in the process of working through a repayment soluticn. The Fund's
consfitution alfows the Manager to fend furds provided that all morigages are secured over
property and the amount which may be advanced to a borrower does net exceed an LVR
of 75% of the value of the securlty proetty on initiat settlement, After a loan has seffled
and where the Manager considers it is in the best interests of the members of the Fund,
the Manager may approve an LVR riol 1o exceed 85% of the value of the secLiity property,
The EVR of a lvan that is in default may exceed 85%. Whee the loan is a development
loan, funds are advanced progressively in stages through the development on a “Cost
to Complete” basis and the Mansger engages an extemnal consultant Quantity Surveyor
for each developiment and racaives periodis reports on the progress of the development
including certfication of construction daims based on work completed. Further details in
relation to the Manager's lending policies and procedures are outined on pages b io 7 of
this doctirment under the heading "Lending Policies and Procedures for the Fund”.

Distributions are sourced from ncome eamead fom the assets of the Fund Clarenily
incorne eamed from the aissets is vig interest from existing loans and from any addifional o
ouistanding inferest on repayment of any loans. The irferest distribution rates are variable
depending on the income eamed, expenses paid and ofher matters relevant to the Fund,
f the income eamed is not sufficient to pay af expenses and interes! distibutions the
returns to wvestors will be lower, The iower retumm will be determined based on the amotst
available to pay interest distibutions,

From time to time dependent on market cycies, the Manager may pay withdrawals over
ienger timeframes than usual in & nonmal market environment, Ag currently stated in the
DS, in certain circumstances withdrawal payments may be extended to 355 days o the
Manager may suspend withdrawals. This protective management meshanism can be
utilised to manags fiquidity, to proted Fund assels ang stabifty and investor distibutions,

The prevailing credit and Bguidity constraints in the prapetty and fnancial markets, and
the Fund’s obligation to repay its credit facilty o the CBAn priorty to most other cashfiow
needs of the Fund, call for caution i the managernent of the Fund's cashfiow In order
to protect ol investments, the Manager has suspended withdrawals, with the exception
of those approved under hardship provisions and feeder fund payments for investor
dhistibutions and Fund expenses, as fhe cashfiow afliows. Investors rmay apply undar
ASIC hardship provision for withdrawal of thetr investment, ASIC hardship provisions
are prescriplive and investors who wish 10 apply under fhese provisions must meet the
hardship eriterfa oulined in ASIC's provisions, vestars can contact the Manager who wif
provide dedals of ASIC's hardship withdrawal provisions. I the withdrawal is allowed under
ASIC hardship withdrawal provisions payment will be subject to cashflow of the Furd,

Awithdrawal notice may sl be focged, Investors must give the Manager writken naficed
signed by the investorls, Flewd investment investors must provide 1 business days notice,
Fhted Term invesiments investors must provide al Jeast 5 business days notice prior to the
maturily dale, and Saving Plan nvestors following the initial 12 month investment periad
st provice 1 business days notice, i an investor chooses to withdraw thelr investment
at the end of their investmen? leem, 25 most rormal withdrawals are owrenty suspended,
the: irsvestment will cortinue to eam interest based on the same ferm as the st nentinated
terr until cash flows permit the withdraval to be paid.

Invesstors should also note the automatic rolover provisions which appivio theirinvestments,
and the me perieds for nolice 1o be given to withdraw are as ouliined in this section,

The amount payable o investors on withdrawat will be the issue price of their units at that
time, This amourd is subject o change depending on the net valua of the assels of the
Fund,

$167 1 enillion of mvestments in the Furdd have a withdrawal pending.
$150.6 ritlion of investrments in the Furds feeder funds have a withdrawel pending.
The tolat being $317.6 mifon of investments in all funds have withdrawals pending.

Prier fo the global firancial arisis ('GFC"), the Fund's historical withdrawal rate averaged
1.5% of total assets on a monthly basis, including feeder fund withdrawals. Based on this
pre-GFG historical withdrawal rate, if fhe investment smvironment had been normal aver the
past 12 months, withdrawal trends woutd have been expected to equate o approximetely
AUD$1S miion as opposed to the AUDS317.6 million of withdrawals actually received
gince 3 March 2008, The increase [ withdrawals I3 as a direc! result of the extraordinary
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Liguidity Policy

The Manager monitors and balances the Fund’s portfolio of assets between cash and Australian registered first mortgage securities as parf of
the Fund's lquidity management,

The tiquidity policy of the Fund deseribes the methodology the Manager applies to balance the maturily of the assets and liabilities of the Fund.
The Manager continually monitors and manages the variables that impact on liguidity, As the Fund Is ausrently closed to new investments, the
Fund is reliant on the repayment of loans fo generate cast fow within the Fund. Meeting the running expenses of the Fund and the repayment
schadite on the loan faciiity to the Commorwealth Bank of Australia are prioriies. During this time it is expected that some lnans wil not meet
repayimert by their original maturity date.

Ag regquired by he ASIC benchimark on liquidity, in estimating cash flows, the Manager can take Into account a rezscnable estimate of
investor inflows and oufflows based on previous experience. Withdrawals are considered with refarence 1o the petied within which investers
wantd reasonahly expect withdrawal reguests 1o be processed, rather than the maxirmum period within which the Manager is able to process
withdrawal requests. i order to protect all investrients, the Manager has suspended withdrawals, with: the exception of those approved snder
hardship provisions and feader fund payment for investor distributions and Fund expenses as the cashflow allows,

Lending Folicies and Proceduraes of the Fund

Credit Committes

The Credit Commilies is infegral to the compiiance and risk management processes utilised by the Manager with raspect to the selection
of registered first morigage assets for the Fund, The Credit Commitiee is an internal review committee for all mortgage investments and is
independent from afl other depariments. The Credit Commitiee calis for celliaboration of a broad base of expertise from the property, finance,
legal and accounting sectors when evaluating morigage assets for the Fund. The formal structure and collaborative decision raking process
provided by the Credit Commiltes: ensuies an informed assessment and objective decision s made when selecting the first mortgage assets
of the Fund.

New mortgage investment proposais are pul forward by the commercial lending denariment for consideration with a written summary, The
Credit Committee is respansible for sefting the pritary lerms and conditions upon which subsequent approval will be based.

When mongage investment progosals are completed in acoordance with the Manager's credit standards they are required to be finally approved
by the Credit Commitiee.

Lending Criteria of the Fund

i The Manager has defermined and documented lending policies for the approval and management of mortgages, Risk management is
@ priesty, with mortgages diversified over a number of levels ncluding yeographic location, secior, loan size, interest rate and maturity
orofile,

One of the twols the Manager employs to enhance Income inte the Fund i 1o balance the assets of the morigage portfolic betwesn
commercial loans and selective developrment loans.

B The type of real esiate offered for security must be acceptable to the Manager, Typical mortgage securities will include commercial,
industrial and residential real estais (induding daveloproent loans across these sectors] secured by a registered first morlgage. A first
morgage must be registered on the primary security property.

The value of the security property must be established in accordans with the valustions policy of the Manager.

The abilty of the borrower ta service the facility must be established to the satisfaction of the Manager.

» To the extent that they may affect the value o performance of an underlying investment the Manager may take nto account labour

standards, or environmental, social or ethical considerations when making, retaining or reafising an investment in the Fund. The Managar
has no predefennined view about how far such matters will be taken into account, and the Manager will make a detormination of such

iB5Les on a case by case hasis,

i.ending Policies and Procedures

The Manager will be selective in s choice of motgages snd vill adhers to prudent lending parametets, The Fund will foflow shict lending

policies and provedures as detalled below

wssessment of the borower - the Manager endeavours 1o meet every horrower (o assess charadier and business agumers,

S ihe maximum lean armount for any one borrower generally doss not exceed 10% of the scheme assets;

; ali morigages are subject to the Manager's rgorous due diigence process including approval by the Manager's Credit Camemitiee:

e the due diligence process inciudes assessment of the financial capacity of the borrower and any guarantors, The assessment is carried
out by review and substantfation of asseis, Habilities and income by reference to information provided by the borrower and independent
senrches and checks,

b 2 first mortgage is slways registered on propedy heid as the primary security;

& cormmercial loens aie loans secured by income producing progerty. Non-commercial lbans (not secured by income producing property}
include construction/development kans and nre-development land. The capacily to service commercial lbans is assessed primarily by
referances 1o ncome producad from the security property, however income from all sources is also censidered. The capaciy to service
construction loans is primarily dependent an the viability of the project, the project cash flow (including interest commitments) and all
factars relevant i the project inchiding valuation of the completed product, produet demand, pre-sales contracs, marketing strategies,
certified project costings, credentials of the borrower, builder and key sub-contractors;

B the Manager has every sacurity propeity valued by one of the Manager's panel valugrs or by a valuer meating the Manager's standards
for mclusion on ifs panel and adhering to the Manager's valuation policies. Further details in relation to the Manager's valuation policies
are outlined below under the heading “Valuation Policies”;
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S the Manager s a poficy of diversifying morigage securifies geographically and by property fype:
i the Manager has & policy of generally not exceeding the following loan 1o valustion ratins:-
W 86.67% for construction and development loang; and
a TEY for comrnercial loans,
The Credit Committee wil consider the appropriate loan to valuation ratio based on all the fadlors surrotnding the loan;
e ine constitution of the Fund aflows the Manager to lend funds provided that all morigages are securad over properdy and the amount
which may be advanced to & borrower does not exceed an LVR of 75% of the value of the securfty property on initial setlement, After a
loan has seftled snd where the Manager considers it is in the best intarests of the members of the Fund, the Manager may approve an
IVR nod Lo exceed B5% of the value of the security property. The LVR of a loan that is in default may exceed 85%, This sould oocur for
example. where interest is being capitalised while the security property is being marketed and sold, or where fhe Manager detennines
that expenditure should be incurred fo knprove the security property pricr to sale {the Manager considers a loan to be in default wheh
interest payments have not been received in breach of the loan agreement, or the loan term has expired without repayment of principal);
the following additional requiremeants are imposed in the case of developrment loans;
 for development/construction loans the inital drawdown for the facility is ardved at after consideting bath the approved ioan to
vatustion ratio on the "as is” valuation and the “cost to complete” formuda, The infial drawdown must meet the loan to vahsation ratio
required and atse aflow sufficient funds to be avallable in the faciiity to compiete the development. The project feasibility must reflect
e "costio complete” formula throughmd the life of the projact, The concept of a "cost o complete” formula is that the lender always
fetains sufficient funds within the loan facilty to complete the development based on #is assessment of the actual cost to complete
the project. The Manager engages an external consultant Quantity Surveyor for each project and receives penodic raports on the
progress of the project including certification of construction tlaims based on work completed;

“  addiional development foan procedures are required throughout the development stages of the foan to ensure the development is
adequately monitored;

= where applicable a tripartite agreement is made between the Manager, the borrower and the buldder, This enables the Manager, in
the: event of detaull by the borroway, to deat directly with the bullder,

Valuation Policies

All real property assets of the Fund are required to be valued priot to setilernent of sach transaction. Valuations may only be carried out by the
Manager's panei vaiers or by a valuer maeting the Manager's standards for inclusion on ifs panel and must adhere to the Manager's valuation
guidelings, The Manager has determined and documented valuation review procedures for guidance on each vatuation.

Mernbers of the valuation panel are appoirled and removed in accordance with the Manager's valuation pane! appointment guidelines, The
Manager is responsible for approving the appointment or removal of a panal valuer,

The Manager, in accordance with iis valuations review guidelines is responsible for (he review of afl valuations. Unvesoived issues arising from
a review must be relerred o an execulive director for discussion and detennination.

Ag an intermnal checking mechanism, an independent proparty report is obtained (where appropriate) from fwo real estate agenfs or an afternate
valuers report whose rormal trade area encompasses the property being valuad.

Valuers selected by the Manager tu perfarm relevant valuations on the security peoperty are chosen basad on independence, specialist industry
expertise and gaographic tocation.

The Manager anly uses valuers who, where possible, are registeret under one of the stafefterritory valuer registraion regimes and who inchide
a sfatement in thelr valuation reports on whether the valuation cornplies with ll relevant industry standards and eodes,

The Manager does not accept valiations perforved on the instruction of horowers, The Manager requires that valuations be providad on the
Manager's instructions, or that valuers conlirm that thelr valuations adhere to the Managers requirements.

The valuer must have appropriate professional indemnity instirance,
The vatuer mwst Gextify thal they are indepandent of both the bormwar and security propesty,
Al initial seftferment, the vaiuation relied on must net be dated more than 3 months prior 1o setliement.

An undated vatuation wilt generally be required where a loan tenm is extended or a loan is otherwise varied, An updated valuation wili aiso
generally be required for commercial loans at 24 month intervals and for construction loans at 12 month intervals. The requirement for an
updeted vahiation may be waived where the Manager considers that an updated valuation woulld serve no useful purpose (e.g. whers it
is demonstrable thal property values have increased or nol changed in the locality of the property, where a property under construction is
significantly presold, where 8 commercial property has long term leases in place, wheve a sale or refinance is imminant or where the loan to
valuation ratio of the property is low),

Developrnent Valuations
Separate valuations (may be within the one valvation report) are required in relation to "as is" and “on completion” valuations.

Appropriate instrudions must he given to the valuer having regard to the type of valustion required. In particular the nstrustions indicate the
type of valsation required eg. "as is" or "un completion”.

“Ag is" Vahation

The "as is” valuation is the market valuation of the property at the time of the initlal drawdown, A "fersibility analysis' is undertaken inciuding
deraiition, subdivision, conslruction, and other developrnent costs, allowances for sales and marketing expenses, interest and an allowance
Tor profit and visk to arrive ot a base value for the land. Any such analysis Is based on the premise thal the development aproval fas or will be
obtained prior o setlement of the loan, Altarnatively, the valuation must contain an adjustment for any uncertainty attaching o the devalopment
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approval process. The redquirement for a feasibility analysis may be satisfied, if appropriate. using alternate technigues such as discounted
cash flows. Additionally a cross check vatuation metl od is employed evaluating comparable sales evidence. The loan to valuation ratio in this
ease musl f& withis the Manager's lending criteria,

“Onr Completion” Valuation
The “on completion” value is the markat value of the properly at the completion of deveiopment, The valuation methodol gy required is a “gross
reafisation” valuation based on comparable sales andior lease evidence for the individual components a.g. houses, units, allotments etc,

The Manager will reasonably assess the appropriateness of the feasibility analysis within the valuer's rapod by cotmparison with cost estimates
provided by a competent external Guantify Surveyor selected from the Manager's panel.

The "on completion” vatue is the valuation figure used in the cosl to cormplete caleulations during the development phase. The “on completion”
valie may be revised during the ferm of development (o reflect changes as approved by the Manager.

Helated Parties

Broadly, the definition of related paty” includes a controfing entity, company or person of LM Investment Management Lid LV, a public
cofmpany. This filters through all funds managed by LM, and any directors. This Fund has ne loans to any LM directors. Investor dxsclosurc
guidelines are designad to ensure that investors are aware of any interaction with transactions between differert funds or where # director or
other related party, including another fund, derives a financial benefit.

As well as providing best practioe discinsure of aft related party ransactions, the guidelnes further ensure the Manager s accountable in termes
of the management and moritoring of any related pary trensactions, It is especially fmportant that where there is a related party somehow
invoived, that the iransaction s evaluated from a due diligence and credit assessmert process, as robustly as i if were not a related prarty
transaction. Ongoing rebust monitoring of these transactions must also be demonstrated,

The Fund may fend to redated parties provided the loans are approved by the Credit Committee on commersial, arms- -length lerms, They must
then be approved al full Board level, and are subject to review by the Board,
The Board is raspansible for reviewing and approving the struciure and probity of cornmercial deali ings between the manager and any related

parties and for ensuwring any such ransactions are approved only and after taking inte consideration the Manager's Comlicts of Interests Policy.
Fees issued to the accotnt of the Fund by refated paries, which are recoverable from the Fund, must be on cemmercial arms-length terms

and are subject 1o review by e Board,

Following are the related pary transactions within this Fund -

Since inception of LM Investment Managemaent Lid, LM Administration Pty Ltd has heen engaged by LM Investmeni Management Ltd to
provide administration services at a commercial fee. LM Administration Pty Ltd also provides adminisiration and funds managernent services
to the Fund and directly receives a management fae from the Fund for thal service, Peter Drake, a direcior of LM, is the beneficial owner of
LM Administration Pty Lid.

Johin O'Bullivan, & non-executive director of the Manager is the beneficial owner of O'Sufiivan Capital Management Ltd. O'Sulliven Capital
Managernent LId has been engaged by UM fnvestment Management .td o provide marketing services in New Zealand at 4 commercial arms-
length fee. This fee is paid by the Fund.

The LM Managed Perdormance Fund, a related iinvestment fund, has a debt swing to the Find of $20,376,053 4t a rat;a Of 7%pa.for the
assignment of we (2) first registered mortgages. The debt is secured by a fied ard floating charge avei the assets ofthadM Manaoed
Petformance Fund, This ioan constitutes 5.06% of the total loat partfofio.

The LM Managed Perfiormance Fund, a related investment fund, bas guaranteed $9,600,000 of a loan due by a Borrower to this Fudd, in
exchange for that Borrower making those funds avallable to the LM Managed Parformance Fund and an associate of that fund. The interest
rate on that foan is 7%pa and it equates to 1.65% of this fund’s total loan portolio.

On 30 Junie 2008, the Manager assigned to the LM Firsl Martgage Income Fund, the rights and benefits of a 55,100,900 debt due to the
Manager fram the | M Managed Performance Fund. The date for the repayment of that debt to the LM First Morigage come Fund has been
extended 1o 30 dune 2016 The cunmnt interest rale payable on this amount is 10%pa and the debt equates fo 0.88% ofthe total foan portfatio.

The Fund has made 3 lozns to varieus refated parties, which total $19,332,108. The Manager has recelvad estahiishment fees of not more
than 1.5% of the totat loan amount. The interest rates for these loans are commercial rates and range from 10.5% - 11%pa. These foans

equate to 3.33% of the tolal loan portfolio
The Fund may sefl the whole or pait of a loan io other funds managed by L as the Responsible Entity, The Fund has partiafly soid $8,110,600
of one of its loans 1o the LM Austealian Income Fund ~Currency Protedted,

Related Party Finanoe

LM is the Manager of the LM Mansged Performance Fund. The L Managed Performance Fund, in s own right, has second morgages
behind loans that are first morigages of the LM First Mortgage income Fund, AU3T January 2010 the LM Managed Performance Fund holds
& such second mongagas in the total amount of $42, 198,373, In each instancs the LM First Montgage Income Fund has entered inte a Priority
Deed i protect #s own first mortgage posidion with the borrower as part of normal loar documentation procedires.
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PORTFOLIC UPDATE AS AT 31 JANUARY 2010

Assets of the LM First Morigage Income Fund
e A diversified portfolio of Austraiian registered first mortgages over comimercial, residential, incustrial, retail and vacant land: ang
S inierast bearing cash investments.

LM First Mortgage Income Fund Asset Allocation

Registerad Fiest Mortgage Becurifies 98.67%
Cash Eguivalents 1.33%

Aguet Alfocation Guidelines Ho. of Louns Vartue ($) Actual (%)
5807156275 sa87
, T 35

R t\gastered Hrbi Moﬁga ge oomrme

CmSh &C ash quuwa?e;mts

LI First Mortgage Income Fund Sector Diversification

3 Commercial 19.88%
W Residential 59.23%
i Industrial 14.23%
Panding Development Lang 6,65%
5 Retail 0.00%

Sector Guidelines Mo, of Losns Walue (5] Actual (%)
Commercial 1 11 5,515,062 16.89

Residenal Ty 343,960,681
industna! N d _ 8 645,0'28 ‘I4 2’5

Pending Development Land & 18,504,504 665
Retail - ‘ ] 0 o 0 (}Of)

LI First Mortgage Income Fund Construction, Developmant and Other Mortgage Securities

L1 Other Mortgage Secordlies 81.02%
H Construction & Development Mortgage Securilies 18.98%

Constructon, Developrnent snd Cther Guidelines No.ofLoams Watue (5) fptt (4]

L,onstrur uon an(;f i,)c,va'ur)me,m M{)r‘{gage Secuni:ef i _ 3 110,200 628 1698
Othr—»rMfonage ‘aer,umw S S onM 70,505,646 _ §1.02

* Other Marlgrge: Securiles incdudes pending developmoent knit, completed developrients and comnercial loans.

LM Fiest Mortgage Income Fund Geographic Diversification

‘,-'J‘\Z'E # New South Wales 31.72% # Westen Australia 7.03%
. ; ! L Austealian Capital Terdtory 1.32% © Morthemn Teritory 0.00%
5 : S Victoria 5.80% B Tasmania (.60%

& Oueansiand 53.53% [ South Australia 0.00%

Tl

Seci Guidelines Mo, of Loass Vahite (§
New South Wales _ o 15 .. 164194571
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LM First Mortgage fncome Fund Portfolio Details as at 31 January 2010
Mortgage Portfolio Detalls Actuat

8580,715,275
smsweon
Auerage loa 0 valvaton catl B - S

it bml{ nram zhe amhiy ar d;’or{ aplfaitsf\ ‘%‘313 929 O? 7
3‘1‘

Tn al \m!ue of monqage se\mrmc 5

Number of ﬂorigagt:a

Averar;e 10. i r*c:

10&! value\ of loam wﬂ?\ mter

Numbpr m‘ imm \M?h mtmvv EJ mi m o Hlf‘ frmhty andlor ¥ apitahoed

Tuld} valusa of uradrawrl if)an (,f:mmrtmente over nraxé 24 monfhs {p uqmsa:ve loaéi draws) 7 - 5,000,000
;Uﬂ(ff‘d hy castflows of hr* FLEW"
Number of iaans wath undmwn Eaaﬂ r,ommstmenl over next 24 months {progressive loan draws} §
funded by r:ashﬂnws m ihe Mnd

age monihay undmvm Eo:m comm:tments funded hy (,ashﬂoww of the Fund $900,000

The valuation policy for the Fund's first morigage securiifes Is written into the lending guidelines of the Fund, forms part of the compiiance plan
for the Fund, and is subject to independent audit,

As st 31 January 2010 there ware 26 botrowers. 8.11% of totat monies was lent to the Fund's largest horower and 56.03% of total monies was
lent to the Fund's ten fargest borrowers. The Fund does not have one single berrower that exceeds 10.00% of the Fund’s assets.

Loan to Valuation Ratio (LVR)
LVR Mo, of Leans Value ()

J[}m% b(} Q[)% . ‘ . e ? e s i "”'){}499 dgq s e
6{} 01") (’O OG"o - - _ 1/490 ?[}i
7{1 ("I% 8[! GG%W o S 8 7‘5 4’3.) 3()2

e ‘3752“70. )
_"133603&;

=

90.01% - 100.00% _ 14

The average LVR across the mortgage portfolio as &t 31 Januoary 2010 is 83 55%.

LM First Mortgage Income Fund Morfgage Securities by Maturity Profile as at 31 January 2010

Period Maturing Mo, of Loons Watue (§)

012 monihs _ - 41 | _ 517285393
3429882

t3-2amonths ‘

49 ~ 860 morths

-
ol

Please note that whilsl a large bortion of the Fund’s loans reach maturity over the fortheaming 12 monihs only somme wil repay the Fund around
their maturity date.

e Fund
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Lt First Morlgage income Fund Mortgage Securities by Interest Rate Profite as at 31 January 2010
Vadus (8

Interest Rate Ho. of Loang

Tors 7. OO%
7 01% 7 D% _
7 51 % 8 (}O% .

4,701,804

o
T )
9.01%- 250% | Ceies T
N , e
wom-tose T, N P
I I~ a—
T e o S
noi%' \?00", . o ' o ; N ”““15'31 Y?WW.‘\...‘_.‘_,...-,
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LI First Morigage income Fund Loans In Arrears as at 31 January 2010

Period Mo, of Loans Yalue [§)
bﬂ 90 daya 1 8(73 {‘)8
90 day“ ard over , . 334 891 {5 13 et

A L L e A s s s e e s L e L

The Manager uses the terms “arrears” and “defaull” interchangeably. LM caloulales is loan amears statistic in acoordance with the IFSA
Standard No 18, "Best Practice Guidance for Disclosurs in the Mortgags Trust Sector”

The extt focus at this tiree is on those assets that it s reasonable to expect will returm value to e Fund and to avoid “Tire seling” of assets,

i managing optimal recoverability, some arears assets have heen identified for longer term holds for value in more favourable maricet
cohditions.  Uthers are. undergoing improvements to enhance marketability and secure appropriaie sale price for the Fund over the medium
teerm,

The Manager conlinus (o actively ranage each individual moftgage loan within the portfofio. Each asset has a specified course of action for
ultimate reatisation of the ban with oriticat tmefrarmes.

The Manager's asset and recovery team continually sssesses each individual loan in the portfolic to ensure that the capital and interest remaing
recoverablz. This is done hrough assessment of (§ valuations, (1) any sales in the particular security property and (i) general markel avidence,

With completed and non-developrment assels of the Fund, the performing luans within the porifolio will continue to generate intome (o the Fund,
he income may include rental and the Manager continues 1o seek to maximise any rental retums on completed assets. For those assefs in
arrears, traditonal recovery processes are being followed and successful completion of this process will continue io generate cash flow into
the Fund,

A major focts of the past iwelve montha has been to ensure the timely completion of development projects within the Fund. This has been
achieved to a large degree with most projecis now complete.

The Manager is managing the Fund with & first priotity to protecion of assets and invesior capital

Warning StatemenisifF vothotes:
' Past parformance is nol a reliable indicator of future performance.

2 Interast distribution rates are variable, and will depend on income eamed and expenses pald by the Fund from time to time, commission
payable to advisers, and on the type of investrent chosen,
3 Fund pedormance is not guaranteed and retums could be lower than expected and there is a poestibflity that an investor could sulfer a

inss and may fose some ar alt of their principad investment. nvestment in the Fund & not a bank deposit.
4 The unit price may vary and may decrease depending an the performance and value of the assets of the Fund,
5 Investors will have mited rights to withdraw § the Fund does not satisly the statutory liguidity test in the Comorations Act.

This praduct is issued by LM Investrment Management Ud (LM) ABN 68 077 208 461 Responsible Entity and AFSL Mo, 220281, LM requests
that investors consult thelr financial adviser o intermediary prior to maldng an investment dedision.

LA Investment Management Ld
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K3 page 1A

15 futy 2001

ASIC registered agent numbex

lndging party or agent name u\/\‘mwf.}-l oA PG A oyt A D [ oF

& cum'ﬂ

e B ey il i

ssuwdldly  Syviers [Bvedlspltetenioy 0y A1 oositete TR ;

tetephone 1 OV ) SSE v S0 Ass REGA)
tacsimile 207} ) S S | 53 S @E[QPB
DX number suburb / city

Australian Secirines & Ineesirenes Commissing form 1903

Disclosure notice for unlisted disclosing entit

{to be lodged as saon as practicable after the disclosing entity becomges y ASCOT 7053

aware of the information] Corporations Act 2001

100%B(3)

Disclosing entity
Piease complete A, Bor C.
A acompany
name
ACN.

B a bodjr tother than a company)

name [\ £vesd Caovteose (ncome onel
ARRN 0% SeBag U

C 2 prescribed interest undertaking 8 . SEP 2018

name
ASIC presoribed imerest number [>T
had }

[
Details of information

date1hat the disclosing entity became aware of the information @&!&/\' f#‘ Ho\m o .
full information insufficient space please use an annexure)
'QLL(/V 4o <the aboctke ol

T ws cloevnmonrd Lo heen Seand Ao m/\,dz_;ush
taitotons e ~he o rie iojeuge schenme . Y\fﬁ

Declaration

[C3 tverify that the atcached documens marked { } Is the original document,

=i certily that the attached document marked { }is & true copy of the original document.
D
Signature

This form is to be signed by:
#acompeny or a body o director or seeretary of the equivalonat
if a prescrived interest undertaking a director or secretary of the management company or Wustee company acling in that capazity
name of management

or trustee company LAMY Vyoctert angan PABAN p it {4 ef
ACN of ARBN e O DAOK iyl () .

name of persen signing {peint) i ml,\_f - m capachy 5&&%«'—-—;

i

sign here {\J/]/\/ ..iai%f..j.f IR

Smati Basmess {tess than 2¢ employees), please provide an estimate of the Lime 1aken to complote this
form
Include
The time actuatly spent reading the instrudtions, WOrking on Lhe quession and ohiaining the information
The time spant by al! employess i cofiecting and proviging this infarmation

ks mins

DISCLOSURE NOTICE
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LM First Mortgage Income Fund s

ASIC Benchmark Disclosure & pdate for Investors
2 September 2010

This document is provided to give investors current information on the LM First Morlgage income Fung's (Fund) compliance with ASIC
Regulatery Guide 45. The requiremerts of ASIC's Regulatory Guide 45 - *Morigage Schemes — Improving Disclosure for Retail investors” was
released in September 2008, Regulatory Guide 45 refers fo 8 benchmartks developed by ASIC. All uniisted mortgage schemes are required
to include statements in respect of each benchmark as to whather they comply or not.

Plaase ensure this document is read carefully, including any waming staterments, before making any further decisions on current investments
in the Fund.

Fund Closed to New Members
LM Investment Management Limited (the “Manager”} determined that from 3 March 2000 the Fund would not accept any applications for
investment from any person who was not an existing member in the Furd,

The Fund shll accepts applications for invesiment in the Fund from any persen who is an existing member in the Fund by way of rofiover of
investment term, including deemed applications as part of any reinvestment of distribwitions. The Fund cortinues to offer term investments,
allowing investment rollovers to existing investors, based on the ongoing achievement of the Fund's objectives, strategies, continuous
disclasure as detailed in this document and any disclosure of ongoing material changes. YWhen an investor rolis over their investment they
will continue to roll for their choice of investment term until they advise the Manager otherwise, Current fixed investment terms are 48, 24, 13,
12,6, 3 and 1 morth. The interest disiribution rafe received is based on the underlying performance of the Fund and the term and currency
of investment, 1238 |f an invastor chooses o withdraw iheir invesiment at the end of their investment term, as most normal withdrawals zre
cumently suspended, the investment will continue o earn disiribuiion interest at a rate based on the prevailing rate of the same term as the last
notninated term, urtil the fund's cash fiow is sufficient to make the withdrawai payment. 123

Further detail on withdrawals is provided in the benchmark taible on page 4 of this document.

Why the Fund Suspended Withdrawals and Closed to New Members

Inordet to protect the Fund from the prevailing credit and liquidity constraints inthe property and financia! markets, and the Fund's simuttaneaus
ubligation to repay its previous credit facility to the CBA the Manager closed the Fund to new investments and suspended withdrawals, with
the exception of those approved under hardship provisions and feeder fund payments for distibutions and expenses, Feeder funds are other
registered managed investment schemes that have invested directly in the LM First Morigage income Fund.

“The Manager has now-suctessfully refinanced the CBA facility which & Step One in the Manager's ulimale strategy to reopen the Fund and
resume normat operations in the future. Detalls of the fund's new cradit facitity with Deutsche Bank are on pages 2 and 3 of this dosument
under "Benchmark 2:- Scheme Borrowing”™

A Bnapshot of Posttives that the Deutsche Bank facilly provides

» The facility i based upon more appropriate and commercially acceptable terms.  The intlal loan term is 2 years with an option to extend
for a further year. The repayment reguirements for the fecility are far less onerous than the CBA's, The minimum requirement is for the
facklity to be reduced by $18 milfion: in the first year, rather than the far larger minimum requirement of the CBA of $5 milion per month,

»  The CBAfaciity and the most recent terms offered by CBA to exend, were not commercially acceptable. The CBA's offer bo extend was
= final offer, received only one month prior to the expiration ofitsterm. its minimum monthly repayment requirements remained the same,
with the additional anerous provision that the total debt of $80 milion be fully repaid at the end of the 4 month extension period. This
would have meant that over $80 milion would have needed to be realised from asset sajes over a 4 month period if other refinance could
not have been achieved. Understandahly, with current prevailing market conditions, fo meet such a requiremerd could have resulied in
sigrificart asse! discourts and losses to the Fund.

B The ferms of the Deutsche Bank facility are more commercial and allow LM more fiexibility in time and in the management of the Fund's
assels and cash flow. For exampile, less pressure and moere time to repay means we have more fime to realise best possibie price when
exiting a boan asset, which greally assists in the ongoing protection of capital,

ABN GBOI7 208 451 Responsible Enuty & AFSL Mo, 220283
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Strategy for the Fund
Set out below is the Manager's sirategy for the Fund.

Arranging the new loar: facility for the fund with Deutsche Bank is the first major step in achieving the mos! favourable lang term outcome for
the fund and investers. The CBA has now successfully been repaid through this refinance with Deutsche Bank's less restrictive loan,

Ensuring best poseible realisation of assets for the Fund to protect unit price continues as a prime focus for the Manager. Ongoing detalled
review and analysis of each martgage security for exit recovery at best possible vakus is extremely important and as such takes considerable
time and resources. Best passible exit strategies for current market conditiens, timeframes and critical dates are constantly reviewed by the
Manager's asset and recovery team.

Moving forward, the Manager will maintain is foctss on assets to drive positive outcomes, over realistic and critical imeframes in the shod,
medium and lenger terms.

It is noted that Australian credit remains fight in the “non-homecwner” sedtor of the market. Consequently, property sales in the commercial
and development secters are slow and the tumover of the Fund's loan assets is currently siow. These conditions are subject to change that is
outside the centrol of the Manager and they will have an impact on the timeframes over which the various goals and strategies are atie to be
achieved.

it remains the strategy of the Manager to-

»  Amnounce a proposad redemption program for those investors with a redemption request lndged. Previously expected improvements in
the rate of properly sales ard! the availability of credil within this area of the property market have not occurred, The Manager is finalising
a review of all facters that influence the cash flow of the Fund prior 1o its announcement of the redemptions program.

»  Recommence rew lending in order to increase the level of interest retums being delivered 1o investors. '3 Deutsche Bank provides
more flexibility for this to gradually be achieved. This measure will assist with achieving increased investor retums and to further assisting
with capital protection of the Fund, as new loans will bring about a reversal of the previously required self down mode the Fund has had
to utifiee since its dosure. This ensures an ongoing pool of quality assets.

»  Continue lo monitor, review and managed the Fund and ifs assets to best protedt capital vaiue.

The Manager will continue its regular reporting to investors, including fimeframes and detaits on forward sirategy for the Fund and
reposting on the prevailing market conditions in which the Fund is operating and which impact the Fund.

ASIC Benchmark Disclosure for investors

The information in the table below provides a summary of how the Fund meets or does not meet the 8 ASIC benchmatks which are required
under ASIC's Regulatery Guide 45 - "Morigage Schemes - Improving Disclosure for Retall investors®. Wa encourage you 1o discuss fhe ASIC
benchmarks with your financial adviser. Afull copy of Regulatory Guide 45 can be obtained from the ASIC websie: www.asic.gov.au,

The Manager will, via direct communication, notify investors in the Fund of all information relevant to the Fund. Such information includes
information that may be materizlly adverse and information that is not necessarily materially adverse but which is subject to change from fime
to time. This will include information that relates to the ASIC benchimarks such as information on the nature of the Fund's portialio investments
including detalls of loans, whether the Fund invests in other unfisted morigage schemes and the conditions of such investrment, A paper copy
of any updated information will be given to investors without charge on request.
BENCHMARK NUMBER & NAME DOES LM MEET  EXPLANATICH

BENCHMARK

Benchmark 1:- No The Manager has cash flow estimates for the Fund for the next 12 months and as such

Liguidity meets ASIC's liquidity benchmark guideline to have cashfiow estimates for the next 3

{wiich for the pumoses of this manths. As most withdrawals are suspended the Fund will have sufficient cash or cash

benchmark means the praportion equivalents (nat including undrawn amaounts under lending faciies) to meet projected

of cash or cash equivalents in the cash needs over the next 3 months, The Manager's cash flow esimates for the Fund for

Fund's assets) the next 12 months contain a detziied schedule of managed loar repayments to the Fund
from its existing loan portfolio. The Manager consiznily monitors and reviews the Fund's
cash flow estimates however any delay in the actual realisation of projected cash flow
will have a flow on effect to the Fund's actust cash flow payments which may mean that
distribution payments may be detayed from tme to time.

With respect 1o balancing the maturily of Fund assets with Fund fiabilities, the Fund met
this benchmark prior to its closure to new investments. As the Fund is currerttly dlosed to
new investments, the Fund is reliant on income (imterest paymenis) from existing toans
and the repayment of loans lo generate cash flow within the Fund. During this time it is
expected that certein lans will not rmeet interest payment requirements an time andior by
the original matunity date, Therefore the Fund is cmently unable to balance the matunty of
Fund assets with Fund fabilties and withdrawal requests, Refer to page 4 of this document
urder the heading "Liquidity Policy” for further details of the liguidity benchmark.

Benchmark 2:- Yes Under the constitution the Manager may bonow against the Fund assats on terms and

Scheme Borrowing sorgiitions acceptable to the Manager. The Manager has amanged a finance faciity with
Dettsche Banik AG ('DB") which was satiled on t July 20M0 principally to refinance the
previous Commonweaith Bank kne of credi.

Asat 1 Juty 2010 the amount owing 10 DB was the fully drawn amouri of $80 miion. The
loan tem s 2 years expiting on 30 June 2012, with an option for a 1 year extension to 30
Jure 2013. The interes rate of the facility is 15% {for the intial 2 year ter) and 18% (for
the third year if the option is exercised),
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The facility is secured by & fixed ang fating chame over the assels of the Fund, providing
DB, as secured tender, with first prority overthe assets of the Furnd. The amount owing to
DB ranks before investors' interesis in the scheme.

The purpose of the DB facility is to refinance the Commonwealtn Bank fine of credit, to
establish a 36 million cash balance within the Fund, to pay taxes, insurance and statutory
charges on security properties and to pay fees, costs and expenses inrelationto the fachity.
The facllity is not intended to be used to fund diskibutions or withdrawal amounts,

The facifiy will be repaic via cashfiow generated by the Fund, with minimum principal
repayments of §7 milion by 31 December 2010; $11 milion by 30 June 2011; 89 milion
by 3t December 20%1; and where the faciity s extended to 30 June 2013, $13.5 milion
by 30 June 2042,

The facilty agreemend contains foan covenants that are usual for facilies of this nature, |f
a loan covenant is breached, the faciity may go into defaull, and in those circumstances
0B may elect o take recovery action. Thers are no foan covenant breaches at {his time
and the Manager does not consider that any such breaches are fikely,

Benchmark 3:-
Portfolio Diversification

Yes

Refer to pages 9 to 12 of this document under heading "Portfolio Update as at 30 June
2010 for the Fund's curent portfolio diversification, The Marager's lending poficies and
proceduses for the Fund provide Rether detals in refation fo maximum loan amount for
any one borower, the method of assessing bomowers' capacily to service toans; the
Manager's approach to taking security; revaluing secusity properiies on roliover ard
whether the secusity must be income producing. Currently the Fund is not actively lending
to new borrowers but is maintaining, monitoring and reviewing the Funds loans to existing
borrowers. See the.seclion headed "Lending Policies and Procedures of the Fund® on
pages 5 and 6 of this document.

it s the Manager's intention overtime to lend to new borowers and this will be determined
s pant of cash flow management of the Fund in the best inferests of all investors.

The Manager does not cumently invest In other unlisted mortgage schemes, bt has
the power to do so in the Fund constiuion. The Manager's policy on investing in such
schemes is to ascertain whether such an investment s desirable for the Fund in fighl of the
cirsumstances af that time. The Manager will not necessarily require such a scheme to
satisfy the ASIC benchimarks before the Manager invests in the scheme.

Benchmark 4:-
Relfated Pany Transactions

Yes

The Fund may lend to, or engage in olher transactions with, related parties, but such
loans and transactions are subject to review by the Board and can only be approved on
commercial arms-ength terms following approval by the Credit Commitiee. The Board's
approval process is monitored by the Manager's Risk Manager and Business Standands
and Compliance Manager The Fund may also invest in other managed rwvestment
schemes which are operated by the Manager. For further detalls refer to the paragraghs
under the heading “Related Parties” on page 8 of this docurment. M

The Manager has a documented Confiicts Management Policy witich deals with
the identification, assessment and treatment of confiicts of interest and related party
transagtions. The Risk Manager has responsibility for monitoring confiicts and ehsuring the
confict management poficy is fofiowed. Tre Risk Manager afso prepares confict records
for each confict or refated party transaction identified. Bowrd approval is required for 8
related party ransactions.

Benchmark &:-
Valuation Policy

No

The Manager's valuation policies set out how real property assets over which the Fund has
security will be valued (that is, on an "as is” basis, and for developement koans, slse ont an
“as if complete” basis) and how often valuations ase obtained. The ASIC benchmark also
requires that no ane valuer conducts more than 1/3 of the valuation work forthe Fund. The
Fund complies with this requirement. Vaiuers selected to perform relevart valuations on
the securily property are chosen based on independence, specialist industry expertise and
gengraphic location. The ASIC benchmark requires the disclosure of infarmation about the
valuation of a particuiar propesty for an unlisted mortgage scheme where a loan sectred
against the propetty accounts for 5% or muore of the tota value of the scheme's loan book.
The Manager does not provide this information dus to privacy easons and due to fhe
commercial sensitivity of vaiuation ifomeation, Further details in reiation to the Manager's
valuation policies are cutlined on pages 6 and 7 of this document under the paragraphs
headed *Valuaiion Policies”,

Benchmark 6:-
tending Principles

No

Whilst # is the Manager's peliey to genemlly not exceed = ioan o vaiuation ratic of
B6.67% on construction and development loans and 75% on commercial bans {which
ratios do both comply with the ASIC benchmark) & is the Menager's curren! practice to
exceed thoss ratios whenever necessary in the process of working through a repayment
sottion in current market canditions. The Fund's constitution aflows the Manager to lend
funds provided that all morgages are secured over property and the amount which may
be advanced to a bomower does nol exceed an LVR of 75% of the value of the securty
property on initial seflement. After a koan has seflled and where the Manager considers #
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is i the best interests of the members of the Fund, the Manager may approve an LVR not
to exceed 85% of the value of the security properly. The LVR of a loan that is in defautt may
exceed 85%. Where the loan is a development foan, funds are advanced progressively in
stages through the development on a “Cost o Complete” basis and the Manager engages
an extemal consultant Quantity Survevor for each deveiopment and receives periodic
reports on the progress of the development including certification of construction dlaims
based onwork compleled, Further details in relation to the Manager's iending poficies and
procedizes are outlined on pages 5 and 6 of this document under the heading ‘Lending
Poiicies ard Procedures for the Fund”.

Benchmark 7.~
Distribution Practices

Yes

Current and forecast distribetions are sourced from income eamed from the assats of the
Fund. Currently income i eamed from the existing assets of the Fund via () interest
payments the Furd receives from it existing income producing loans 2nd (i existing loans
on which interest is being capitalised for collection on the repayment of those loans fo
the Fund. The interest distribution rates are variable depending on the income eamed,
expenses paid and other matters refevant to the Fund. ifthe income eamed is not sufficient
fo pay &fl expenses and interest distibutions the returns to investors may be lower. The
retum will be determined based on the amount avaiiable to pay interest distribegtions. From
time: te time, where there are detays in the repayment ofloans back to the Fund, thene may
be a delay between dectaring the distibution and the Fund actually paying that distribufion,

Benchmark 8:-
Withdrawal Arrangements

Yes

As stated in the Product Disclosure Statement, in certain circumstances withdrewat
payments may be-exterded to 365 days or suspended. Withdraweals have been suspended
to protect Fund assets and provide stabiliy in cument marke! condilions. Subject to the
cashfiow of the Fund, only withdrawals approved under hardship provisions and feeder
fund payments for distrbutions 2 expenses may be made. Investers may apply under
ASIC hardship provision for withdrawat of their invesiment. ASIC hariship provisions
am presoriptive and ivestors who wish to apply under these provisions must meet the
hardship criteria outfined in ASIC's provisions. Investors cen contact the: Manager who will
provide details of ASIC's hardship withdrawal provisions. if the withdrawa! is aliowed under
ASIC haniship withdrawa! provisions payment will be subject to cashflow of the Fund.

Aithdrawal notice may stil be lodged. Investors must give the Manager written noticed
signed by the investorfs. Flext investment investors must provide 1 business days nofice,
Fixed Term investments investors must provide at least 5 business days natice prior io the
maturity date, and Savings Plan investors following the initial 2 month investment period
must provide 1 business days netice, if an investor chooses to withdmw their investment
al the end of thelt investment term, as most nomal withdrawals ere curmently suspended,
the investment will continue to eam interest based on the same lerm as the last nominated
term untl cash flows permit the withdrawal to be paid.

Irvestors should aso note the automatic rollover provisions whichapply to thefrinvesiments,

and the time periods for notice to be given to withdraw are as outlined inthis seclion, . ._._ .

The amourt payabie to investors on withdrawal will be the issue price of their units at that
fime. This amount is subject to change depending on the net value of the assets of the
Fund,

$167.1 million of ivéstments in the Fund have a withdrawa! perding.
$150.5 milliony of rwestmenis inthe Furdl's feeder funds have a withdrawal pending.
The total being $317.6 millicn of investments in all funds have withdrawals pending.

Friar to the global finareial crisis [GFCT, the Fund’s historical withdrawal rate averaged
1.5% of total assets on a monthly basis, inciuding feeder fund withdrawats. Based on this
pre-GFC historical withdrawa! rate, # the investment environment had been normal over the
past 12 morths, withdrawat trends would have heen expected (o equale to approximately
ALDS115 million a5 opposed to the AUDS317.6 milion of withdrawais actually received
since 3 March 2008, The increase in withdrawals is as 8 direct resul of the extracrdinary
environment created by the GFC

Liguidity Policy

Trie Manager mordtors and balances the Fund’s portfoiio of assels between cash and Australian registered mortgage securities as part of the

Fund's fiquidity management.

The liquidity policy of the Fund describes the methodology the Manager appfies to balance the maturity of the assets and liabiities of the Fund.
The Manager continually manitors and manages the vaniables that impact on liquidity. As the Fund is curently closed to new nvestments, the
Fund is reliant on the repayment of foans to generate cash fiow within the Fund, The repayment of a foan to the Fund is subjed to a sale or
refinance with another financial institution. Australian Financal institufions are not readily (ending in the “non-homeowner” mergage sector and
as a result, activity in the commercial and development properly sectors is slow, For these reasons, during this time i Is expected that certain
ioans will not mest repaymenrt by their original maturity date,
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